
1 
 

Cabinet 
 

Man Cyfarfod 
Siambr y Cyngor - Neuadd y Sir, 
Llandrindod, Powys 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod 
Dydd Mawrth, 19 Medi 2023 
 
Amser y Cyfarfod 
10.00 am 
 
I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch â 

 

 
 

Neuadd Y Sir 
Llandrindod 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

Stephen Boyd 
01597 826374 
steve.boyd@powys.gov.uk 

 Dyddiad Cyhoeddi 
 

 
Mae croeso i’r rhai sy’n cymryd rhan ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg. Os hoffech chi siarad 
Cymraeg yn y cyfarfod, gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i ni erbyn hanner dydd ddau 
ddiwrnod cyn y cyfarfod 
 

AGENDA 
  

1.  YMDDIHEURIADAU  
 
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 
 
  

2.  COFNODION  
 
Awdurdodi’r Cadeirydd i lofnodi cofnodion y cyfarfod diwethaf a gynhaliwyd fel 
cofnod cywir.  
(Tudalennau 1 - 4) 
  

3.  DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB  
 
Derbyn unrhyw ddatganiadau o ddiddordeb gan Aelodau yn ymwneud ag eitemau 
i’w hystyried ar yr agenda.  
 
  

4.  CERDYN SGORIO CYNLLUN STRATEGOL CORFFORAETHOL A'R 
CYNLLUN CYDRADDOLDEB: PERFFORMIAD CHWARTER 1  

 
Ystyried adroddiad gan yr Arweinydd, y Cynghorydd Sir James Gibson-Watt. 
Dyma’r ddolen i’r adroddiad Power BI  
https://cy.powys.gov.uk/article/14127/Diweddariadau-am-y-Cynllun-Corfforaethol 
(Tudalennau 5 - 14) 
  

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

https://cy.powys.gov.uk/article/14127/Diweddariadau-am-y-Cynllun-Corfforaethol


5.  ADRODDIAD RHEOLI'R TRYSORLYS CHWARTER 1  
 
Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd Sir David Thomas, Aelod Cabinet ar gyfer 
Cyllid a Thrawsnewid Corfforaethol.  
(Tudalennau 15 - 34) 
  

6.  GOROLWG ARIANNOL AR GYFER Y FLWYDDYN SY'N DOD I BEN 31 
MAWRTH 2024 (AR 30 MEHEFIN 2023)  

 
Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd Sir David Thomas, Aelod Cabinet ar gyfer 
Cyllid a Thrawsnewid Corfforaethol.  
(Tudalennau 35 - 64) 
  

7.  RHAGOLYGON CYFALAF 2023-24, AR 30 MEHEFIN 2023  
 
Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd Sir David Thomas, Aelod Cabinet ar gyfer 
Cyllid a Thrawsnewid Corfforaethol.  
(Tudalennau 65 - 74) 
  

8.  DIWEDDARIAD AM GYNLLUNIO ARIANNOL  
 
Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd Sir David Thomas, Aelod Cabinet ar gyfer 
Cyllid a Thrawsnewid Corfforaethol.  
(Tudalennau 75 - 96) 
  

9.  CYTUNDEB Y GORORAU  
 
Ystyried adroddiad ar Gytundeb y Gororau.  
 
  

10.  GOHEBIAETH  
 
Derbyn ac ystyried yr eitem atodedig o ohebiaeth gan yr RSPCA. 
(Tudalennau 97 - 100) 
  

11.  PENDERFYNIADAU DIRPRWYEDIG A WNAED ERS Y CYFARFOD 
DIWETHAF  

 
Nodi’r penderfyniadau dirprwyedig a gymerwyd ers y cyfarfod diwethaf.  
(Tudalennau 101 - 102) 
  

12.  BLAENRAGLEN WAITH  
 
Ystyried blaenraglen waith y Cabinet.  
(Tudalennau 103 - 104) 
  

13.  EITEMAU WEDI'U HEITHRIO  
 
 



Mae'r Swyddog Monitro wedi penderfynu bod yr adroddiad canlynol yn destun 
categori 3 y Rheolau Trefn Mynediad at Wybodaeth. Ei farn o ran prawf lles y 
cyhoedd (wedi ystyried darpariaethau Rheol 14.8, Rheolau Mynediad at Wybodaeth 
y Cyngor), oedd y byddai gwneud y wybodaeth hon yn gyhoeddus yn datgelu 
gwybodaeth yn ymwneud a materion ariannol neu fusnes unrhyw unigolyn penodol 
(gan gynnwys yr awdurdod sy’n cynnal y wybodaeth honno). 
Roedd y ffactorau hyn yn ei farn ef yn bwysicach na diddordeb y cyhoedd wrth 
ddatgelu'r wybodaeth hon. Gofynnir i Aelodau ystyried y ffactorau hyn wrth 
benderfynu ar brawf lles y cyhoedd, a dylent benderfynu hyn wrth iddynt ystyried 
eithrio'r cyhoedd o'r rhan hon o'r cyfarfod. 
 
  

14.  GWERTHU EIDDO  
 
Ystyried adroddiad cyfrinachol yr Arweinydd, y Cynghorydd Sir James Gibson-Watt.. 
(Tudalennau 105 - 108) 
 
 
 



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



Cabinet 1 August 2023  
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD AT COUNTY HALL AND ZOOM 
AT COUNTY HALL ON TUESDAY, 1 AUGUST 2023 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillor J Gibson-Watt (Chair) 
 
County Councillors J Berriman, R Church, S Cox, M J Dorrance, P Roberts, D Selby 
and D A Thomas 
 
In attendance: County Councillor AW Davies    
 

1.  APOLOGIES  
 

Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors J Brignell-Thorp 
(Cabinet Assistant), J Charlton, S C Davies and A Kennerley (Cabinet Assistant), 
the Interim Chief Executive and the Director of Education. 

 
 

2.  MINUTES  
 

The Leader was authorised to sign the minutes of the meetings held on 11th and 
18th July 2023 as correct records. 

 
3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest reported. 

 
4.  POWYS RAPID REHOUSING TRANSITION PLAN 2023-2028 AND 

ASSOCIATED MINOR POLICY AMENDMENTS TO THE 'HOMES IN 
POWYS' HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY  

 
Cabinet considered the Powys Rapid Rehousing Transition Plan 2023-2028. 
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for a Fairer Powys explained that 
Rapid Rehousing  was designed to address the unprecedented pressures that 
the Council’s homeless service had seen in recent years and to make sure that 
anyone experiencing homelessness could move into a settled home as quickly 
as possible. 
 
Two of the projects required to make a success of the Rapid Rehousing 
Transition Plan, and which require a financial commitment from the Council and 
where appropriate the Welsh Government, were: 
▪ Enhanced Homelessness Services, which includes ‘Instant Access 24/7 

Triage Centres’ and ‘Interim 24/7 Supported Accommodation’. 
▪ Modular Interim Accommodation. 

 
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for a Fairer Powys thanked the 
Economy Residents and Communities Scrutiny Committee for their comments 
and recommendations. He said that he partially accepted recommendation 1, 
advising that the Housing Service did plan and monitor the allocation of housing, 
but that homelessness was a priority. He partially accepted recommendation 2 
saying that everyone would be treated fairly dependent on their need. 
Recommendations 3 and 4 were fully accepted.  

Tudalen 1

2



Cabinet 1 August 2023  
 

  
The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for a Fairer Powys advised that the 
service would be increasing the presence of housing officers on estates to 
increase the opportunity for face-to-face contacts. 
 
In response to a question by the leader of the opposition about funding, the 
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for a Fairer Powys explained that capital 
was in place for the projects and that there was no revenue requirement for the 
modular accommodation project as Welsh Government funding had been 
secured. This project would save money and lead to better outcomes for those 
facing homelessness.  The specific initiatives, actions and projects set out in the 
plan which had financial implications for the Council would be subject to further 
approval on a case-by-case basis. 
 

RESOLVED to approve  
 

1. The Powys Rapid Rehousing Transition Plan 2023-2028 
in Appendix A, with specific initiatives, actions and 
projects set out in the plan which have financial 
implications for the Council, being subject to further 
approval on a case-by-case basis. 
 

2. The minor amendments to the ‘Homes in Powys’ 
housing allocation policy set out in Section Five of the 
report.  
 

 
5.  ANNUAL SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 

STATEMENT  
 

Cabinet considered the Annual Self-Assessment Report and Annual Governance 
Statement (AGS). The Annual Corporate Self-Assessment report incorporated 
the annual monitoring of the Council’s performance against its Corporate 
Improvement Plan and Strategic Equality Objectives and provided a holistic view 
of the organisation in delivering it’s well-being objectives.  The AGS provided an 
account of the processes, systems, and records that the council had in place to 
demonstrate the effectiveness of its governance arrangements during the 
financial year.  

 
RESOLVED   

 
1. To approve the Self-Assessment report and endorse 

the Annual Governance Statement.  
 

2. To accept that the Annual Corporate Self-
Assessment Report  

 
• fulfils the Authority’s obligations under the Local 

Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021.  
• That the conclusions presented in the Self-

Assessment Report are considered corporately 

Tudalen 2



Cabinet 1 August 2023  
 

to be a fair and accurate evaluation of the 
Authority’s performance in 2022-23.  

• That the self-assessment report offers an open, 
balanced, and realistic picture of the Council’s 
achievements and challenges over the previous 
year.  

• That the document is clear and provides the right 
level of information to make it meaningful and 
relevant to all audiences.  

 
3. To accept that the Annual Governance Statement 

provides a complete and accurate account of the 
processes, systems, and records that the council 
has had in place during 2022-23 and demonstrates 
the effectiveness of its governance arrangements 
over that period.  

 
  

6.  CORPORATE SAFEGUARDING BOARD ACTIVITY REPORT  
 

Cabinet received an update report from the interim Director of Social Services 
and Housing who chaired the Corporate Safeguarding Board.  She was pleased 
to report that mandatory safeguarding training had been delivered to staff without 
access to a computer in Catering and Cleaning and HTR, with completion rates 
of 85.8% and 96.6% respectively.  

 
7.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT YEAR END REPORT  

 
Cabinet received the Treasury Management Year End report. The report noted 
that it had been a very volatile period with high inflation and rising interest rates. 
The Authority aimed to achieve the optimum return on its investments 
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. The risk appetite 
hadbeen low in order to give priority to security of investments. With interest 
rates for investments remaining lower than borrowing rates, the use of cash 
reserves as opposed to borrowing was prudent and cost-effective. 
 
Sundry debt levels were lower than the previous quarter but there were still 
significant levels of debt and the Head of Finance advised that the Cabinet would 
be receiving a report on debt in Adult Services in September.  
 

 
8.  BUDGET BOOK  

 
The Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate Transformation advised that the 
budget book was available and could be accessed at 
Council Accounts - Powys County Council 

 
9.  DELEGATED DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST MEETING  

 
Cabinet noted the delegated decisions taken by Cabinet Members since the last 
meeting. 

 
Tudalen 3

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fen.powys.gov.uk%2Farticle%2F7469%2FCouncil-Accounts&data=05%7C01%7Csteve.boyd%40powys.gov.uk%7Cd9dfc59fe0804945fdc008db92829561%7Cc01d9ee10eb0475499ae03ae8a732b50%7C0%7C0%7C638264861763321213%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=wi3B9X0w3%2Bn3hJ%2FVS%2FL8e4aumnPDgE3Mcc1UxDTiz2w%3D&reserved=0


Cabinet 1 August 2023  
 

10.  FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 

Cabinet noted the forward work programme.  
 

 
 

County Councillor J Gibson-Watt (Chair) 

Tudalen 4



CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 
 

CABINET EXECUTIVE 
19 September 2023 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Councillor James Gibson-Watt  

(Leader, and Cabinet Member for an Open and 
Transparent Powys) 

  
REPORT TITLE: Corporate Strategic and Equality Plan Scorecard: Quarter 

1 Performance 
  
 
REPORT FOR: 

 
Endorsement and Decision 

 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1. This report presents the Council’s 2023 to 2024 Quarter 1 (April to June) Corporate 

and Strategic Equality Plan Scorecard.  Cabinet are asked to review the performance, 
and confirm that they are assured by the performance or that they are satisfied that 
remedial actions will effectively improve performance where this is not on track. 
 

1.2. The full content of the Scorecard is available on the Council’s website by visiting: 
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/14124/Corporate-Plan-Updates.  

 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1. Objective 1: We will improve people’s awareness of services, and how to 
access them, so that they can make informed choices. 

 
Overall, progress against this objective has been broadly positive as we have sought 
to improve how we work with our people and communities.  Three measures were 
allocated as ‘off track’, which were: 

• ‘Percentage (children) using Intervention and Prevention remain with families 
safely (89% against a target of 91%) 

• ‘Percentage accessing Intervention and Prevention that demonstrate positive 
progression (80% against a target of 88%) 

• ‘Percentage of people report achieving their family goal through Early Help’ 
(82% against a target of 90%) 

 
Importantly, the percentage of customers satisfied with their responses when 
contacting the Council exceeded the target (84% against a target of 82%). 
 
It was announced that the Digital Transformation Programme approved work to 
investigate the potential of AI (artificial intelligence) Chat across our customer 
channels.  The aim is to support a 24/7 conversational self-serve chat experience that 
will enable our customers to access information and answers faster.   
 
A range of updates were made to the Council’s website to provide more information, 
including: 

Tudalen 5

4

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/14124/Corporate-Plan-Updates


• Information about Adult Services.  
• New voter ID information for elections.  All canvass communications now provide 

voters with options of how to respond, including a choice of voting methods. 
• The Apprenticeship and Work Experience pages, which are now aligned to the 

new branding used in the Recruitment and Retention Project. 

The Dewis Cymru self-help well-being website was also promoted, which provides 
access to around 6,000 local and national services, will help the people of Powys to 
choose services that best meet their needs. 
 
Finance and Education Services both reflected on their use of social media and the 
benefits of promoting information using different communications channels to 
maximise the opportunities for all.  The Education Service identified that there is an 
opportunity to provide enhanced information to schools and families about 
admissions and admissions processes and will be exploring how they develop this.   
 
Colleagues from the Workforce and Organisational Development Team attended a 
range of recruitment events to promote career opportunities with the Council, and to 
provide support to those applying for roles. This includes targeted, difficult to recruit 
roles, such as Reablement. 
 
The number of people accessing leisure facilities and the satisfaction levels with 
those services were notably higher than the targets.  The Leisure Review was 
ongoing during the quarter, and data and insight were being used to better 
understand leisure centre usage, costs, distance to facilities, the facilities available, 
and so on, as part of the evidence-based decision-making process.  The review will 
close on 28 August 2023.   
 
Although a significant percentage of children using Intervention and Prevention 
remain with their families safely, currently the percentage accessing Intervention and 
Prevention that demonstrate a positive progression is slightly lower than the target.  
However, a number of children and their families were ‘stepped down’ to the Early 
Help service or to more specialist services like the Youth Justice Service before they 
reached their goals.  Similarly, the percentage of people that report achieving their 
family goal through Early Help is slightly lower than hoped for.  Children’s Service will 
be reviewing the distance travelled tool, as well as the model of crisis intervention 
that is used. 
 

 
2.2. Objective 2: We will support good quality, sustainable, employment 

opportunities and pursue real living wage accreditation. 
 

Progress against this objective has been extremely positive as the Council seeks to 
address the workforce challenges that face the County. However, there still remains 
a significant amount to do due to the challenging workforce situation which is being 
experienced nationally. 
 
Only one measure was allocated as ‘off track’, which was the ‘Percentage of staff 
who feel proud / very proud to work for the Council’.  However, the achievement of 
80% equalled last year’s result, and was only marginally lower than the target of 81%. 
This evidence helps support the work surrounding the retention of staff currently being 

Tudalen 6



undertaken to ensure than existing staff are supported and retained within the 
Council. 
 
The Council supported a variety of degree schemes: 
• Staff from across Social Services were invited to apply to join the next cohort of 

the ‘Grow Our Own’ Social Work scheme, which has been successful in 
strengthening the Social Care workforce by enabling the appointment of 8 ‘Newly 
Qualified Social Workers’.   

• Interviews started for (Social Services) degree sponsorship, which included 7 
applicants from Adult Services and 7 from Children’s Services.   

• In addition, all Council staff were eligible to apply to undertake the 1-year social 
work degree, for which there were 3 applicants at time of reporting. 

• The Digital Teams were invited to apply to undertake a Degree Apprenticeship in 
Applied Software Engineering through the Open University. 

An apprentice was successfully employed within the Property Design Service.  The 
Highways, Transport and Recycling Service considered that the apprenticeship 
scheme had been ‘a huge success’ within the Service and would become a rolling 
programme. 
 
Reflection during the quarter identified that project roles being advertised within the 
Economy and Digital Service were not attracting applicants, and as a result work was 
ongoing with Workforce and Organisational Development to improve the advertising 
of such roles and to approach internal staff with relevant matching skills. 
 
We have also looked at how we recruit differently. A three-week course was 
developed as a pilot to support members of the public to gain the Level 1 Food 
Hygiene Certificate.  It is hoped that this will assist them in gaining the skills needed 
to apply for catering vacancies within the Council, which are roles that are hard to 
recruit to. 
 
Additionally, Housing have undertaken recruitment for tradespeople differently by 
visiting a series of locations across Powys, which resulted in a better than expected 
number of applicants, and the number of tradespeople being recruited being 
significantly beyond what was originally planned for. 
 
There was an increase in attendance at the recruitment roadshows for Children’s 
Services following a successful recruitment (leaflet) campaign for our in-house 
therapeutic home. 
 
Powys County Council has signed up to become an Endometriosis Friendly 
Employer, the first local authority in the UK to do so. y becoming an Endometriosis 
Friendly Employer, Powys County Council is showing a commitment to support staff 
who have the condition and tackling stigma and changing culture surrounding 
endometriosis in the workplace. 
 
Data about disability employment (paid / voluntary) was reviewed to establish a 
baseline and start work on the Live Well Forum, which is co-produced with the people 
of Powys to develop meaningful employment opportunities for adults with disabilities.  
There is now a better understanding of the financial sustainability of different 
organisations.  However, it was acknowledged that further work is needed to 

Tudalen 7



determine who delivers accessible employment opportunities in Powys, how these 
are coordinated, and how these data are collected and used.  
 
Recipients of Direct Payments (in relation to Adult Services) received an uplift on their 
rate to facilitate the real living wage, and the Finance Service identified the need to 
encourage more contractors to pay a real living wage.  [All employees of the Council 
receive a real living wage.]  The real living wage activity is an important ambition for 
the Council to strengthen the county for the people of Powys by increasing fairness 
and supporting personal and economic resilience. 
 
Please note that: 
• Data is not yet available for the measure ‘Number of guaranteed interviews offered 

to (eligible) Armed Forces veterans’; it is due to be reported in quarter 2. 
• It was not possible to report against the measure ‘Workforce quality and diversity 

better compares to Powys’ demographics’ during quarter 1.  This measure is 
under review to ensure that it presents accurate and relevant data in future 
reports. 

• It was not possible to report against the measure ‘Job applicants and staff reflect 
(generally) the equality and diversity of Powys’ during quarter 1.  This measure 
is under review to ensure that it presents accurate and relevant data in future 
reports. 

 
 

2.3. Objective 3: We will work to tackle poverty and inequality to support the well-
being of the people of Powys. 

 
Progress against this objective has been extremely positive despite the Council 
operating against a challenging socioeconomic backdrop. 
 
Of the 13 measures, only one measure was allocated as ‘off track’, which was ‘The 
number of households who are homeless’ (408 against a target of 304). During the 
quarter, 79homeless households were accommodated permanently by the Council, 
in our own stock, through housing associations and in the private sector.  It is 
important to note that this is an indicator of homelessness in Powys and is impacted 
by wider external factors beyond the control of the Council. 
 
The number of households registered with ‘Homes in Powys’ for affordable and 
secure homes was higher than expected.  Similarly, the number of homeless 
households was significantly higher than hoped.  Nevertheless, it is pleasing to report 
that the number of rough sleepers was lower than expected, as was the number of 
households living in temporary accommodation. The Housing Service identified the 
opportunity to maintain close contact with residents and tenants as a way of helping 
them to feel confident in contacting the Council for advice and help. 
Positively, at the time of reporting, the percentage of rental income lost through 
Council unoccupied housing was also slightly lower than expected. 
 
An accommodation tracking form was developed by Adult Services to provide 
intelligence on future accommodation needs of individuals with a disability.  This has 
resulted in the identification of a potential need in a specific area of the county, which 
can now be investigated. 
 

Tudalen 8



Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) registration was gained for an in-house residential 
provision in South Powys, offering 2 additional (child) residential placements.  A 
further 3 additional places became operational for those (children) aged 16+ in Mid 
Powys. 
 
A new partnership was formed between the Council’s Preventative and Restorative 
Justice Team and Freedom Leisure to support families in accessing facilities in the 
Llandrindod Wells area as part of the ‘Turn Around Project’.  This contributes to 
creating a ‘stronger’ Powys, where communities succeed together and are personally 
resilient. 
 
The rollout of Universal Primary Free School Meals (UPFSM) continues and will 
include Year 3 learners from September 2023.  190,490 meals have been provided 
since 01 September 2022. 
 
The Money Advice Service has been strengthened, using Shared Prosperity Funding 
to support additional staff to offer free and confidential advice to residents. 
 
The decision-making process (the Impact Assessment) has been developed with 
specialist support to strengthen guidance about the climate and nature emergency.   
 

 
 
3. Advice 

 
3.1. That Cabinet receive the Quarter 1 (2023-2024) Corporate and Strategic Equality 

Plan Scorecard that is published on the Council’s website: 
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/14124/Corporate-Plan-Updates and review the 
Council’s progress against the Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan. 
 

3.2. That Cabinet recognise that this report is the first time that the Council is reporting 
against it’s new Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan (CSEP) and, as such, the 
Council is keen to evolve and embed the process over the coming months.   
 

3.3. It should be acknowledged that the measures within the CSEP are under continuous 
review and improvement.  The measures do not yet all include reporting from all 
services, as mechanisms are still under development to support this aspiration.  For 
example, CSEP measure 1 reports the ‘Number of contacts to Powys County Council 
(Number of times people have contacted the Council)’, but at present includes data 
from Economy and Digital and Housing Services only.  

 
3.4. It is requested that Cabinet’s attention is drawn to the objective 2 action that states 

‘By March 2026, we will establish a fair pay commission that will set out how the 
Council will become a fully accredited living wage employer. We will do this in 
consultation with trade unions and our partners’.  The Council already pays a Real 
Living Wage to all the staff it directly employs.  The aspiration to seek accreditation 
is contingent on the Council’s contractors paying their staff a Real Living Wage, and 
work will be undertaken to gain insight into the current wage arrangements that exist 
within contractor organisations.  This information will enable the Council to plan 
progress towards achieving this aim. 

Tudalen 9

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/14124/Corporate-Plan-Updates
https://en.powys.gov.uk/ourvision


 
3.5. The Council continues to seek to engage with the people of Powys to help achieve 

our ambition of being a stronger, fairer, greener Powys.  In particular, our engagement 
activities contribute to our aim to be an open, well-run, Council where people’s voices 
are heard and help us to shape our work and priorities.  An update on progress is 
provided here as supporting information.  During quarter 1, 3,190 external people 
visited our Engagement Hub, of which 589 people participated in our engagement 
and consultation activities.  Of those that responded to our ongoing engagement 
project, 28% felt they had opportunities to have their say and participate in decision-
making, and 25% said they speak positively about the Council.  Seven external 
engagement projects were started during the period, which were: 

• Do you have a minute? (Ongoing engagement project) 
• Powys Winter Roads Service Review  
• Powys Arts Strategy  
• Customer Service Review (public)  
• Local Housing Market Assessment (open until 10th July) 
• Housing Need in Llanfair Ym Mochnant 
• Ystradgynlais Replacement of Outdoor Synthetic Pitch (open until 15th July) 

 
A further 348 people joined the Powys People’s Panel by opting in through their My 
Powys Account, which brings the total to 4,837 members.  

 
 
4. Resource Implications 

 
4.1. Services set out their objectives that contribute to the delivery of the Corporate and 

Strategic Equality Plan in their individual Integrated Business Plans.  The activity 
undertaken and reported in this quarter has been delivered from within service 
budgets. Any subsequent remedial action to improve performance will be 
considered by the relevant service, it is anticipated that this can be delivered from 
existing resources. 
 

4.2. The Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) notes the report. 
 

 
5. Legal implications 

 
5.1. Professional Lead – Legal and Deputy Monitoring Officer notes the content of the 

report. There are no other legal matters arising from the report. 
 
 

6. Data Protection 
 

6.1. Not applicable.  No identifiable information is contained within the reporting. 
 

 
 

 
 

7. Comment from local member(s) 

Tudalen 10



 
7.1. Comments were not sought from individual members, as the performance report is 

equally applicable to the whole county. 
 
 

8. Impact Assessment 
 

8.1. An impact assessment has not been undertaken for the quarterly performance 
updates as it does not include any proposals or service changes.  However, the 
impact assessment of the CSEP is available here. 

 
 

9.  Recommendations 
 
That Cabinet: 
 

9.1. Confirm they are assured that performance is progressing well, or that mitigating 
actions have been identified and reflected in updates to service Integrated Business 
Plans. 
 

9.2. Confirm they are satisfied that any remedial actions will effectively improve 
performance in line with outcomes set out in the Corporate and Strategic Equality 
Plan. 

 
9.3. Consider for approval the introduction of a new measure to support Objective 1 

(We will improve people’s awareness of services, and how to access them, so that 
they can make informed choices.): 

• Number of ‘keeping in touch’ visits; this is in relation to Housing Services and 
would enable the team to regularly demonstrate some key work that is being 
undertaken to support the Council’s tenants.   

 
9.4. Note the following clarifications to measure wording: 

• Measure 4:  ‘Number of people accessing leisure facilities’ has been amended 
to ‘Number of people participating in leisure activities’; this clarifies that it will 
measure participations rather than people. 

• Measure 9: ‘Percentage increase in user (active) participations’ has been 
amended to ‘The number of (active) user participations’; this reflects the number 
of participations rather than measuring a percentage increase. 

• Measure 15: ‘Number of apprentices within the Council’ has been updated to 
clarify that it reports the number of new apprentices; it now reads: ‘Number of 
new apprentices within the Council’. 

• Measure 19: ‘Staff turnover rate’ has been updated to clarify that it is the: ‘Staff 
turnover rate during the quarter’. 

• Measure 20: ‘Sickness absence rate’ has been updated to clarify that it is the: 
‘Average days sickness per full time equivalent employee’. 

• Measure 35: ‘A reduction in the child poverty rate’ has been amended to ‘A 
reduction in the child absolute poverty rate’; this clarifies that absolute poverty is 
the basis of measurement. 

Tudalen 11

https://powys.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s77044/impactAssessment_Corporate%20Plan_DRAFT.pdf
https://en.powys.gov.uk/ourvision
https://en.powys.gov.uk/ourvision


• Measure 36: ‘Number of families with children who are living in absolute poverty 
in Powys’ has been amended to ‘Number of children living in absolute poverty’; 
this is because the relevant data is not available for families. 

 
 

 
Contact Officer:  Catherine James (Head of Transformation and Democratic  

Services) 
 
Tel: 01597 826768  
   
Email: catherine.james@powys.gov.uk 
 
Head of Service: Catherine James (Head of Transformation and Democratic  

Services) 
 
Corporate Director: Emma Palmer (Director of Corporate Services) 
 

Tudalen 12

mailto:catherine.james@powys.gov.uk


Appendix A: Technical Notes and Background 
 
A. This is the first presentation of the Council’s progress against the new Corporate and 

Strategic Equality Plan.  The Quarter 1 Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan 
Scorecard shows the Council’s performance against its expectations between April 
and June 2023.   
 

B. The new performance year commenced on 01 April 2023 to coincide with the 
publication of the Council’s new Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan: Stronger, 
Fairer, Greener.  (We abbreviate references to this plan as ‘CSEP’.) 
 

C. The purpose of the CSEP is to present the well-being priorities for the Council for the 
years 2023 to 2027, which support the seven national well-being goals of the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The Council’s priorities are its three 
corporate well-being objectives, which are: 

1. We will improve people’s awareness of services, and how to access them, so 
that they can make informed choices.  

2. We will support good quality, sustainable, employment, providing training 
opportunities, and pursuing real living wage employer accreditation.  

3. We will work to tackle poverty and inequality to support the well-being of the 
people of Powys. 

 
D. The CSEP contains all the priority work for the Council, driven by the Cabinet’s work 

programme and ambitions.  The objectives and measures integrate the equality 
objectives and measures to ensure that we work towards a fairer Powys in all aspects 
of our work, and that equality is at the heart of our approach. 

 
E. The well-being objectives are organisation-wide areas of focus that we actively 

pursue so that we can make positive improvements to our services.  The performance 
process helps the Council to reflect on the year so far, to evaluate its approaches and 
contributions, to consider what has been learned, and to plan what actions can or 
should be taken to support ongoing progress.   

 
F. The new reporting system only provides the following options for identifying progress 

against a measure target: 
• On track 
• Off track 
• No data (data not due to be reported) 
• Not reported (data unexpectedly unavailable or not yet provided) 

 
Importantly, measure statuses are automatically calculated by the system as an 
indicator to identify whether the progress towards the activity met planned 
expectations (the targets).  These statuses are used as conversation starts to enable 
activities to be considered in a more detailed context to determine what went well, 
where more or different support or resource may be necessary, and what lessons 
may be learned. 

 
 

Tudalen 13

http://www.powys.gov.uk/ourvision
http://www.powys.gov.uk/ourvision
http://www.powys.gov.uk/ourvision
https://www.gov.wales/well-being-of-future-generations-wales


Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
29th September 2023 

 
CABINET EXECUTIVE 
19th September 2023 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: County Councillor David Thomas 

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Corporate 
Transformation 

  
REPORT TITLE: Treasury Management Quarter 1 Report 
  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Information 

 
1 Purpose  
 
1.1 CIPFA’s 2009 Treasury Management Bulletin suggested: 

‘In order to enshrine best practice, it is suggested that authorities report formally 
on treasury management activities at least twice a year and preferably quarterly.’ 

 
The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management emphasises a number of 
key areas including the following: 

 
xi. Treasury management performance and policy setting should be subject 

to scrutiny prior to implementation. 
 
1.2 In line with the above, this report is providing information on the activities for the 

quarter ending 30th June 2023. 
 
2 Background 
 
2.1  The Capital and Treasury Management Strategy (CTMS) approved by Full 

Council on 23rd February 2023 can be found here - 
powys.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s77379/Appendix H Capital and Treasury 
Management Strategy 2023-28.pdf 

 
3 Advice 
 
3.1 Investments 
 
3.2 The Authority’s investment priorities within the Strategy are. 
 

(a) the security of capital, then, 
(b) the liquidity of its investments then 
(c) the yield 

 

Tudalen 15

5

https://powys.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s77379/Appendix%20H%20Capital%20and%20Treasury%20Management%20Strategy%202023-28.pdf
https://powys.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s77379/Appendix%20H%20Capital%20and%20Treasury%20Management%20Strategy%202023-28.pdf


3.3 The Authority aims to achieve the optimum return on its investments 
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. The risk appetite has 
been low in order to give priority to security of investments. With interest rates 
for investments remaining lower than borrowing rates, the use of cash reserves 
as opposed to borrowing is prudent and cost-effective. 

 
3.4 Short-term money market investment rates have continued to increase following 

the two increases to the Bank Rate in the last quarter. Due to the uncertainty 
around the short term cash requirements, we have continued to hold any surplus 
funds in the council’s deposit accounts. These funds have earned interest 
totalling £0.16 million for the first quarter of this financial year.   

 
3.5 Investment returns on inter-authority lending have increased in line with the 

increased interest rates. When looking at temporary investing, the Treasury team 
consider the bank fee to set up the arrangement, because of this cost some 
investments are not cost effective for very short periods of time. However, the 
Authority does not have sufficient certainty around its cashflow to lend for longer 
periods where the return is higher.   

 
3.6 The Authority had no other investments on 30th June 2023. 
 
3.7 Credit Rating Changes 
 
3.8 There have been no credit rating changes relevant to this Authority’s position 

during the last quarter. 
 
3.9 The Authority’s Capital Position 
 
3.10 The 2023/24 Capital Programme was approved by Council on the 23rd February 

2023. It included capital schemes totalling £93.29 million, of which £23.48 million 
related to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). The programme has been 
updated following the reprofiling of projects and additional grants received from 
Welsh Government. The revised programme at the 30th June 2023 is budgeted 
at £102.50 million following the successful award of additional grants and the 
reprofiling of budgets between financial years. Actual spend amounts to £7.61 
million, representing 7.4% of the total budget. 

 
  

Tudalen 16



3.11 Table 1 - Breakdown by service 

Service Original 
Budget 

Virements 
Approved 

Revised 
Budget Actuals  Commitments  Remaining 

Budget 

 £,000  £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 % 
Adult Services 200 922 1,122 6 240 1,116 99.5% 
Childrens Services 0 379 379 23 43 356 93.9% 
Education 33,005 (4,862) 28,143 3,047 11,193 25,096 89.2% 
Highways Transport & 
Recycling 12,681 6,135 18,816 2,513 4,557 16,303 86.6% 

Property, Planning & 
Public Protection 100 998 1,098 50 237 1,048 95.4% 

Community 
Development 922 1,337 2,259 (42) 739 2,301 101.9% 

Housing General Fund 1,748 1,279 3,027 533 461 2,494 82.4% 
Economy & Digital 
Services 16,196 (1,690) 14,506 (344) 7,908 14,850 102.4% 

Finance 4,953 (454) 4,499 0 75 4,499 100.0% 
Total Capital 69,805 4,044 73,849 5,786 25,453 68,063 92.2% 
Housing Revenue 
Account 23,482 5,165 28,647 1,826 4,822 26,821 93.6% 

TOTAL 93,287 9,209 102,496 7,612 30,275 94,884 92.6% 
 
3.12 Currently 48%, £48.82 million, of the capital expenditure is budgeted to be 

financed by borrowing, the interest cost for this is charged to the revenue 
account. Finance will be working with the services to ensure the profiling of 
budgets is accurate to effectively manage the borrowing. 

3.13 Chart 1 – Capital Programme funding 

 

Borrowing, £48.82m

Grants, £42.49m

Revenue 
Contribution, £6.48m

Capital Receipts, 
£4.72m

Borrowing Grants Revenue Contribution Capital Receipts

Tudalen 17



3.14 Inflation continues to have a severe impact on the cost of schemes due to rising 
material and construction costs. It is unclear at this stage how this will impact the 
programme over the coming years. Services are aware of the impact and are 
mitigating these increases as far as possible but is likely that schemes will be 
reduced or paused. Any additional funding required is likely to be raised with 
further borrowing, this will increase costs on the revenue budget so must be 
minimised. 

 
3.15 The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). This figure is a gauge of the Council’s 
indebtedness. It represents the current year’s unfinanced capital expenditure and 
prior years’ net or unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for 
by revenue or other resources. 

 
3.16 Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for 

this borrowing need. Depending on the capital expenditure, the Council’s cash 
position is managed to ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet the capital 
plans and cash flow requirements. This may be sourced through external 
borrowing or utilising temporary cash resources within the Council. 

 
3.17 Net external borrowing (borrowings less investments) should not, except in the 

short term, exceed the total of CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of 
any additional CFR for the current year and next two financial years. This allows 
some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years. 

 
3.18 Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 

£’m Total  HRA Council Fund 
Opening Balance – 1st April 2023   

Original Estimates1 439.71 108.5 331.21 
Actual Balance 422.21 104.31 317.90 
Closing Balance – 31st March 2024   

Original Estimates1  466.79 119.45 347.34 
Quarter 1 Estimate 465.53 120.76 344.77 
Closing Balance – 31st March 2025   

Original Estimates1  498.71 135.79 362.92 
Quarter 1 Estimate 497.81 136.75 361.06 
Closing Balance – 31st March 2026   

Original Estimates1  536.72 157.13 379.59 
Quarter 1 Estimate 529.73 157.74 369.99 

 
1 Original estimate included in the CTMS approved by Full Council on 23rd 
February 2023. 
 

3.19 Borrowing / Re-scheduling 
 

Tudalen 18



3.20 Effective management of the Authority’s debt is essential to ensure that the 
impact of interest payable is minimised against our revenue accounts whilst 
maintaining prudent borrowing policies. 

 
3.21 The chart below shows the changes in PLWB interest rates since the start of the 

April 20223. PWLB borrowing rates are based on the Gilts market. Overall, rates 
have increased since the last report but remain significantly higher than the 50 
year target. 

 

 
 
3.22 A prohibition is still in place to deny access to borrowing from the Public Works 

Loan Board (PWLB) for any local authority which had purchase of assets for yield 
in its three year capital programme. There are currently no schemes for yield in 
the Capital Programme. With the significant amounts of borrowing in the future 
Capital Programme, the inability to access PWLB borrowing will need to be a 
major consideration for any future purchases of assets for yield. The additional 
income these assets generate must be sufficient to cover the increased 
borrowing costs, as borrowing sources other than the PWLB are likely to be more 
expensive. 

 
3.23 Debt Maturity Profile 
 

1.80%

2.20%

2.60%

3.00%

3.40%

3.80%

4.20%

4.60%

5.00%

5.40%

5.80%

6.20%

6.60%
PWLB Rates 3.4.23 - 30.6.23

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 50 year target %

Tudalen 19



 
Key Blue = PWLB; Grey = Inter Authority Borrowing; Orange = Market Loans 
 
3.24 £5.00 million borrowing from another local authority has been repaid during the 

last quarter together, this has been refinanced by the PWLB borrowing that was 
taken out in late March 2023. With the uncertain economic position and as 
outlined by Link later in this report, it is anticipated that borrowing rates will fall 
over the next few years, so we need to ensure that the council isn’t locked into 
higher rate borrowing for long periods, to allow flexibility to take advantage should 
rates drop. 

 
3.25 A further £1.50 million PWLB is due to be repaid in the next quarter together with 

£5.00 million borrowed from another local authority. The council is still holding 
£17.40 million for the Global Centre of Rail Excellence (GCRE) and had until 31 
March 2023 to progress to the full business case position. Correspondence with 
Welsh Government have since highlighted that the Council would like to return 
this as it feels the circumstances of the original agreement have changed 
significantly. Depending on the amounts being repaid during the next quarter it 
may need to be replaced with some short term borrowing to absorb this 
repayment alongside the commitments in the capital programme. 

 
3.26 With the changes to the MRP policy and the delayed requirement to borrow, the 

revenue budget set aside to cover these costs is projected to be underutilised in 
this financial year, however as demonstrated in the tables later in the report, 
these costs are likely to increase year on year. 

 
3.27 PWLB Loans Rescheduling 
 
3.28 Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic 

climate and following the various increases in the margins added to gilt yields 
which have impacted PWLB new borrowing rates since October 2010. Existing 
borrowing rates remain lower than current rates, therefore no debt rescheduling 
has been undertaken to date in the current financial year.   

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

20
23

/2
4

20
25

/2
6

20
27

/2
8

20
29

/3
0

20
31

/3
2

20
33

/3
4

20
35

/3
6

20
37

/3
8

20
39

/4
0

20
41

/4
2

20
43

/4
4

20
45

/4
6

20
47

/4
8

20
49

/5
0

20
51

/5
2

20
53

/5
4

20
55

/5
6

20
57

/5
8

20
59

/6
0

20
61

/6
2

20
63

/6
4

20
65

/6
6

20
67

/6
8

20
69

/7
0

20
71

/7
2

20
73

/7
4

20
75

/7
6

20
77

/7
8

20
79

/8
0

Debt Maturity Profile
£ 

M

Financial Year

Tudalen 20



3.29 Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
 
3.30 This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital, (borrowing and other long 

term obligation costs net of investment income), against the Councils net 
revenue budget (net revenue stream). The estimates of financing costs include 
current commitments and the proposals in the capital programme.  

 
£’m 2023/24 Estimate 2024/25 Estimate 2025/26 Estimate 

From the approved CTMS 2023/24   

Financing Costs 13.66 14.49 14.65 
Net Revenue Stream 326.54 338.53 348.39 
% 4.2% 4.3% 4.2% 
Quarter 1 estimates    

Financing Costs 12.71 14.48 14.3 
Net Revenue Stream 326.54 338.53 348.39 
% 3.9% 4.3% 4.1% 

 
3.31 The table above shows the capital financing costs and the change between those 

disclosed in the 2023/24 Treasury Management and Capital Strategy. Interest 
rates are expected to continue to rise in the short term before reducing. There is 
significant risk that these costs may increase if rates increase faster or do no fall 
in line with the current forecast. The latest estimates assume that significant 
further borrowing will be required before the end of the financial year. The amount 
will depend on the cash position of the council and the interest rates available so 
this figure may change before the end of the financial year. There is sufficient 
budget to cover these costs in this financial year, future years increases will need 
to be factored into the proposed 2024/25 budget. 

 
3.32 The change has been caused by the reduced borrowing requirement to support 

the capital programme in 2022/23 and future years. This has been the result of 
reprofiling of budgets into future years. This has allowed the council to defer the 
date that it expected to take out additional borrowing, reducing the current 
interest costs, however this borrowing will still be required in the future. 

 
3.33 Prudential Indicators 
 
3.34 All Treasury Management Prudential Indicators were complied with in the quarter 

ending 30th June 2023. 
 
3.35 Economic Background and Forecasts 
 
3.36 The forecast of interest rates by the Authority’s advisor at the 26th June 2023 are 

shown below. The rates have fluctuated over the last few months but are 
expected to reduce slightly over the next few years. The current higher rates will 
increase the cost of borrowing over the next few years.  The revised Medium 
Term Financial Strategy has been updated to take account of these changes.  

Tudalen 21



 
 
3.37 The economic background provided by our treasury advisers; Link Group at the 

30th June 2023 is attached at Appendix A. It should be noted that this was 
provided at the end of the quarter and certain factors may have changed since 
then. 

 
3.38 Sundry Debt 
 
3.39 The prompt collection of debt and encouraging payment as soon as possible 

helps the Councils cashflow position, reducing the need for short term borrowing. 
 
3.40 The following table outlines the Council’s outstanding sundry debt at the 10th July 

2023 of £17.29 million, up from £11.64 million last quarter. This does not include 
Council Tax arrears. 

 

 
  

2 There is a further £0.03 million outstanding debt with the local health board that sits 
outside this figure. 

 

Link Group Interest Rate View 26.06.23
Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25 Jun-25 Sep-25 Dec-25 Mar-26 Jun-26

BANK RATE 5.00 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.25 4.75 4.25 3.75 3.25 2.75 2.75 2.50 2.50
  3 month ave earnings 5.30 5.60 5.50 5.30 5.00 4.50 4.00 3.50 3.00 2.70 2.60 2.50 2.50
  6 month ave earnings 5.80 5.90 5.70 5.50 5.10 4.60 4.00 3.50 3.00 2.70 2.60 2.60 2.60
12 month ave earnings 6.30 6.20 6.00 5.70 5.30 4.80 4.10 3.60 3.10 2.80 2.70 2.70 2.70
5 yr   PWLB 5.50 5.60 5.30 5.10 4.80 4.50 4.20 3.90 3.60 3.40 3.30 3.30 3.20
10 yr PWLB 5.10 5.20 5.00 4.90 4.70 4.40 4.20 3.90 3.70 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.40
25 yr PWLB 5.30 5.40 5.20 5.10 4.90 4.70 4.50 4.20 4.00 3.90 3.80 3.80 3.70
50 yr PWLB 5.00 5.10 5.00 4.90 4.70 4.50 4.30 4.00 3.80 3.60 3.60 3.50 3.50

Service

Current 
Debt

(30 days 
or less)

Aged 
Debt

(31 to 60 
days)

Aged 
Debt

(61 - 90 
days)

Aged Debt
(Over 90 

days)

Total
Aged Debt

Change 
from 

previous 
quarter

Trend Since Q1 
2022/23

Adult Services 2 1,387,853 5,143,697 217,682 6,421,736 11,783,115 4,885,980

Childrens Services 0 36,979 989 161,131 199,099 26,589

Corporate, Legal & 
Democratic Services 730 167 0 5,880 6,047 (12,854)

Economy & Digital Services 48,379 673 304 71,177 72,153 (380,559)

Finance 231,582 85,879 158,464 625,332 869,675 188,093

Highways, Transport & 
Recycling 794,568 262,491 153,384 684,155 1,100,029 (68,003)

Housing 103,016 22,088 630 1,027,948 1,050,665 392,491

Community Services 12,804 4,006 4,937 43,131 52,075 3,536

Other 36,776 5,672 1,606 36,176 43,454 (329,872)

Property, Planning & Public 
Protection 280,728 48,583 34,151 1,374,661 1,457,394 630,145

Schools 23,130 198,132 0 390,548 588,679 311,688

Workforce & Organisation 
Development 130,816 40,872 10,434 17,567 68,872 (381)

Total 3,050,382 5,849,237 582,579 10,859,442 17,291,258 5,646,854

Tudalen 22



3.41 The £3.05 million shown in the current debt column relates to invoices that are 
less than 30 days old, overdue debt is classed as overdue when it is above 30 
days after the invoice date.  

 
3.42 The total debt represents 27% of the annual generated income (excluding 

Council Tax and NNDR), if you exclude the current debt (less than 30 days old) 
this falls to 23% up from 16% last quarter. 

 
3.43 There is a significant level of aged debt (over 30 days old) which has increased 

by £5.65 million since the last quarter. The majority of that increase relates to 
Powys Teaching Health Board (PtHB) debt mainly within adult social care. 

 
3.44 The table in 3.40 shows that around two thirds of the over three month debt is 

adult social care debt. This is more difficult to collect as Welsh Government will 
not allow bailiff action on residential care fees and court action only as a last 
resort.  This debt relates to a high proportion of elderly and vulnerable customers, 
and often deferred charges are placed on their properties, which requires waiting 
for houses to be sold and estates to be realised which is often a lengthy process.  

 
3.45 The table below shows the key performance indicators since the start of the 

financial year. 
  

£'m PtHB Debt Non PtHB 
Debt Total Debt 

Deferred 
Charge 
Secured 

Payments 
Received 

Debt 
Written 

off 3 
Collection 

Rate 

April 3.130 13.280 16.410 0.470 7.491 0.000 37% 
May 7.350 12.490 19.840 0.404 3.383 0.001 45% 
June 6.910 11.990 18.900 0.404 4.288 0.000 48% 

 
3 Debt is written off in line with the council’s debt policy. 
 
3.46 Council Tax and NNDR Collection 
 
3.47 The in-year collection rates at the end of June 2023 (Quarter 1) for Council tax 

and NNDR are shown below. 
 
 Council Tax 27.28% (0.02% down compared to same point during 2022/23) 

NNDR  31.33% (5.58% up compared to same point during 2022/23) 
 
3.48 £5.28 million of Council Tax and £0.95 million NNDR remains uncollected from 

previous financial years. Collection of monies during the ongoing cost of living 
crisis is challenging, however robust procedures are in place to pursue all monies 
owed to the Council, both for the current year and previous final years. 

 
3.49 VAT 
 
3.50 The Technical Section of Finance act as the authority’s VAT section.  VAT can 

pose a risk to the authority hence this report includes VAT information. 
 

Tudalen 23



3.51 The monthly VAT returns were submitted within the required deadlines during 
this quarter. 

 
3.52 Key Performance Indicators - The VAT KPI’s for 2023/24 are attached at 

Appendix B.   
 
4. Resource Implications 
 
a. N/A 
 
5. Legal implications 
 
5.1 N/A 
 
6. Data Protection 
 
6.1 N/A 
 
7.  Comment from local member(s) 
 
7.1 N/A 
 
8.   Impact Assessment 
 
8.1 N/A 
 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 This report has been provided for information and there are no decisions 

required. 
 
Contact Officer: James Chappelle 
Tel:   01597 826492 
Email:                       james.chappelle@powys.gov.uk 
 
Head of Service:      Jane Thomas 

 

Tudalen 24



Appendix A – Update provided by Link Group on the 30th June 2023 
 

1. Economics update 
 

• The first quarter of 2023/24 saw:  
- A 0.2% m/m rise in real GDP in April, partly due to fewer strikes;  
- CPI inflation falling from 10.1% to 8.7% in April, before remaining at 8.7% in 

May.  This was the highest reading in the G7; 
- Core CPI inflation rise in both April and May, reaching a new 31-year high of 

7.1%; 
- A tighter labour market in April, as the 3myy growth of average earnings rose 

from 6.1% to 6.5%; 
- Interest rates rise by a further 75bps over the quarter, taking Bank Rate from 

4.25% to 5.00%;  
- 10-year gilt yields nearing the “mini-Budget” peaks, as inflation surprised to the 

upside. 
• The economy has weathered the drag from higher inflation better than was widely 

expected. The 0.2% m/m rise in real GDP in April, following March’s 0.3% m/m 
contraction will further raise hopes that the economy will escape a recession this 
year. Some of the strength in April was due to fewer strikes by train workers and 
teachers in that month. Moreover, some of the falls in activity in other areas in April 
were probably temporary too. Strikes by junior doctors and civil servants 
contributed to the fall in health output (0.9% m/m) and the meagre 0.1% m/m 
increase in public administration. 

• The fall in the composite Purchasing Managers Index (PMI) from 54.0 in May to a 
three-month low of 52.8 in June (>50 points to expansion in the economy, <50 
points to contraction) was worse than the consensus forecast of 53.6. Both the 
services and manufacturing PMIs fell. The decline in the services PMI was bigger 
(from 55.2 to 53.7), but it remains consistent with services activity expanding by an 
annualised 2%. The fall in the manufacturing PMI was smaller (from 47.1 to 46.2), 
but it is consistent with the annual rate of manufacturing output falling from -0.8% 
in April to around -5.0%. At face value, the composite PMI points to the 0.1% q/q 
rise in GDP in Q1 2023 being followed by a 0.2% q/q gain in Q2 2023. 

• Meanwhile, the 0.3% m/m rise in retail sales volumes in May was far better than 
the consensus forecast of a 0.2% m/m decline and followed the robust 0.5% m/m 
rise in April. Some of the rise was due to the warmer weather. Indeed, the largest 
move was a 2.7% m/m jump in non-store sales, due to people stocking up on 
outdoor-related goods. But department stores also managed to squeeze out a 
0.6% m/m rise in sales and the household goods sub-sector enjoyed a reasonable 
performance too. Overall, the figures were far better than analysts had expected. 
In addition, the GfK measure of consumer confidence rebounded from -27 to a 17-
month high of -24 in June. 

• The recent resilience of the economy has been due to a confluence of factors 
including the continued rebound in activity after the pandemic, households 
spending some of their pandemic savings, and the tight labour market and 

Tudalen 25



government handouts both supporting household incomes. That said, as 
government support fades, real household incomes are unlikely to grow rapidly. 
Furthermore, higher interest rates will mean GDP is likely to contract later this year. 
Our central assumption is that inflation will drop to the 2.0% target only if the Bank 
triggers a recession by raising rates from 5.00% now to at least 5.5% and keeps 
rates there until at least mid-2024.  Our colleagues at Capital Economics estimate 
that around 60% of the drag on real activity from the rise in rates has yet to bite, 
and the drag on the quarterly rate of real GDP growth over the next year may be 
about 0.2ppts bigger than over the past year. 

• The labour market became tighter over the quarter and wage growth reaccelerated. 
Labour demand was stronger than the consensus had expected. The three-month 
change in employment rose from +182,000 in March to +250,000 in April. 
Meanwhile, labour supply continued to recover as the size of the labour force grew 
by 303,000 in the three months to April. That was supported by a further 140,000 
decline in inactivity as people returned to work from retirement and caring 
responsibilities (while inactivity due to long-term sick continued to rise). But it was 
not enough to offset the big rise in employment, which meant the unemployment 
rate fell from 3.9% to 3.8% 

• The tighter labour market supported wage growth in April, although the 9.7% rise 
in the National Living Wage on 1st April (compared to the 6.6% increase in April 
last year) probably had a lot to do with it too. The 3myy rate of average earnings 
growth reaccelerated from 6.1% to 6.5% (consensus 6.1%) and UK wage growth 
remains much faster than in the US and the Euro-zone.  In addition, regular private 
sector wage growth increased from 7.1% 3myy to 7.6%, which left it well above the 
Bank’s forecast for it to fall below 7.0%. Overall, the loosening in the labour market 
appears to have stalled in April and regular private sector wage growth was well 
above the Bank’s forecast. 

• CPI inflation stayed at 8.7% in May (consensus 8.4%) and, perhaps more 
worryingly, core CPI inflation rose again, from 6.8% to a new 31-year high of 7.1%. 
The rise in core inflation built on the leap from 6.2% in March to 6.8% and means 
it is accelerating in the UK while it is slowing in the US and the Euro-zone (both fell 
to 5.3%). A further decline in fuel inflation, from -8.9% to -13.1%, and the second 
fall in food inflation in as many months, from 19.3% to 18.7%, explained why overall 
CPI inflation didn’t rise. And the scheduled fall in the average annual utility price 
from £2,500 to £2,074 on 1st July means overall CPI inflation will probably ease in 
the coming months. But the problem is that the recent surge in core inflation and 
the reacceleration in wage growth shows that domestic inflationary pressures are 
still strengthening. 

• This suggests the Bank may have more work to do than the Fed or ECB.  Indeed, 
the Bank of England sounded somewhat hawkish in the June meeting. This came 
through most in the MPC’s decision to step up the pace of hiking from the 25bps 
at the previous two meetings. The 7-2 vote, with only two members voting to leave 
rates unchanged at 4.50%, revealed support for stepping up the fight against high 
inflation. 

• That said, the Bank has not committed to raising rates again or suggested that 
50bps rises are now the norm. What it did say was that “the scale of the recent 
upside surprises in official estimates of wage growth and services CPI inflation 
suggested a 0.5 percentage point increase in interest rates was required at this 

Tudalen 26



particular meeting”.  Moreover, the Committee did not strengthen its forward 
guidance that any further rate hikes would be conditional on the data.  However, it 
looks highly probable, given the on-going strength of inflation and employment 
data, that the Bank will need to raise rates to at least 5.5% and to keep rates at 
their peak until the mid-point of 2024.  We still think it is only a matter of time before 
the rise in rates weakens the economy sufficiently to push it into recession. That is 
why instead of rising to between 6.00%-6.25%, as is currently priced in by markets, 
we think rates are more likely to peak between 5.50-6.00%. Our forecast is also for 
rates to be cut in the second half of 2024, and we expect rates to then fall further 
than markets are pricing in.  

• Growing evidence that UK price pressures are becoming increasingly domestically 
generated has driven up market interest rate expectations and at one point pushed 
the 10-year gilt yield up to 4.49% in late June, very close to its peak seen after the 
“mini-budget”. Yields have since fallen slightly back to 4.38%. But growing 
expectations that rates in the UK will remain higher for longer than in the US mean 
they are still more than 70 bps above US yields. While higher interest rates are 
priced into the markets, the likely dent to the real economy from the high level of 
interest rates is not. That’s why we think there is scope for market rate expectations 
to fall back in 2024 and why we expect the 10-year PWLB Certainty Rate to drop 
back from c5.20% to 5.00% by the end of this year and to 4.20% by the end of 
2024. 

• The pound strengthened from $1.24 at the start of April to a one-year high at $1.26 
in early May, which was partly due to the risks from the global banking issues being 
seen as a bigger problem for the US than the UK. The pound then fell back to $1.23 
at the end of May, before rising again to $1.28 in the middle of June as the strong 
core CPI inflation data released in June suggested the Bank of England was going 
to have to raise rates more than the Fed or ECB in order to tame domestic inflation. 
However, sterling’s strong run may falter because more hikes in the near term to 
combat high inflation are likely to weaken growth (and, hopefully, at some point 
inflation too) to such a degree that the policy rate will probably be brought back 
down, potentially quite quickly, as the economic cycle trends downwards 
decisively. This suggests that additional rate hikes are unlikely to do much to boost 
the pound. 
In early April, investors turned more optimistic about global GDP growth, pushing 
up UK equity prices. But this period of optimism appears to have been short-lived. 
The FTSE 100 has fallen by 4.8% since 21st April, from around 7,914 to 7,553, 
reversing part of the 7.9% rise since 17th March. Despite the recent resilience of 
economic activity, expectations for equity earnings have become a bit more 
downbeat.  Nonetheless, further down the track, more rate cuts than markets 
anticipate should help the FTSE 100 rally.  

MPC meetings 11th May and 22nd June 2023 
• On 11th May, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) increased 

Bank Rate by 25 basis points to 4.50%, and on 22nd June moved rates up a further 
50 basis points to 5.00%.  Both increases reflected a split vote – seven members 
voting for an increase and two for none.   

• Nonetheless, with UK inflation significantly higher than in other G7 countries, the 
MPC will have a difficult task in convincing investors that they will be able to 

Tudalen 27



dampen inflation pressures anytime soon.  Talk of the Bank’s inflation models 
being “broken” is perhaps another reason why gilt investors are demanding a 
premium relative to US and Euro-zone bonds, for example. 

• Of course, what happens outside of the UK is also critical to movement in gilt yields.  
The US FOMC has already hiked short-term rates to a range of 5.00%-5.25%, but 
a further increase is pencilled in for July, whilst the ECB looks likely to raise its 
Deposit rate at least once more to a peak of 3.75%, with upside risk of higher to 
come.  
 

2. Interest rate forecasts 
 
The Council has appointed Link Group as its treasury advisors and part of their service 
is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The PWLB rate forecasts 
below are based on the Certainty Rate (the standard rate minus 20 bps) which has 
been accessible to most authorities since 1st November 2012.  
 
The latest forecast, made on 26th June, sets out a view that both short and long-dated 
interest rates will be elevated for some little while, as the Bank of England seeks to 
squeeze inflation out of the economy, against a backdrop of a stubbornly robust 
economy and a tight labour market. 
 
You will note that our forecasts have steadily increased during the quarter as the data 
continued to spring upside surprises, and the Bank of England continued to under-
estimate how prevalent inflation is, and how tight the labour market is.  The 
Government has also noted that despite immigration increasing markedly, high levels 
of ill-health amongst the workforce has led to wage demands remaining strong until 
such time as there is a loosening in demand for business services. 
 
Our current and previous PWLB rate forecasts below are based on the Certainty Rate.  

 

 

Link Group Interest Rate View 26.06.23
Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25 Jun-25 Sep-25 Dec-25 Mar-26 Jun-26

BANK RATE 5.00 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.25 4.75 4.25 3.75 3.25 2.75 2.75 2.50 2.50
  3 month ave earnings 5.30 5.60 5.50 5.30 5.00 4.50 4.00 3.50 3.00 2.70 2.60 2.50 2.50
  6 month ave earnings 5.80 5.90 5.70 5.50 5.10 4.60 4.00 3.50 3.00 2.70 2.60 2.60 2.60
12 month ave earnings 6.30 6.20 6.00 5.70 5.30 4.80 4.10 3.60 3.10 2.80 2.70 2.70 2.70
5 yr   PWLB 5.50 5.60 5.30 5.10 4.80 4.50 4.20 3.90 3.60 3.40 3.30 3.30 3.20
10 yr PWLB 5.10 5.20 5.00 4.90 4.70 4.40 4.20 3.90 3.70 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.40
25 yr PWLB 5.30 5.40 5.20 5.10 4.90 4.70 4.50 4.20 4.00 3.90 3.80 3.80 3.70
50 yr PWLB 5.00 5.10 5.00 4.90 4.70 4.50 4.30 4.00 3.80 3.60 3.60 3.50 3.50

Link Group Interest Rate View 24.05.23
Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25 Jun-25 Sep-25 Dec-25 Mar-26 Jun-26

BANK RATE 4.75 5.00 5.00 4.75 4.50 4.00 3.50 3.25 2.75 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
  3 month ave earnings 4.80 5.00 5.00 4.80 4.50 4.00 3.50 3.30 2.80 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
  6 month ave earnings 5.10 5.20 5.10 4.90 4.50 3.90 3.40 3.20 2.90 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60
12 month ave earnings 5.40 5.40 5.30 5.00 4.50 3.90 3.40 3.20 2.90 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.70
5 yr   PWLB 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.80 4.50 4.10 3.70 3.50 3.30 3.20 3.20 3.10 3.10
10 yr PWLB 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.80 4.40 4.10 3.80 3.60 3.50 3.40 3.30 3.30 3.30
25 yr PWLB 5.30 5.30 5.20 5.10 4.80 4.50 4.20 4.00 3.80 3.70 3.60 3.60 3.60
50 yr PWLB 5.10 5.10 5.00 4.90 4.60 4.30 4.00 3.80 3.60 3.50 3.40 3.40 3.40

Tudalen 28



 
• LIBOR and LIBID rates ceased at the end of 2021. In a continuation of previous 

views, money market yield forecasts are based on expected average earnings by 
local authorities for 3 to 12 months. 

• The Link forecast for average earnings are averages i.e., rates offered by individual 
banks may differ significantly from these averages, reflecting their different needs 
for borrowing short-term cash at any one point in time. 

Link Group Interest Rate View 27.03.23
Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25 Jun-25 Sep-25 Dec-25 Mar-26

BANK RATE 4.50 4.50 4.25 4.00 3.50 3.25 3.00 2.75 2.75 2.50 2.50 2.50
  3 month ave earnings 4.50 4.50 4.30 4.00 3.50 3.30 3.00 2.80 2.80 2.50 2.50 2.50
  6 month ave earnings 4.50 4.40 4.20 3.90 3.40 3.20 2.90 2.80 2.80 2.60 2.60 2.60
12 month ave earnings 4.50 4.40 4.20 3.80 3.30 3.10 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.70 2.70
5 yr   PWLB 4.10 4.10 3.90 3.80 3.70 3.60 3.50 3.40 3.30 3.20 3.20 3.10
10 yr PWLB 4.20 4.20 4.00 3.90 3.80 3.70 3.50 3.50 3.40 3.30 3.30 3.20
25 yr PWLB 4.60 4.50 4.40 4.20 4.10 4.00 3.80 3.70 3.60 3.50 3.50 3.40
50 yr PWLB 4.30 4.20 4.10 3.90 3.80 3.70 3.50 3.50 3.30 3.20 3.20 3.10

Tudalen 29



A SUMMARY OVERVIEW OF THE FUTURE PATH OF BANK RATE 
 

• Our central forecast for interest rates was previously updated on 25th May and 
reflected a view that the MPC would be keen to further demonstrate its anti-
inflation credentials by delivering a succession of rate increases.  This has 
happened to a degree, especially as it moved to a more aggressive 0.5% hike 
in June but, with inflation remaining elevated, we anticipate that Bank Rate will 
need to increase to at least 5.5%, if not higher, to sufficiently slow the UK 
economy and loosen the labour market. 

• Moreover, we also still anticipate the Bank of England will be keen to loosen 
monetary policy when the worst of the inflationary pressures are behind us – 
but timing on this will remain one of fine judgment: cut too soon, and inflationary 
pressures may well build up further; cut too late and any downturn or recession 
may be prolonged.  Our current judgment is that rates will have to increase and 
stay at their peak until the second quarter of 2024 as a minimum. 

• In the upcoming months, our forecasts will be guided not only by economic data 
releases and clarifications from the MPC over its monetary policies and the 
Government over its fiscal policies, but also international factors such as policy 
development in the US and Europe, the provision of fresh support packages to 
support the faltering recovery in China as well as the on-going conflict between 
Russia and Ukraine and whether there are any further implications for Russia 
itself following the recent aborted mutiny by the Wagner group.  

• On the positive side, consumers are still estimated to be sitting on excess 
savings left over from the pandemic, which could cushion some of the impact 
of the above challenges and may be the reason why the economy is performing 
somewhat better at this stage of the economic cycle than may have been 
expected.  However, most of those excess savings are held by more affluent 
people whereas lower income families already spend nearly all their income on 
essentials such as food, energy and rent/mortgage payments.  

PWLB RATES 

• Gilt yield curve movements have shifted upwards, especially at the shorter end 
of the yield curve since our previous forecast but remain relatively volatile.  
PWLB 5 to 50 years Certainty Rates are, generally, in the range of 4.90% to 
5.60%.   

• We view the markets as having built in, already, nearly all the effects on gilt 
yields of the likely increases in Bank Rate and the elevated inflation outlook.  

 
The balance of risks to the UK economy: - 

• The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is to the downside. 
 

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates include: - 
 

• Labour and supply shortages prove more enduring and disruptive and depress 
economic activity (accepting that in the near-term this is also an upside risk to 
inflation and, thus, the rising gilt yields we have seen of late). 

Tudalen 30



 
• The Bank of England increases Bank Rate too fast and too far over the coming 

months, and subsequently brings about a deeper and longer UK recession than we 
currently anticipate.  
 

• UK / EU trade arrangements – if there was a major impact on trade flows and 
financial services due to complications or lack of co-operation in sorting out 
significant remaining issues.  

 
• Geopolitical risks, for example in Ukraine/Russia, China/Taiwan/US, Iran, North 

Korea and Middle Eastern countries, which could lead to increasing safe-haven 
flows.  
 

• A broadening of banking sector fragilities, which have been successfully 
addressed in the near-term by central banks and the market generally, but which 
may require further intervention if short-term interest rates stay elevated for longer 
than is anticipated. 
 

Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates: - 
 

• Despite the recent tightening by 0.5%, the Bank of England proves too timid in 
its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate and, therefore, allows inflationary 
pressures to remain elevated for a longer period within the UK economy, which 
then necessitates Bank Rate staying higher for longer than we currently project. 
 

• The pound weakens because of a lack of confidence in the UK Government’s 
fiscal policies, resulting in investors pricing in a risk premium for holding UK 
sovereign debt. 
 

• Longer-term US treasury yields rise strongly if inflation remains more stubborn 
than the market currently anticipates, pulling gilt yields up higher consequently. 
 

• Projected gilt issuance, inclusive of natural maturities and QT, could be too 
much for the markets to comfortably digest without higher yields compensating. 

  

Tudalen 31



Appendix B - VAT - Key Performance Indicators 
 
Creditor Invoices 
 

VAT 
return for 

Nº of high value Creditor 
invoices checked 

Nº of Creditor invoices 
highlighted as requiring 
"proper" document for 

VAT recovery 

% of creditor invoices 
checked requiring 

"proper" document for 
VAT recovery 

Apr-23 237 4 1.7% 
May-23 247 1 0.4% 
Jun-23 316 0 0.0% 

 
Income Management Entries 
 

VAT 
return for 

Nº of entries checked by 
formula per the ledger 

account code used 

Nº of entries needing 
follow up check (but not 
necessarily incorrect). 

% of entries needing 
follow up check 

Apr-23 789 0 0.0% 
May-23 1,775 3 0.2% 
Jun-23 1,116 3 0.3% 

 
 
Debtor Invoices 
 

VAT 
return for 

Nº of Debtor invoices 
checked  

Nº of checked debtor 
invoices with incorrect 

VAT code used 
% of debtor invoices 

with incorrect VAT code 

Apr-23 117 0 0.0% 
May-23 90 0 0.0% 
Jun-23 95 0 0.0% 

 
 
Note:  Debtors VAT checking is carried out by Finance via a work process prior to the invoice being 
raised hence the improvement in errors compared to previous years 
 
Purchase Cards 
 

VAT 
return 

for 

Nº of 
transaction
s for which 
paperwork 
requested 

for 
checking 

Resolvable 
errors 

discovered 

Value of 
VAT 

potentially 
claimable 

but 
recharged 
to budget 

due to non- 
response 

Nº of 
transaction

s where 
VAT 

claimed 
incorrectly 

% of 
transaction
s available 

to be 
checked 

where VAT 
was 

claimed 
incorrectly 

Value of 
VAT 

incorrectly 
claimed 
hence 

recharged 
to budget 

Apr-23 106 1 £304.15 13 12.3% £109.29 
May-23 98 2 £522.91 6 6.1% £323.64 
Jun-23 76 3 £253.95 9 11.8% £714.08 

 

 

Tudalen 32



Chargebacks to service areas 
 
The upload of appropriate documents to the BSM (Barclaycard Spend Management 
purchase card system) to enable VAT recovery was made mandatory in September 
2017 as a result of the lack of response from service areas/establishments to provide 
documents when requested. Where no document has been uploaded, any VAT 
amount input against the transaction is charged to the service area as there is no 
evidence to support the vat recovery.   
 
Any other VAT errors that come to light as a result of the various checks are also 
charged to the relevant service areas.   
 
Budget holders are able to see this clearly as chargebacks are coded to account code 
EX400600 and the activity code used alongside this gives the reason why this 
chargeback has occurred.     
 
The amount charged back to service areas is £14,058 to date. The breakdown of this 
is as follows: 
 
Potentially correctable errors 
 
Reason Amount £ 
Not a tax invoice 1,505 
No invoice uploaded to 
purchase card system 9,045 

Invoice(s) do not match 
payment 482 

Total 11,032 
 
Other errors 
 
Reason Amount £ 
Non-domestic VAT 543 
No tax on invoice 299 
Supply not to Powys County 
Council 2,120 

Over-accounting for VAT 63 
Total 3,025 

 
  

Tudalen 33



A breakdown by service is shown below 
 

Service 

Not A 
Tax 

Invoice 

No Invoice 
Uploaded To 

BSM 

Inv(s) Do 
Not Match 
Payment 

Foreign 
VAT 

No Tax 
On 

Invoice 

Supply 
Not To 
PCC 

Over-
accounting 

For VAT 
Revenue        
Schools Delegated Budgets 63 5,238 291  237 19 48 
Schools Service 232 120  23 17  32 
Adults  6      
Childrens  478   6   
Highways, Transport & 
Recycling 304 116 191     
Community Development  87      
Property, Planning & Public 
Protection  51   39   
Housing General Fund  787    2,101  
Housing Revenue Account  618      
Corporate Activities  196     -16 
Workforce & Organisational 
Development  165      
Economy & Digital Services  1,004  504    
Transformation & 
Communications  70  17    
Capital        
Childrens 256       
Highways, Transport & 
Recycling 649       
Housing Revenue Account  109      
Total 1,505 9,045 482 543 299 2,120 63 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 34



CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 
 

CABINET EXECUTIVE 
19th September 2023 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: County Councillor Cllr David Thomas 

Portfolio Holder for Finance 
  
REPORT TITLE: Financial Forecast for the year ended 31st March 2024 (as 

at 30th June 2023) 
  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Decision  

 
1. Purpose  
1.1 To provide Cabinet with the forecast revenue budget outturn for the 2023-24 

financial year, based on the full year forecasts as at 30th June 2023.   
 
2. Background 
2.1 Table 1 below summarises the projected full year outturn position across the 

Council’s services including HRA and delegated schools, a £3.7 million surplus is 
currently forecast.   
Table 1 – Forecast Position 

 

2.2 Appendix A provides detail of the financial position for each service, broken down 
into categories covering cost pressures cost underspends, cost reductions and use 
of reserves.  

 2.3 The underspend is largely associated with expenditure against Corporate budgets, 
more specifically the Risk Budget of £3.0 million, during the first quarter £23,000 
has been drawn from this budget.  This budget was approved at budget setting to 
manage financial risk across the Councils services with £5.0 million of potential 
costs identified.  The budget will be released to services if the costs materialise.  
This becomes more likely as the year progresses.  

2.4 Further detail about each service area is provided in Appendix B, with Heads of 
Service setting out their individual narrative that explains their financial position. 
This includes their activities being undertaken to deliver approved cost reductions, 

Revenue Budget £'000

 Base Budget 326,621

 Cost Pressures 3,321

 Cost Underspends (8,098)

 Cost Reductions Shortfall 968

 Costs Funded from Risk Budget  (23)

 Sub Total 322,789

Underspend before Reserves 3,832

 Funded by: 

 Agreed Specific Reserve Use 98

 Net Underspend  3,734

Tudalen 35

6



the pressures facing the service and how they are managing their budget to 
mitigate any shortfalls. 

3. Cost Reductions 
3.1 Cost reductions of £16.5 million were approved as part of the Councils budget for 

this year and the delivery of these is required to achieve a balanced budget this 
year.  In addition, undelivered savings from 2022-23 have been rolled forward 
totalling £0.9 million, these also need to be delivered.   

3.2 The summary at Table 2 shows that 54% or £9.4 million have been delivered and a 
further 40% £7.0 million are assured of delivery by Services.  £968,000, 6% are 
unachieved and are at risk of delivery in year.  Services are being challenged as to 
why the position for some proposals has changed and will be required to consider 
mitigating action to ensure that they can deliver within the budget allocated.  

Table 2 – Cost Reductions  

 
 

3.3 Last years’ savings were £10.9 million and at the quarter one point the 
performance was only 44% achieved and 28% assured. By year end we were 
unable to deliver 22% (£2.4 million). Comparing that performance against this 
years’ predictions suggest far more robust savings were put forward through 
budget setting and are already making strong inroads into delivery.    

3.4 Those services that show unachieved targets must consider what remedial action 
they take to mitigate the impact on the overall performance within their service, as 
their budget forecast must come back to a balanced position.  At this point in the 
year there are opportunities to reduce spend and bring the targets back on track. 

   
4. Reserves 
4.1 The Reserves position at Table 3 sets out the reserve forecast as at 30th June 

2023.  The opening reserves stand at £68 million, with the General Fund Reserve 
at £9.3 million representing 3.8% of total net revenue budget (excluding Schools 
and the HRA).    

 £'000  To Be 
Achieved  

 Actually 
Achieved   Assured  Un-

achieved 

Adult Services 4,648 1,963 2,685 -
Childrens Services 3,013 1,078 1,935 -
Commissioning - Adults & Children 97 89 8 -
Economy and Digital Services 24 - - 24
Education 830 810 19 -
Schools Delegated 864 864 - -
Finance 73 66 7 -
Central Activities 3,003 3,003 - -
Highways Transport & Recycling 3,594 1,191 1,888 515
Housing & Community Development 379 153 226 -
Legal Services 8 7 1 (0)
Transformation and Communications 
Service

8 8 - 0
Property, Planning & Public Protection 848 197 222 429
Workforce & OD 20 1 19 -
 Total           17,409           9,431      7,009             968 

54% 40% 6%

Tudalen 36



4.2 The Councils Reserves policy requires the General Fund Reserve to be maintained 
at a minimum of 4% of net revenue budget.  Due to the increased level of Net 
Revenue budget the level of the reserve is not now sufficient to maintain this 
minimum level.  When closing the accounts for last year some specific reserves 
were closed and £0.8 million was transferred into the payroll reserve.    

4.3 There are a limited number of specific reserves and their intended purpose is clear, 
but a review of the reserves has identified that the Powys Recovery Fund reserve, 
that was set up to support covid and economic recovery, can now been closed, the 
balance on the reserve is £0.7m.  It is proposed to transfer this balance to the 
general fund reserve to increase the balance and ensure that the 4% minimum 
level of net revenue budget can be maintained. 

Table 3 – Reserves Table 

 

4.4 The budgeted use of specific reserves in the main relates to the use of grants that 
were rolled forward last year for use this year and these total £5.6 million.  Other 
specific reserve use includes £1.0 million for levelling up match funding.  

4.5 A specific Pay Reserve was established from underspends at 2022-23 year end to 
support this years’ pay award, which is likely to increase beyond the 5% funded 
through budget setting.  The current pay offer equates to around 7% and this 
means 2%, circa £3.3 million would need to be funded from this reserve to manage 
the in-year budget gap.  A recurrent shortfall must be addressed as part budget 
setting for next year. 

4.6 Schools set their budgets with an expected call on reserve of £5.7 million.  This 
figure has improved by £0.1 million based on updated forecasts.  

 
5. Transformation 
5.1 Transformation Board agreed the Transformation projects for 2023-24 totalling £3.0 

million.  Funding for these schemes is just under £2.5 million base budget and just 
under £0.5 million underspend brought forward. Table 4 below provides a detail of 
what schemes are funded.   

5.2 In addition there will be costs associated with any redundancies that arise from 
transformational activity, last year’s costs amounted to £0.3 million.  Any severance 
costs incurred during this financial year will be supported from slippage in the use 

Summary                                                      
£'000

Opening 
Balance (1st 

April 23) 
Surplus / 
(Deficit)

Budgeted use 
of Reserves

Forecast (Over) 
/ Under Spend

Projected 
Balance (31st 

March 24)
Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

General Fund 9,333 0 0 9,333
Budget Management Reserve 3,584 0 0 3,584
Specific Reserves 35,329 (6,710) 63 28,682
Transport & Equipment Funding Reserve 9,460 (1,523) 0 7,937
Total Useable Reserves 57,706 (8,233) 63 49,536
Schools Delegated Reserves 6,666 (5,690) 98 1,074
School Loans & Other Items (371) 7 0 (364)
Housing Revenue Account 3,967 0 0 3,967
Total Specific Reserves 10,262 (5,683) 98 4,677
Total 67,968 (13,916) 161 54,213

Tudalen 37



of the transformation budget, if costs exceed the funding available the Spend to 
Save reserve will be used.  Any redundancies approved must be supported by an 
appropriate Business Case.  

5.3 The transformation budget was approved within the Revenue budget setting 
process but this will need to be reallocated to the individual service budgets as set 
out in Table 4.  A virement is required to accommodate this, and reporting the 
reallocation of an already Council approved budget is set out in this report, 
together with the proposal to utilise the Spend to Save reserve for severance costs. 

5.4 Monitoring of the delivery of the projects and expenditure against the budget will be 
undertaken at the Transformation Delivery Board. 

 
Table 4 – Transformation projects funded 23-24 

 
 

6. Virements and Grants 
6.1 There have been additional grants received this quarter and are included to comply 

with financial regulations: 
 
6.1.1   Highways, Transport and Recycling: 
 
▪ 20mph grant funding provided by Welsh Government totalling £1,600,000 to be 

utilised during the period 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 to support the 
implementation of the 20mph default speed limit on restricted roads across Wales 
coming into force on 17th September 2023. 

▪ Road Safety Revenue Grant funding provided by Welsh Government totalling 
£106,800 to be utilised during the period 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024 to 
support schemes and projects that contribute to the Welsh Government objective 
to reduce casualties on Welsh Roads. 

▪ Local Places for Nature Grant provided by Wales Council for Voluntary Action 
totalling £120,000 per annum for 2 years commencing 01st April 2023 to 31st March 
2025 to support a variety of biodiversity objectives such as a maintenance plan of 
how natural assets are created, restored and enhanced. 

▪ Management and Maintenance of Offa’s Dyke path grant totalling £49,375 provided 
by Natural Resources Wales to be utilised during the period 1st April 2023 to 31st 

Project Service Revenue Funding
23/24 - £k

Existing Programmes
Transformation Portfolio Manager Transformation and Democratic 55
Growth Deal Economy and Digital 125
Digital Transformation Economy and Digital 1,329
Transforming Education Education 841
New Programmes
Social Services : Programme Management Social Care 201
Social Services : Work Leisure and Learning to Create 
Meaningful Day Time Opportunities

Social Care 57

Social Services : Powys-owned care homes Social Care 300
Programme Brief - Climate & Nature All 100

Total bids 3,009

Tudalen 38



March 2024 with the purpose of maintaining the Offa’s Dyke Path National Trail 
within Powys in line with the NRW’s published definition of maintenance. 

▪ Offa’s Dyke National Trail Grant totalling £50,647 provided by Natural England. 
▪ Maintenance of Glyndwr’s Way National Trail grant totalling £92,696 provided by 

Natural Resources Wales to be utilised during the period 1st April 2023 to 31st 
March 2024 with the purpose of funding the maintenance of Glyndwr’s Way Path 
National Trail within Powys in line with NRW’s published definition of maintenance. 

 
6.2 The budget setting process that was approved in February 2023 included one off 

funding to support the Urdd which is taking place near Meifod in 2024, the funding 
was included within 2024/25 and is to be funded from reserve.  The funding is 
required during 2023/24 to support up front costs rather than costs incurred at the 
time of the event, therefore a virement is proposed to release £100,000 from 
reserves to support this. 

6.3 A virement request is made to transfer the transformation budget across all 
services as set out in section 5.  In addition the use of the spend to save reserve is 
agreed for any transformation redundancies where needed at year end. 

6.4 It is proposed that the balance from the Powys Recovery Fund reserve of £0.7 
million is transferred to the general fund reserve to ensure the reserve remains in 
excess of 4% of the net budget (excluding HRA and schools) to comply with the 
current policy.  As set out at paragraph 4.3.  This is not a budget virement as the 
overall level of reserves is to be maintained and no expenditure is taking place.     

 
7. Financial Risks 
7.1 The Council holds a £3.0m revenue risk budget centrally to manage the cost of 

potential additional pressures identified through budget setting but not funded at a 
service level, especially inflation and demographic pressures. Although CPI levels 
are now starting to fall, they remain higher than our budgeted allocations.  Risk 
remains as the year progresses.     

7.2 The greatest financial risk remains in our ability to deliver a balanced budget over 
the medium and longer term.  Our MTFS reported a projected £10.3 million budget 
gap next year rising to £24.8 million cumulative in 2028.   But this gap is already 
expected to be significantly higher as we review and update our assumptions.  Pay 
negotiations continue at a national level and are expected to exceed the budgeted 
5% increase for 2023-24 and are likely to be closer to 7%.   The Medium Term 
Financial Strategy and the assumptions on which the Financial Resource Model is 
based is being reviewed and will be considered by Cabinet in September.  We 
continue to plan in a challenging and uncertain time and will update our projections 
as more information becomes available.   

7.3 The Council remains under borrowed as we continue to utilise our cash reserves to 
underpin our cashflow. We can borrow both in the short to medium or long term, 
but the cost of borrowing has risen due to the changes in bank rate, our approach 
is regularly updated and explained as part of the Treasury Management update to 
Audit Committee. 

 
8. Resource Implications 

Tudalen 39



The Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) has provided the following comment: 
8.1 The outturn for 2022/23 was extremely welcome and we used the funding 

opportunities provided to set up a specific reserve to support the likely pay award 
pressures and capital financing which will be required in this and future years.  

8.2 Our planning must now focus on the medium and longer term as we develop the 
Sustainable Powys programme to support our budget planning over the coming 
months.  The immediate work will focus on bridging the budget gap for 2024/25 but 
will continue over many years as we transform how we support and work with our 
communities.    

8.3 Financial Resilience and sustainability can only be achieved by delivering a lower 
cost Council, effectively managing our collective resources, robust and transparent 
decision making, and actively managing risk supported by an appropriate level of 
reserves.    
 

9. Legal implications 
9.1  The Head of Legal & Democratic Services ( Monitoring Officer)  has no comment  

with this report. 
 
10. Data Protection 
10.1 There are no data protection issues within this report. 
 
11.  Comment from local member(s) 
11.1 This report relates to all service areas across the whole County. 
 
12.   Impact Assessment 
12.1  No impact assessment required. 
 
13. Recommendation 
13.1 That Cabinet note the current budget position and the projected full year forecast to 

the end of March 2024. 
13.2 The grants set out in section 6.1 are noted. 
13.3 The virements set out in section 6.2 and 6.3 are approved, this is to comply with the 

virement rules for budget movements as set out in the financial regulations. 
13.4 That Cabinet supports the movement between reserves set out in paragraph 6.4.   
 
 Contact Officer: Jane Thomas   
Email: jane.thomas@powys.gov.uk 
Head of Service: Jane Thomas 

Tudalen 40



Appendix A – Forecast to year end as at 30th June 2023 
 

 
 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Adult Services 80,664 0 (45) 2,685 83,304 (2,685) 80,619 45

Children's Services 29,482 897 (724) 1,935 31,590 (1,935) 0 0 29,655 (173)

Commissioning 3,019 0 (18) 8 3,009 (8) 0 0 3,001 18

Education 17,595 63 (145) 19 17,532 (19) 0 0 17,513 82

Highways Transport & 
Recycling + Director 33,365 655 (1,132) 2,403 35,291 (1,888) 0 (23) 33,380 (14)

Property, Planning & Public 
Protection 6,627 80 (308) 651 7,050 (222) 0 6,828 (201)

Housing & Community 
Development 7,480 510 (355) 226 7,861 (226) 0 7,635 (155)

Economy and Digital 
Services 6,391 (306) 24 6,109 0 0 6,109 282

Transformation & 
Democratic Services 3,877 61 (88) 0 3,850 0 0 3,850 27

Workforce & OD 2,544 0 (174) 19 2,389 (19) 0 0 2,370 174

Legal 1,494 101 (135) 1 1,462 (1) 0 0 1,461 33

Finance & Insurance 6,918 0 (23) 7 6,902 (7) 0 0 6,895 23

Corporate Activites 43,328 954 (4,547) 0 39,735 0 0 0 39,735 3,593

Total 242,784 3,321 (8,000) 7,977 246,083 (7,009) 0 (23) 239,050 3,734

Housing Revenue Account 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Schools Delegated 83,837 (98) 0 83,739 0 98 0 83,837 0

Total 83,837 0 (98) 0 83,739 0 98 0 83,837 0

Total 326,621 3,321 (8,098) 7,977 329,822 (7,009) 98 (23) 322,887 3,734

(3,200) 3,734

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 41



Appendix B      Head of Service Commentary 
 

 
 

 Adult Social Care Overview 
 
The forecast outturn at the end of quarter 1, 30th June 2023 is an overspend of £2.740 million.  When the cost reductions are delivered then there would 
be a forecast underspend of £45,000. 

Cost Pressures 
 
(a) Current Pressures - Included in the forecast outturn at quarter 1.  Current pressures are being managed within the current budget allocation 

approved. 
 

(b)Future pressures  
 
The forecast outturn does not account for any future costs that may materialise in relation to: 

 
• Winter pressures and potential demand on home-based care and interim bed options, as future demand is unknown. 
• Stability of commissioned providers, particularly the care home sector.  There are currently a number of providers who may be at risk of failure.  
• The unmet need in regard to community services sitting on the CROFT following assessment but lack of provision. 
• Future demography, which was agreed to be funded from the risk reserve as part of the Financial Resources Model (FRM) budget setting process.  

This temporary allocation will only support these costs during 2023/24 and the full year impact will need to be considered in the FRM and 
Service’s Integrated Business Plan (IBP) for future years. 

 
Cost Underspends 
 
The very small underspend in the main is due to staff slippage as a result of recruitment turnover. 
 
 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Adult Services 80,664 0 (45) 2,685 83,304 (2,685) 80,619 45

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 42



Cost Reductions 
 

• Assured 
Of the original target of £4.648 million, £1.963 million (42.2%) has been achieved to date and included in the forecast outturn.  There is assurance of 
delivery of the remaining outstanding balance of £2.685 million (57.80%). 
 

• Undeliverable 
A risk on delivery if hospital pressures and referrals continue at the current levels.   

 
Other mitigating actions to deliver a balanced budget. 
 

• The service will take every opportunity to maximise/utilise any grant underspends, if applicable within the Terms & Conditions of the grant. 
• To ensure we maximise every opportunity to avoid costs the service is prioritising the development of preventative and early intervention 

measures, such as Technology Enabled Care, Reablement and Local Area Coordination. We are supporting citizens to support 
themselves, remain independent and build resilient communities reducing admissions into residential care and hospital. 

  
  T

udalen 43



 
 

 
 

 Children’s Services Overview 
 
The forecast outturn position is an overspend of £173,000, provided the outstanding savings target of £1.935m is delivered. 
 
Cost Pressures 
 
The cost pressures continue in terms of the demand for high-cost residential placements often outside of Powys. The cost of placements for 
children which are unregulated, due to the lack of placements nationally, in nature continue to be a financial challenge. We have an increase in 
our Unaccompanied Asylum-seeking children (UASC) which is set to rise, and which continues to have an impact on the financial position. The 
2023/24 forecast for these placements is £1.009 million. We receive grant income of £143 per night pre 18 years of age and £270 per week post 
18 off the Home Office. The forecasted income in relation to the above is £484,280. So, the net expenditure position is £524,000. 
 
In order to reduce this pressure, a working group is considering developing local housing for our young people. We are looking to establish smaller 
group homes and improving our local offer for our 16+ provision. This work is being undertaken with our housing colleagues. This would prevent 
the need to source external costly placements and then housing when the young person reaches 18 years of age which can be problematic within 
cities. 
 
We are also looking at promoting more strengths-based ways of working using our Signs of Safety framework in promoting keeping children safer 
at home and prevent children needing to become children who are looked after. Our high-cost residential placements are tracked within our closer 
to home board which scrutinises the financial position and care plans for individual young people. 
 
Our own inhouse residential homes continue to be a challenge when staffed with agency social care workers to meet the ongoing demands 
requiring the placements. The impact of having agency social workers to meet the ongoing increased demands through the Front door also 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Children's Services 29,482 897 (724) 1,935 31,590 (1,935) 0 0 29,655 (173)

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 44



continues to be a financial challenge. Agency staff are constantly reviewed in line with caseloads. The current cost is £9,665 per day which is 
not sustainable. This cost has been reducing since Autumn 2022 and is therefore going in the right direction. 
 
The Grow our Own project continues to build on training, recruiting and retaining local staff which will enable us to reduce our agency social 

workers. Our trajectory for agency workers is reducing over the quarter and will continue in this way as we build our workforce. We are 
working collaboratively within Powys to build resilience and promote wellbeing as part of our overall objectives around retainment and 
support. We are continuing to review and provide recruit campaigns in different ways to find solutions to a national shortage of social care 
staff. 

 
We are reviewing our offer around short breaks as the demand for families has risen and analysing if this could be provided in different and more 

creative ways rather than external residential short breaks. 
 
The unfunded pressures within the service are due to  

• £533,000 Children Looked After (CLA) placements - new, step up in provision and increasing costs in relation to meeting the complexity of 
the need of the current cohort. These costs are unavoidable in the context of a national shortage of placements for looked after children 
across the UK. All funding that was earmarked as part of the 2023/24 budget setting process for growth in Children looked after placements 
in 2023/24 has already been fully utilised. All new or step up in provisions going forward will be a pressure. 

• £63,000 Additional to placement pressures for CLA support. 
• £132,000 total pressure forecasted for the three In House Residential homes and the one current un-regulated homes.  

o Glynmawr, Henrhyd and Pum Copa (unregulated) are all forecasting overspends due to the use of agency staff, not included in the 
original business cases.  

• £52,000 budget pressure in regard to Section 21, for families in need of care and support, in the main due to post lockdown and trying to 
keep children with their families wherever it is safe and in their best interests to do so. 

• £31,000 Out of Hours (EDT) due to unfunded structure following a Management of Change and use of agency staffing.   
• £86,000 due to increased demand for short breaks due to the pressures on families as an indirect result of the pandemic. 

  
 

Cost Underspends 
 
The cost underspends continue to offset the cost pressures. 
 

• £140,000 due to underutilisation of the Market supplement. Currently not all qualifying posts are occupied or been occupied for the relevant 
time frame.   

• £395,000 Staffing underspend based on current vacancies qualified and non-qualified positions. 
• £33,000 due to a delay to the Special Guardianship project.  
• £127,000 Welsh Government grants mitigating baseline funded costs, in line with grant terms and conditions.  

T
udalen 45



• £29,000 various small underspends on service subjective headings.  
 
 
Cost Reductions 
 
£1.935m still to be achieved at the end of Quarter .  Cost reductions continue and we are making positive progress on our Closer to Home strategy. 
Cost reductions around increasing our permanent workforce against our agency social workers whilst a pressure is still on a positive trajectory 
through our Grown Our Own Strategy and ongoing recruitment drives. 
 
Other mitigating actions to deliver a balanced budget. 
 
We will fully utilise grants across the service as in 2022/23. We will continue to scrutinise the pressures and savings targets to identify matters with 
potential solutions. Our current predicted savings are on track to be met during this financial year. We have not as yet been able to use any grant 
money to offset any targets due to requiring this additional money to deliver further savings around our Closer to Home strategy. 
  

  

T
udalen 46



 

 
 

 Commissioning Overview 
 
Although the projections point towards a balanced budget, it is anticipated, but not assured  
 

 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Commissioning 3,019 0 (18) 8 3,009 (8) 0 0 3,001 18

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 47



 

 
 

 Education overview 
  
The service has worked effectively throughout the last financial year to make significant financial savings within the service, and we are 
continuing to build on these considerable savings without compromising the service we provide.  We continue to use our grants effectively to 
support the forecast outturn position of the service where possible and to alleviate pressure within the service.  The Schools Service (excluding 
Schools Delegated Budgets) has a forecasted outturn underspend at the year-end of £82k at Quarter 1. 
 
All managers within the service are robustly challenged regarding financial decisions to ensure they deliver value for money but also align to the 
service priorities. Senior managers ensure all significant financial decisions are discussed at a strategic level and fit with the realisation of the 
vision for the service.  The aftermath of the Covid-19 pandemic continues to place additional pressures on the service and through self-
evaluation processes we are identifying key areas that could impact on service delivery such as ALN, attendance and behaviour.  
 
Cost pressures: 
 
Cost pressures at present are being managed within the overall forecast outturn position of the service. The two areas causing the pressure are 
in relation to buildings (essential works) and early retirement pensionable costs. Further work is taking place in both of these areas to review the 
costs. 
 
Cost underspends: 
 
Cost underspends in the service in the main are in relation to any vacant posts, slippage in relation to actual costs vs budgeted costs of staff, 
travel and supplies and services. Further review will take place during budget setting to identify if any permanent slippage can be found in order 
to mitigate cost pressures. 
 
Cost reductions: 
 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Education 17,595 63 (145) 19 17,532 (19) 0 0 17,513 82

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 48



We continue to identify savings and projected a reduction in costs of £828K, £19k has not yet been delivered, but is assured to be delivered by 
year end. 
 

• Targeted use of CfW grant to offset base budget 
• Removal of unfilled posts that have not impacted on service delivery 
• Post 16 transition managed within service by newly appointed 14+ Lead 
• Review of PRUs  
• Reduction in third sector spend but further work is to be undertaken 
• Internal delivery of VAWDSW 
• Use of grant funds to manage staff pay inflation 
• Realignment of costs to delegated budget e.g. union costs 
• Restructure in areas of the service 
• Significant reduction in the use of consultants 

 
Other mitigating actions to deliver a balanced budget: 
 
We are reviewing income generation and another member of the service has become an RI so can generate income through working for Estyn. 
 
We will also need to complete an ALN review alongside the Powys ALN Strategy including the potential delegation of more ALN funding to schools 
in line with other Local Authorities. 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 Schools Delegated Overview  
 
Schools submitted their approved budgets to the Authority on 1st May 22, which were reviewed by the Head of Education and the Head of Finance 
/ Section 151 officer. All schools have now received a response to their submittals. 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2022/23 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions not 

delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions not 
yet delivered 
but assured 

 Specific 
Reserves with 
Agreed use 

 Use of Risk 
Reserve to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2022/23 

 June 
Variance 

Schools Delegated 79,480 85 0 0 79,565 0 0 0 79,565 (85)

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 

2023 AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2022 

T
udalen 49



 
Through ongoing effective communication and collaborative working, the PCC finance team, School Improvement Advisers, Senior Managers, 
Headteachers and Chairs of Governors continue to identify potential savings for schools from reviewing spending plans and continuing to support 
schools with the development of their financial planning. We have recently completed another two in depth secondary school financial reviews at 
their request. This more detailed look at their finances has identified potential savings which could be implemented over time and bring their 
budgets to an in year balanced position and in turn reducing their overall carry forward deficits. We have also received review requests from other 
secondary schools which will be carried out in the Autumn Term. We continue to use the benchmarking tool and finance toolkit to direct discussions 
during finance surgeries to identify further potential savings.   
  
We have also recently identified additional financial pressures on specific schools which are linked to deprivation and significant ALN needs so we 
are working closely with other LAs to capture and review different ALN and deprivation funding approaches which may support us further in helping 
these schools to manage their budget pressures. This review is forming part of the Formula review for 2023.  
  
The Covid-19 pandemic and rising energy costs continue to place additional pressures on schools, and we are reviewing the impact the pandemic 
is still having on ALN, attendance and behaviour.  
  
The in-year position that was submitted by governing bodies in May 2023 showed that there was an expected draw on reserves of £6,011k, overall, 
this position has decreased to a forecasted £5,592k draw on reserves, a reduction of £419k in 3 months. Updated projections including the updated 
estimates for pay awards and inflation will be reported in Qtr 2 closedown.  
  
Recovery plans are due to be submitted by 30th Sept for schools that did not meet the requirements of the scheme for financing schools. There 
are also a number of schools that will work with officers to put a deficit agreement in place. Considerable staffing reductions are projected across 
all schools over the next 3 years and officers will support schools through these difficult times. A number of VSS applications have been approved 
for Aug 23 reductions of teachers and non-teaching staff. 
  
We currently have 6 schools identified as having either received a financial Warning Notice or a Notice of concern, 4 of these are secondary 
schools, 1 special school and 1 primary school. 10 schools have been identified with escalating issues, 3 are secondary schools and 7 are primary 
schools. These school will be supported by officers and any issues will be escalated in line with the scheme for financing schools and schools 
causing concern guidance. Some schools have also been identified to receive targeted financial training where financial management issues have 
been identified by officers. 

In terms of Delegated central any underspend on this area is allocated out to schools with a % done in January 24 and the remainder at year end. 
The formula review 2023 may have an impact on the funds held in this area. 
 
  

T
udalen 50



 

 
 

 Highways Transport & Recycling Overview 
 
Forecast overspend for Qtr.1 is £14k - the main reasons for the forecast overspend are highlighted below: 
Cost Pressures  

• £375k  overspend on highway routine and structural maintenance. 
• £238k overspend on County winter maintenance works. 
• £26k overspend on storm/flood responsive activities. 
• £73k under recovery on Trade Waste Collections. 
• £208k overspend on Home to School transport arising from increased contract charges. 
• £136k overspend on Public Transport due to unfunded inflation pressures 

 
Much of the above pressures is causing us to cut back on highway maintenance and there are elements that are out of our control around 
weather conditions, which can increase revenue costs particularly around flooding and winter maintenance.  Furthermore, there are long 
standing pressures within the Transport service, which are due to a number of reasons, particularly around additional bus capacity and bus 
contract changes.  With that said, there are opportunities to consider the underspends below to consider permanent virements to reduce these 
large swings of surplus and deficit budgets. 
 
As noted, the above pressures have been offset by the following cost underspends: 
Cost Underspends  

• £314k Forecast overachievement in car park income. 
• £300k in vacant positions 
• £314k overachievement in recycling income. 
• £93k underspend on residual waste. 

 
 Other mitigating actions to deliver a balanced budget.  

• Promote the green waste and Trade Waste Service. 
• Reduce spend on highway Operations. 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Highways Transport & 
Recycling + Director 33,365 655 (1,132) 2,403 35,291 (1,888) 0 (23) 33,380 (14)

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 51



 
Undelivered savings - £515k 
 

• £130,000 Reduction in Winter Maintenance  -   It was envisaged that this would be achieved for 23/24, but due to the summer 
consultation on the new Matrix and the need to review at September’s Scrutiny, this saving will not be achieved for Winter season 23/24, 
but will be in place for 24/25.  In order to mitigate this, the service will need to utilise service underspends from within HTR to offset this 
years unachieved saving) 

  
• £8250 – Transfer of Public conveniences (Unable to transfer the two remaining toilets (Brecon and Ystradgynlais) over to interested 

parties.  Further engagement to be undertaken.  
  

• £284,339 – Efficiencies within Public Transport (We’ve given assurance of £167k based on service reductions in January 23.  Further 
work to be undertaken to make routes more efficient) 

  
• £52,500 – Route Optimisation (This is in its final stages, but in order to clear this saving it is proposed we do a permanent virement from 

Recycling income, which is currently in a surplus position to clear this target) 
  

• £40,000 – Use of Abermule to transfer recyclable material (We expect to make around £58k of savings and the proposal is to offset the 
remaining £40k by doing a virement from Recycling Income, which is currently in a surplus position to clear this target) 

 
  

 

T
udalen 52



 

 
 

 PPPP Overview 
 
PPPP are currently predicted an overspend of £201K. This overspend is a result of the service area not currently having sufficient evidence to 
provide full assurance that savings proposals listed below are going to be delivered in full. This relates to the following savings proposals: 
 
-Energy efficiency measures – offices, 
-Staffing reduction – Strategic Property, 
-Reduce maintenance budgets – offices and depots, 
-Income from fire marshal and fire risk assessments, 
-Rent Park Office, Newtown, 
-Reduce cleaning budget, 
-Staff reduction - Building Control, 
-Income from 10 increase in income lines. 
 
Moving forward, more robust evidence should become available to enable greater assurance to be provided. This is likely to reduce the 
overspend. In the meantime, steps are being taken to ensure that service areas are aware of the revenue budgets and the fact that overspends 
will not be tolerated.  
 
Strategic Property are currently dealing with some uncertainty relating to factors outside of Strategic Properties control (i.e., energy use and 
electric & gas costs). In quarter 2, Strategic Property should have more certainty on some of these variables to enable budget predictions to be 
more robust. In the meantime, contingency plans are being developed to ensure a balanced budget is achieved by the end of the financial year. 
 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Property, Planning & Public 
Protection 6,627 80 (308) 651 7,050 (222) 0 6,828 (201)

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 53



 
 

 Community Development Overview 
 
Spend is on track across most budget areas, with all but one area forecast to be on budget or returning a minor underspend. Housing & 
Community Development is reporting a forecast outturn over spend of £155k as not all of the cost reductions have been made as yet, but are 
assured. 
 
Savings 

- 10% General reduction in mileage – £1,120 achieved (£4,480 full year savings). 
- NPTC (Neath Port Talbot College) increased income y Gaer - £35,000 – to be achieved by end of year. 
- 10p School Meal Increase - £187,310 – to be achieved by end of year. 
- Arts Service Redesign - £60,000 – achieved. 
- Reduce Library Book Budget - £56,770 – achieved. 
- Sports Development remove core budget - £35,000 – achieved. 

 
Cost Pressures 

- A forecast overspend in General Fund Housing of £460k is offset by a forecast underspend in Catering and Cleaning of £242k 
- Leisure Services are reporting an outturn overspend of £14k compared to the working budget of £4.4m 
- Arts and Cultural Services are reporting an overspend of £4k. There was a full year budget saving relating to one member of staff. Due to 

service needs, the reduction in staffing was delayed for one month, resulting in an overspend in staffing costs. 
 
 
 
Cost Underspends 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Housing & Community 
Development 7,480 510 (355) 226 7,861 (226) 0 7,635 (155)

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 54



- Libraries are reporting an under spend of £17k compared to the annual working budget of £1,234k. The under spend is mainly because of 
slippage in staffing costs and grant income. 

- Archives are reporting an outturn underspend of £9k compared to a working budget of £130k. This is due to slippage in staffing costs and 
increased income for storage of records and records management. 

- Leisure and Sports Centres are reporting an overspend of £62k compared to a working budget of £1,606k. The majority of the overspend 
was due to expenditure on condition surveys of Leisure Centres as part of the Leisure review, it is expected that this will be funded but is 
still to be confirmed. 

- Sports Development is reporting an underspend of £12k compared to the working budget of £66k. This is due to some events expected to 
take place in quarter one having to be postposed and rescheduled due to weather / strikes. Also, carry forward of grant funding from Sport 
Wales needed to be prioritised. 

- Museums is reporting a forecast outturn of £171k compared to a working budget of £217k, an underspend of £81k. This is due to an 
anticipated one-off refund in National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR). 

- Y Gaer is reporting an outturn underspend of £11k compared to a working budget of £653k. The underspend results from increased grant 
income offset by a forecast overspend on staffing. 

- Catering is reporting an outturn under spend of £187k, this assumes the saving will be made in full. The roll out of the universal provision 
of free school meals continues, the uptake of meals has increased as a direct result of this initiative and therefore income is increased, 
forecast to breakeven against budget at the end of the year. Welsh Government will provide grant for delivery of UPFSM at £2.90 per 
meal. Funding was received for inflation through the budget setting process and based on the current forecast, expenditure is forecast to 
underspend. 

- Cleaning is reporting a forecast underspend of £54k, this is because of an underspend on staffing due to some vacant posts and over 
achieved income. The forecast does not include a proposed saving that is being discussed regarding cleaning of corporate office 
accommodation. 

 
Matters affecting the forecast 

- It is very early in the year the financial year to forecast catering accurately as there is only one school term of data to base the cost and 
income projections on. 

- It is expected to receive funding for the costs of the asset valuations for the leisure review, but this has not yet been confirmed so this will 
improve the forecast outturn if confirmed. 

- Growth was identified to fund the increased utility costs in the leisure centres of £1.1m. It is assumed in this forecast that that money will 
be spent in full. 

- A reduction in cleaning of corporate buildings is required to achieve a saving of £60k in property accommodation. Discussion is still on 
going and this has not yet been built into the forecast. 

 

T
udalen 55



 
Housing Services Overview 
 
Cost Pressures 
 
Homelessness services are likely to exceed budget, an unavoidable consequence of the continued high demand for these statutory services, in 
particular temporary accommodation not all of which can be provided using existing social housing owned by the Council and housing 
associations. The Council is starting to experience a levelling out in the rate of increase in demand for homeless services, but demand remains 
high compared to historic trends. It is unclear what the impact of increased interest rates will have on home buyers.  
 
Cost Underspends 
 
There are no anticipated underspends. 
 
Cost Mitigation 
 
The Council is increasing its new development and acquisitions programmes to provide long term housing options for homeless households, but 
these are by their very nature long term projects. Proposals are now well advanced, with capital funding agreed by the Capital Oversight Board, 
for Instant Access 24/7 Triage Centres, Interim 24/7 Supported Accommodation and Modular Interim Accommodation to be taken forward in 
2024-2025. These have the potential to reduce the need to rely on costly private sector temporary accommodation, reduce the risk of repeat 
homelessness and to be in a position to better tailor long erm housing solutions to the needs of individual households. However, revenue support 
in 2024-2025 will be need for Instant Access 24/7 Triage Centres and Interim 24/7 Supported Accommodation to be taken forward to delivery 
stage. Immediate mitigation is focusing on prevention of homelessness through early intervention. At the end of August 2023, there were 279 
statutory homeless (S.73 and S.75) cases which represents a 26.2% fall since the same time in 2022 (370 statutory homeless cases at that 
date). 
 

  
 
 

T
udalen 56



 
 

 HRA 
 
Summary 
 
The HRA is ring fenced and forms part of its own trading account, any surpluses and deficits are contained within a ring-fenced reserve. Overall, 
the HRA is predicted to end the financial year 2023-2024 in balance (as of July 2023). However, there are actions to be taken to achieve greater 
efficiency in the repairs and maintenance service to underpin this prediction and to allow for additional investment to be made in homes owned 
by the Council and maintain a strong HRA reserve.  
 
Cost Pressures 
 
Repairs and maintenance costs are ahead of profile, due to the age of the properties owned by the Council which is driving up the overall 
demand for repairs and maintenance and reliance in the first quarter of the year on external contractors to undertake works to void properties. 
Mitigation is being undertaken (please see below) which will to bring spending back in line, which if left unchecked, may result as of end of July 
2023 in a year end deficit on repairs and maintenance of £1,262,951.  
 
Cost Underspends 
 
There are anticipated underspends in salaries and other management and supervision costs within the HRA.  
 
Cost Mitigation 
 
Spending on external contractors is to be reduced as internal resources continue to be introduced and on-boarded, with the full impact of this 
being felt from October onwards (the final two quarters of 2023-2024). From thereon, external contractor use will be limited to specialist work the 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2022/23 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions not 

delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions not 
yet delivered 
but assured 

 Specific 
Reserves with 
Agreed use 

 Use of Risk 
Reserve to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2022/23 

 June 
Variance 

Housing Revenue Account 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 

2023 AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2022 

T
udalen 57



in-houses teams cannot undertake or to cope with an unexpected influx of voids. The cost of external contractors has been much higher than 
anticipated at the time of internalisation of repairs and maintenance, due to the over-reliance by the private provider of these services up until 
July 2022 on outsourcing work.  
 
Housing and Commercial Services in July 2023 started pro-active work to secure higher trade discounts from locally operating material and 
component suppliers, pending formal procurement of a locally sensitive (to dovetail with the locality-based approach to housing management 
and maintenance) framework to ‘go-live’ in April 2024.  
 
Heating servicing contract is due for mobilisation 01.11.23 which will reduce spending on agency workers and external contractors.  
 
Income recovery is as of the end of August running at 92.21% of rent due; for the same period last year this was 92.90%. Rent collection is 
becoming increasingly challenging.  This is a consequence of the high cost of living coupled with the levels of additional support provided in the 
previously financial year from UKGov/Welsh Government being steadily withdrawn, which is impacting on our most financially vulnerable 
tenants. Should additional financial support be made available by UKGov/Welsh Government, we have the structure and officers in place to 
maximize the take up by our tenants. The recent energy price cap reduction that came into force July 1st is however a sign of external factors 
improving. 
 
Void times are being reduced, although the number of properties required extensive works – which require longer works times – is increasing 
due to the age of our properties. Of particular concern are external works, such as retaining walls in gardens, which unless remedied may 
present risks to the health and safety of tenants. Performance management of voids is a top priority for the Housing Senior Management Team 
to reduce rent loss due to void properties that are to be retained for letting. 
 
The review of the Careline Alarm service (please see below under Economy and Digital Services) may allow scope for HRA savings in future 
years, as pricing for the service to municipal tenants may move closer to that charged to private sector clients. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

T
udalen 58



 
 

 Economy & Digital Overview 
 
Cost Pressures 
The service is managing current price increases for small ICT contracts within budget, but inflationary costs remain a challenge when large 
contracts are renewed. 
 
Cost Underspends 
Staffing costs are currently underspent as many projects are funded on short-term contracts, we are finding recruitment difficult to attract 
applicants. This is causing delays with the implementation of ICT projects with work being prioritised according to risk level until full resource is in 
place. This may have some impact on other services ability to deliver change. 
 
Cost Reductions 
The cost reduction in the budget for 2023/24 includes the need to review the Careline Alarm service and to make the service cost neutral for 
private clients. Whilst starting this work other services using the same service are also conducting their own reviews due to the cessation of 
copper telephone lines. The team are now working in partnership with other services to review the entire provision and options for an approved 
way forward. This will take some time and it is unlikely the savings will be met until later in the year. Any shortfall will be covered by underspends 
from staffing as set out above. 
 
Other mitigating actions to deliver a balanced budget. 
Economy budgets have been set on a 3 year basis following WG grant allocations giving more stability to staffing resource and ability to deliver 
longer term initiatives with improved outcomes. 
 

 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Economy and Digital 
Services 6,391 (306) 24 6,109 0 0 6,109 282

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 59



 

 
 

 Transformation and Democratic Overview 
 
Cost Pressures 
The service is not fully funded by the permanent base budget. In particular, the Communications staffing structure is not fully funded and is 
forecasting an outturn over spend of £75k (due to additional members of staff on fixed term contracts), underspends across the overall service 
are mitigating the overspend reported and overall, the service is forecast to have a £27k underspend. 

 
Cost Underspends 
The forecast position at the end of June is a £27k underspend.  
 
Cost Reductions 
 
Use of Reserves 
Currently there is no requirement to draw down money from the specific reserve we hold (funded by income generation in other years) 
 
Other mitigating actions to deliver a balanced budget. 
The Transformation and Democratic service is reliant on income, any reduction or increase in income will affect the forecast.  
We are fortunate that have been able to access external funding from other sources, however there is a risk whether this will always be 
available. We do need to increase the number of Translators to ensure we can keep up with demand and are statutory functions around Welsh 
Language and focus on growing some apprenticeships in certain areas of the service.  

 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Transformation & 
Democratic Services 3,877 61 (88) 0 3,850 0 0 3,850 27

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 60



 
 

 Workforce and OD Overview 
We are forecasting an annual underspend of £174k, which mainly arises from underspends against staffing budgets due mainly to delays in 
recruiting to newly created vacancies in Health and Safety and 2 OD posts established to help support the delivery of key initiatives relating to 
Objective 2. These posts are now filled and the initiatives progressing. An overachievement of additional income / profit has to a lesser extent 
also contributed to the forecasted figure, however additional staffing will be needed to undertake the extra work involved, which will impact on 
future forecasting. The service will deliver the cost reductions of £19k approved. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 Legal Overview 

We are forecasting an outturn underspend of £33k and no issues to report 
 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Workforce & OD 2,544 0 (174) 19 2,389 (19) 0 0 2,370 174

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Legal 1,494 101 (135) 1 1,462 (1) 0 0 1,461 33

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 61



 
 

 Finance Overview 
Expenditure across Financial services is in line with the budgets approved and the service is expected to deliver a balanced budget this year.  
 
The service has funded additional posts through additional income streams to support Money Advice, Procurement, Financial training and 
Transformation work.  Our transformation work continues to deliver efficiencies enabling us to redirect resource to areas of pressure as well as 
releasing the savings we expected.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Finance & Insurance 6,918 0 (23) 7 6,902 (7) 0 0 6,895 23

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 62



 
 

 Corporate Overview 
 
Cost Pressures 
The Housing Benefit budget forecast is overspending mainly due to the increased cost of homelessness in Powys and the differential between 
what is paid out to providers and what can be claimed back from the Department of Work and Pensions. 
  
Cost Underspends 
Interest payments on borrowing and Minimum Revenue Provision are lower than budgeted due to the current levels of low expenditure against 
the capital programme and the reprofiling of some projects. In addition there is an overachievement of council tax projected this year due to the 
increase in the level of premiums charged, this is based on current premiums being raised and may change as the impact of the additional 
charge reduces the number of empty properties or second homes.  It is also reliant on the council tax collection rate achieved.  
 
The corporate risk budget which supports all services to manage identified financial risks has not yet been drawn upon.   This is therefore 
currently reported as being underspent.  Should risks materialise as we progress through the year this position may change.   

 Add  Less  Add  Revised  Less  Less  Less  Final 

£'000  2023/24 Base 
Budget 

 Cost 
Pressures  

 Cost 
Underspends  

 Cost 
Reductions 

not delivered  
 Outturn 

 Cost 
Reductions 

not yet 
delivered but 

assured 

 Specific 
Reserves 

with Agreed 
use 

 Use of Risk 
Funding to 

cover 
unfunded 
Pressures 

 Outturn 
Position 
2023/24 

 Forecast as 
at June 
Variance 

Corporate Activites 43,328 954 (4,547) 0 39,735 0 0 0 39,735 3,593

 ADJUSTMENTS OUTSIDE THE LEDGER 
 FORECAST FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR 2024 

AS PER CP/LEDGER JUNE 2023 

T
udalen 63



 

Tudalen 64



CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 
 

CABINET EXECUTIVE 
19th September 2023 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: County Councillor Cllr David Thomas 

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Corporate 
Transformation 

  
REPORT TITLE: Capital Forecast 2023-24, as at 30th June 2023 
  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Decision / Information 

 
1. Purpose  
1.1 This report provides an update on the financial position of the Council’s capital 

programme for 2023/24 as at 30th June 2023. 
 
2. Background 
2.1 The 2023/24 Capital Programme was approved by Council on the 23rd February 2023. 

It included capital schemes totalling £93.29 million, of which £23.48 million related to 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). The programme has been updated following the 
reprofiling of projects and additional grants received from Welsh Government.  
Appendix A provides a detailed narrative from each service lead about their capital 
schemes and delivery plans.  

2.2 Table 1 - Breakdown by service 
 

Service Original 
Budget 

Virements 
Approved 

Revised 
Budget Actuals  Commitments  Remaining 

Budget 
 £,000  £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 % 

Adult Services 200 922 1,122 6 240 1,116 99.5% 
Childrens Services 0 379 379 23 43 356 93.9% 
Education 33,005 (4,862) 28,143 3,047 11,193 25,096 89.2% 
Highways Transport & 
Recycling 12,681 6,135 18,816 2,513 4,557 16,303 86.6% 

Property, Planning & 
Public Protection 100 998 1,098 50 237 1,048 95.4% 

Community 
Development 922 1,337 2,259 (42) 739 2,301 101.9% 

Housing General Fund 1,748 1,279 3,027 533 461 2,494 82.4% 
Economy & Digital 
Services 16,196 (1,690) 14,506 (344) 7,908 14,850 102.4% 

Unallocated 4,953 (454) 4,499 0 75 4,499 100.0% 
Total Capital 69,805 4,044 73,849 5,786 25,453 68,063 92.2% 
Housing Revenue 
Account 23,482 5,165 28,647 1,826 4,822 26,821 93.6% 

TOTAL 93,287 9,209 102,496 7,612 30,275 94,884 92.6% 

 

Tudalen 65

7



2.3 The revised programme at the 30th June 2023 is budgeted at £102.50 million following 
the successful award of additional grants and the reprofiling of budgets between 
financial years. Actual spend amounts to £7.61 million, representing 7.4% of the total 
budget.  

2.4 Currently 48%, £48.82 million, of the capital expenditure is budgeted to be financed by 
borrowing, the interest cost for this is charged to the revenue account. Finance will be 
working with the services to ensure the profiling of budgets is accurate to effectively 
manage the borrowing. 

2.5 Table 2 – Capital Programme funding 
 

Service Supported 
Borrowing 

Prudential 
Borrowing Grants Revenue 

Cont., 
Capital 

Receipts Total 

 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 
All General Fund 4,587 26,313 36,654 2,580 3,715 73,849 
HRA 0 17,915 5,832 3,900 1,000 28,647 
Total 4,587 44,228 42,486 6,480 4,715 102,496 

 
3. Grants Received 
3.1 The following grants have been received since the start of the financial year. These 

are for additional schemes and have been included in the Capital Programme. 
3.2 Schools 
3.3 £0.47 million has been received from Welsh Government for Childcare and Early Years 

Small Grants Funding. 
3.4 Housing & Community Development 
3.5 Welsh Government have awarded £0.26 million from their ENABLE Grant to provide 

works to support for independent living. 
3.6 Welsh Government have awarded £0.27 million to support the remodelling of 

Ystradgynlais Library. 
3.7 Highways, Transport and Recycling 
3.8 Welsh Government have awarded £1.60 million to support the implementation of the 

20mph default speed limit on restricted roads across Wales coming into force on 17th 
September 2023. 

3.9 As part of the Local Places for Nature grant programme, Wales Council for Voluntary 
Action awarded £0.38 million for financial year 2023/24 and £0.45 million for financial 
year 2024/25. The funding will support the creation, restoration or enhancement of 
natural assets and increase biodiversity and nature recovery. 

3.10 Welsh Government have awarded Allotment Support Grant funding of £0.03 million in 
2023/24 and £0.03 million in 2024/25 to increase the availability of good quality 
allotment plots in the county. 

3.11 Welsh Government have awarded £1.91 million funding from the Active Travel Fund. 
The purpose of the funding is to increase levels of active travel and will fund the 
Newtown 3rd crossing and central Welshpool active travel schemes. 

Tudalen 66



 
 
4. Reprofiling Budgets Across Financial Years 
4.1 A review of the capital budgets held for the Sustainable Communities for Learning 

(formally 21st Century Schools) has been carried out and based on the latest estimated 
spend profiles, £17.55 million and £23.81 million has been reprofiled from 2023/24 and 
2024/25 respectively into 2025/26, 2026/27 and 2027/28 as shown in the table below. 
The table also shows the funding that has been reprofiled.  

 
Funding 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

Total Budget (17.55m) (23.81m) 18.53m 19.73m 3.10m 
Capital receipts (0.89m) (1.06m) 1.95m   
Borrowing (3.29m) 0.86m (7.47m) 6.80m 3.10m 
Welsh Government Grant (13.37m) (23.61m) 24.05m 12.93m  

 
4.2 The latest spend profile for the Levelling Up Projects has necessitated £10.96 million 

to be reprofiled from 2023/24 into 2024/25 (£8.45m on the Montgomery scheme and 
£2.51 for the Brecon and Radnor scheme). The schemes are still on track to complete 
by the end of the 2024/25 financial year in line with the grant terms. 

 
5. Capital Receipts 
5.1 A total of £0.77 million has been received to date. There are currently sales agreed to 

the value of £0.95 million (including £0.28 million for the HRA), these are at the legal 
stage of the process and will generate future capital receipts. At this stage it is expected 
that sales totalling £7.80 million could be achieved this financial year. 

6. Virements 
6.1 Approval is requested for a virement of £0.02 million from the Lesure capital budget to 

the Schools Major Improvements budget as a contribution towards the works to 
Llanidloes HS/Sports Centre Gymnasium ceiling and lighting works. 

6.2 Welsh Government funding has been awarded to continue to expand the community 
Electric Vehicle (EV) hubs. As part of this, the Council is required to meet a percentage 
of the total cost. Approval is requested for a virement to allocate £0.02 million to the 
Highways budget from the unallocated capital budget which sits under Finance. This 
will allow the council to accept the grant funding of £0.13 million for this scheme. 

 
7. Resource Implications 
7.1 The Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) notes the content of the report. Expenditure 

for the first quarter at 7.4% is extremely low, the re-profiling of schemes is essential to 
enable us to more accurately project expenditure, the consequential need to borrow 
and the impact on the revenue budget. Expenditure on the Capital Programme 
continues to be monitored carefully through the year, although inflation has stabilised, 
costs are high, alongside supply chain issues and additional borrowing costs which will 
have to be carefully considered.  Prioritisation of resources at a corporate level ensures 
that the council can effectively meet its objectives whilst maintaining an affordable level 
of investment. 

 

Tudalen 67



8. Legal implications 
8.1 The Monitoring Officer has no specific concerns with this report. 
 
9. Recommendation 
9.1 That virements in section 6 are approved. 
9.1 That the contents of this report are noted. 
 
 
Contact Officer: Jane Thomas   
Email: jane.thomas@powys.gov.uk 
Head of Service: Jane Thomas 

 
 
  

Tudalen 68



Appendix A:      Head of Service Commentary 
 

Service Area   Budget  Actuals Budget 
Remaining 

Budget Remaining 
as a % of Budget 

  £’000  £'000 £'000 % 
Adult Services 1,122 6 1,116 99 

HOS Comment 
 

• Expenditure will occur in the second half of the financial year as expected. 
• Regional Integration Fund (£100k) for community equipment has not yet accrued 

expenditure but consistent with previous years, will be utilised later in the year to 
respond to winter pressures, for example, to support hospital discharge pressures  

• Community Equipment Store contract roof (£265k) improvements. Initial works have 
commenced, and this will be completed further in the year and allocation fully utilised.  

• Powys owned care homes (£335k) - lift improvements at one of these care homes will 
absorb a large element of the available allocation. The last property condition survey 
on all of the 13 homes identified a list of improvements required. The capital allocation 
as part of the contract is responsible for completing the list of improvements.  There is 
a high confidence that the allocation will be fully utilised. 

• There is an element for ‘robotics’ (£420k) which means using technology to support 
care. Adult Services and Commissioning plan to review this and will report in quarter 
two.     

 

     

 

Service Area   Budget  Actuals Budget 
Remaining 

Budget Remaining as 
a % of Budget 

  £’000  £'000 £'000 % 
Childrens 
Services 379 23 356 94 

HOS Comment  
 
The Flying Start Childcare provision is nearing completion at Priory in Brecon with full spend 
forecast for 23/24. 
 
Works to renovate Childrens Safe accommodation in order to meet CIW registration is 
continuing and is due to be completed by Sept 2023.  
  

     

 

Service Area   Budget  Actuals Budget 
Remaining 

Budget Remaining as 
a % of Budget 

  £’000  £'000 £'000 % 
Education 28,143 3,049 25,096 89 

The Council’s Transforming Education Programme includes 6 approved school building 
projects and 2 pipeline projects. The latest status of each project is outlined below:  
  
• Ysgol Gymraeg y Trallwng – school opened in April, and currently in defects period. Final 

accounting taking place, estimated to be within approved budget.  Work has taken place to 
close down the old school and this is being transferred to Strategic Property.  

     

Tudalen 69



  
• Ysgol Cedewain - in construction.  There is a slight delay to the original programme, but 

discussions are on-going with the contractor to understand the impact of this and agree the 
transition period to the opening of the school. 

  
• Brynllywarch Hall School – RIBA 4 (technical design) stage has been completed, planning 

application submitted and progressing, on-going discussions with the main contractor over 
costs. 

  
• Ysgol Bro Hyddgen – Following the re-start of the project earlier this year, the RIBA 2 

(Concept Design) stage has now concluded, and RIBA 3 (spatial) is underway.       
  
• Sennybridge CP School – Activity has focused on the tender exercise for a Design and 

Build contractor to complete the design of the school.  Tender period closed 21/07/23.      
  
• Ysgol Calon y Dderwen, Newtown – following completion of RIBA 2 (concept design) stage, 

further exploratory work has been taking place to review the size of the school, with a 
potential to increase from 300 places to a maximum of 420 places.  Discussions have been 
taking place with Ysgol Calon y Dderwen, Treowen CP School and Maesyrhandir CP 
School.  A report will be brought to Cabinet in the autumn term with a preferred way forward. 

  
Pipeline projects  
  
• New Brecon Primary School – tendering for architectural services to undertake a feasibility. 

Headteacher appointed.  
• Ysgol Calon Cymru – Implementation plan currently being developed for consideration by 

Cabinet in the autumn term. 
  

Major Improvement Programme 
 
The Programme supports the improvement of education and early years setting facilities and 
infrastructure for pupils and staff. In this financial year, there are 122 projects with: 

• 2 projects on hold 
• 8 schemes to commission 
• 7 schemes commissioned 
• 26 at the design stage 
• 24 at the tender stage 
• 26 at the construction stage 
• 27 schemes are practically completed on site.  

  
The overall programme budget is £6,181,065 for 2023/24 with expenditure of £784,487 to end 
of July 2023. There are contract commitments of £1.146million for projects in progress. The 
combined expenditure and commitments represent 31% of the overall budget is committed. 
There is some project’s part funded by Community Focus WG Capital grant as agreed with 
Schools Service. There has been an allocation of £870,208 WG ALN Grant and agreement is 
agreed on the priorities for this work with Schools Service. This grant sits outside of this 
programme until the priorities are agreed. 

Welsh Medium Grant – Ysgol Pennant classroom extension - The classroom extension 
work is progressing on site with completion anticipated by the end October 2023. 

 

Tudalen 70



Service Area   Budget  Actuals Budget 
Remaining 

Budget Remaining as 
a % of Budget 

  £’000  £'000 £'000 % 
Highways, 

Transport and 
Recycling 

18,816 2,513 16,303 87 

HOS Comment 
 
• The Highways Capital Programme is on track. To note, the surface dressing programme 

has been completed.  
• Preparation works for the implementation of the 20mph default speed limit for restricted 

roads on the 17th September is on track (grant funded).  
• The Street Lighting programme is on track.  
• Brecon HWRC is programmed for construction Q3 and is on-track.  
 
The service notes that the Q1 financial profile in terms of expenditure is often lighter than other 
quarters, as it is predominantly a period for design/planning with larger expenditure 
programmed later in the year.  
 
As noted last year, inflationary costs have significantly reduced the scope of works achievable 
within the highway’s capital programme.  
 

     

 

Service Area   Budget  Actuals  Budget 
Remaining 

Budget Remaining as 
a % of Budget 

  £’000  £'000 £'000 % 
Property, Planning 

and Public 
Protection 

1,098 50 1,048 95 

HOS Comment 
 
Capital programme is on track. Service area expected spend to be low in Q1 and to mainly be 
spent in Q3 and Q4. No reprofiling of capital expenditure currently required. 
 
Inflationary costs are being monitored and appropriate action will be taken to ensure works fall 
with funding envelops. 
 

     

 

Service Area   Budget  Actuals  Budget 
Remaining 

Budget Remaining as 
a % of Budget 

  £’000  £'000 £'000 % 
Community 

Development 2,259 (42) 2,301 102 
HOS Comment 
A couple of projects / works were delayed in 2022/23 which resulted in capital budget being 
carried forward, with the intention of spending the full amount in 2023/24 which was planned 
for within the programme.  
 

     

Tudalen 71



However, since the beginning of 2023 calendar year, the leisure review process has 
commenced which has resulted in only essential and immediate works in leisure centres being 
agreed, prioritised and undertaken.  
 
Just under £1m of the capital budget is committed to works in quarter one. Expected amounts 
were not fully invoiced by contractors by the end of the quarter but will be spent. In addition, 
for some roofing works in particular, a couple of projects had to be re-tendered due to 
disappointing interest in the first round. 
 
The leisure centres / portfolio is able to maximise the capital budget available when the 
outcome of the leisure review is concluded. 
 

 

Service Area   Budget  Actuals  Budget 
Remaining 

Budget Remaining as 
a % of Budget 

  £’000  £'000 £'000 % 
Housing General 

Fund 3,027 533 2,494 82 

Housing Revenue 
Account 28,647 1,826 26,821 94 

HOS Comment 
 Housing General Fund: For some General Fund works, property owners are able to select 

their own contractors. However, the availability of contractors to undertake works remains 
challenging, with as a result delivery times for aids and adaptations taking longer than 
predicted.  

 Housing Revenue Account: Tender submissions are awaited for two new housing 
development projects, which if the tenders are acceptable, will allow progress on these 
sites to begin later this year with associated spending taking place as works begin. There 
may be a need to carry forward expenditure into future years depending on mobilisation 
times for these projects. If the tenders are not acceptable, a revised specification and 
approach to the schemes will be undertaken and resubmitted to market. It should be noted 
that the HRA is ring fenced, so investment not possible in 2023-2024 will not be lost as the 
funding can and will be carried forward into future years. 

     

 
 

Service Area   Budget  Actuals Budget 
Remaining 

Budget Remaining as 
a % of Budget 

  £’000  £'000 £'000 % 
Economy & Digital 

Services 14,506 (344) 14,850 102 
HOS Comment 
 
Digital Services Capital 
 
The desktop refresh programme is a continual programme and is on track to spend this years’ 
calculated figure although our replacement strategy is being reviewed to realise carbon 
reduction savings and to meet anticipated service staffing changes. The Infrastructure and 
Unallocated programmes are on track to spend following a number of planned purchases 

     

Tudalen 72



relating to onsite infrastructure. Regarding the cloud capital, much of this is planned to be 
spent this financial year but further business cases will be required to highlight changes in 
capital funding. For the individual projects, these are being reviewed in light of the new Digital 
Programme and will be drawn down as part of induvial Project Business cases. 
 
Economy 
 
An underspend from 2022-2023 capital programme from UK Government has resulted in 
monies being utilised through freedoms and flexibilities which is shown in the difference 
between allocated budget and remaining budget.  Overall capital budgets are managed from 
grant funds and profiled until March 2025. This process is managed through quarterly 
reporting fund management and slippage is being managed in monthly review meetings with 
partners and contractors. This includes: 
 
Transforming Towns Programme £5,080,000 for Placemaking Grant is managed through an 
application process. The capital fund is managed through a local and regional panel and the 
spend profile for 2022/23 is slightly under target spend but with approval for roll forward to 
2023/24. Projects are developed with partners and approved as bids are received. The team 
work hard to create opportunity for partners to draw down the capital investment and this is 
regularly monitored with Welsh Government. 
 
Levelling-up Capital Projects. Project expenditure is currently behind schedule, this is 
regularly reviewed with partners to ensure delivery against grant terms and conditions. 
Council project aspects are being managed carefully and costs are within contingency limits 
with work slightly behind schedule but within grant agreements. Any required changes will 
be considered as a one-off Performance Assessment Review (PAR) during the lifetime of 
the project. We are assuming continued underspend of capital receipts from UK Government 
in quarters 1 to 3 at which point it is estimated a PAR review will take place to align predicted 
spend and schedule of works to the capital programme. This review is being left late in year 
as we need to be confident of anticipated delivery timescale from partners as changes can 
only be made once in the lifetime of the programme between 2022 and 2025. Current boards 
are monitoring progress on a monthly basis to ensure the programme remains on track 
against the current profiled spend for quarter 4. 
 

 

Service Area   Budget  Actuals Budget 
Remaining 

Budget Remaining as 
a % of Budget 

  £’000  £'000 £'000 % 
Unallocated 4,499 0 4,499 100 

HOS Comment 
 
 
The budget held here is the currently unallocated funds set aside for pipeline projects.  
 

     

 
 
 

Tudalen 73



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 

 
CABINET EXECUTIVE 
19th September 2023 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: County Councillor David Thomas  

Portfolio Holder for Finance and Transformation 
  
REPORT TITLE: Financial Planning Update 
  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Decision  

 
1. Purpose  
 
1.1 To provide Cabinet with an update on the latest economic projections and how 

these influence and impact on the development of the Council’s Budget for 
2023/25 and the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
 

2. Background 
 
2.1  The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) sets out the financial strategy for 

Powys County Council for the period 2023 to 2028. It has been developed as 
part of the overall strategic planning process and aligned with the Council’s 
Corporate Plan.  It captures the financial, regulatory and policy drivers affecting 
the council and sets the direction and approach. It also incorporates the plan for 
delivering a balanced budget for 2023/24, and indicative budgets for the 
following 4 years to March 2028.  

 
2.1 The economic situation continues to challenge the council and although inflation 

does appear to have slowed, it remains high and continues to impact on the 
cost of delivering Council services.  
 

2.2 This report sets out the key factors impacting on our financial planning and how 
these change the assumptions we use in developing our budget plans.  

 
3 Economic Context 
 
3.1   Our current MTFS was informed by the forecasts published in the Office for 

Budget Responsibility (OBR) report “Economic and fiscal outlook” in November 
2022.  Updated OBR figures were published alongside the UK Spring Budget in 
March 2023 and more recently the “Fiscal risks and sustainability – July 2023” 
report updates these forecasts.  These reports have enabled the Council to 
update the assumptions that support our financial planning.     

 
3.2 The 2020s are turning out to be a very risky and challenging period for the 

public finances. In just three years, they have been hit by the Covid pandemic, 
the energy and cost-of-living crisis, and the sudden interest rate rises in 2022.  
The consequences of which continue to unfold. This rapid succession of shocks 
has delivered the deepest recession in three centuries, the sharpest rise in 

Tudalen 75

8



 

energy prices since the 1970s, and the steepest sustained rise in borrowing 
costs since the 1990s.  

 
3.3 On the 9th August 2023, the First Minister, Mark Drakeford MS issued a 

statement outlining the significant financial pressure Welsh Government (WG) 
are facing in the current 2023/24 financial year and as they prepare for the 
2024/25 budget round.  He stated that “this is the toughest financial situation we 
have faced since devolution”.  As Ministers review their departmental budgets it 
is yet to be established how their action will impact directly or indirectly Local 
Government.  NHS funding will no doubt also be subject to review and 
reductions here could also impact on the Council where joint funding 
arrangements exist such as Continuing Health Care, Additional Learning Needs 
and Childrens services. 

 
3.4 The UK Government has set itself a target to halve the inflation levels seen in 

the early months of 2023, before the year is out. Forecasters are generally 
expecting Consumer Prices Index (CPI) to fall sharply over the remainder of the 
year, linked to a fall in wholesale gas prices, an anticipated reduction in the cost 
of imported goods, and Bank of England monetary policy regarding interest 
rates. However, it is notable that the Bank of England’s latest forecasts suggest 
that decreases may not be as steep as previously predicted. With inflation still 
very high in core elements of the CPI basket of goods, price increases will 
remain a critical factor to keep under review in terms of budget planning. 

 
3.5 Inflation continues to impose pressure on our costs, but headline figures don’t 

tell the whole story. Food inflation is lower than it was but the rate of increase is 
still very high at 18.4% and some old pressures are proving persistent. The 
transport category looks much more stable at 1.3% inflation overall, however 
beneath this the cost of transport insurance for example is showing a massive 
increase of 40.7%.  

 
3.6 Overall CPI has slowed from 10.1% in March 2023 to 6.8% in July.  Slowing 

inflation does not mean that prices are reducing, just that they are rising more 
slowly.   

 
3.7 In May 2023, the Bank of England revised its inflation forecasts to 5.1% by the 

end of 2023, (compared with 3.9% in its February forecast). The Bank also 
indicated that it does not now expect inflation to reach its 2% target until the end 
of 2024. Whilst the picture is changeable, there is a consistent message that 
inflation is likely to fall, although perhaps not as quickly as originally forecast, 
and with ongoing challenges for some goods and services.   

 
3.8 Bank of England base rate is currently set at 5.25% and will again be subject to 

review on the 21st September 2023. 
 
3.9 Market intelligence reports that energy commodity markets have experienced 

unprecedented price increases for both electricity and gas. Having risen 
thirteen-fold in the wake of the Russian invasion of Ukraine in 2022, gas prices 
have fallen back more recently but are expected to remain at over twice their 
historical average into the mid-2020s.    However, following a period of prices on 
a downwards trajectory, the start of June saw prices creeping higher due to 

Tudalen 76



 

maintenance issues at Norwegian’s Nyhamna gas processing plant and the 
recent weather in Europe increasing electricity demand through higher use of 
air conditioning. More generally market demand is down on the previous year 
and capacity is good.  

 
3.10 A mix of rising labour costs and workforce related legacies such as a shortage 

of replacement skills coming through the industries, are also affecting some 
services more than others, including transport, construction and social care. 

 
3.11 More generally as a result of the rising costs and expected funding pressures 

that will be imposed on Local Government over the next few years, press 
coverage and Local Government Associations are already reporting that some 
Councils may have to consider ceasing the provision of non-essential services, 
reducing statutory service provision and cutting capital investment plans, whilst 
increasing Council Tax and other fees and charges by more than planned 
aligned to inflation or even higher.  

 
3.12 The economic context outlined above has significant implications for the 

Council’s financial planning. These are summarised below and are key factors 
in framing the assumptions and cost drivers in 2024/25 and over the medium 
term.  

 
Factor  Planning Implications 
Inflation Increase in costs across various categories of goods and 

service, Contractual arrangements driven by CPI/RPI, 
Impact on Pay Awards.  Impact across Revenue and 
Capital. 

Energy  Energy costs have a significant impact on budgets across 
Council property, Schools, Leisure Centres, Offices, Street 
Lighting 
Fuel costs are key costs drivers for Council vehicles and 
transport providers  

Interest Rates Cost of Borrowing and affordability of the Capital 
Programme 

Economic Growth Impact on future funding settlements for Local Government  
Labour market Shortage of staff leading to increasing costs for 

commissioned services and agency staff, real living wage 
 
4 Understanding the impact 
  
4.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy approved in principle by Council for the 

next five years and the assumptions contained within the strategy were based 
on the latest information available at that time.  It does not include fixed funding, 
expenditure or activity projections, but sets out a five-year budget forecast for 
the resources that are likely to be available.  
 

4.2 As set out in section 3 it is appropriate to again update our strategy to reflect the 
changes and how this impacts on the councils budget.  This will increase the 
budget gap over the life of the plan which will need to be resolved by either 
generating additional income or reducing costs.    

 

Tudalen 77



 

4.3 Work with other Authorities and through the Society of Welsh Treasures has 
supported the review, testing and challenging the assumptions we make as we 
develop and update our plans.   
 

4.4 Our MTFS previously assumed 2% inflation non pay uplifts with some external 
contract uplifts identified as pressures and funded to CPI or other contract 
terms.  The highest of which were utility increases – (355% gas and 173% 
electric).  These assumptions have been reviewed and reconsidered in our 
plans.  Each of the factors below will be regularly reviewed as we continue to 
see volatility.  

 
• Energy Costs will see a reduction on the increase applied in the current, 

expected at over 20% 
• Fuel 5% 
• Food 5% 
• Capital Scheme costs 
• Cost of Borrowing – see section 5 
• Inflationary impact on contractual obligations for commissioned services 

(5%) 
 
4.5 As a service-driven organisation, workforce costs are a key cost driver across 

our services.  Sustained levels of high inflation have resulted in protracted pay 
negotiation processes and upward pressure on pay awards for both NJC 
Council staff and Teachers Pay. 

 
4.6 Pay negotiations continue at a national level and are expected to exceed the 

budgeted 5% increase for 2023-24, now likely to be closer to 7%.  Whilst this 
pressure can be managed during 2023/24, due to using the opportunity to set 
aside reserves at the end of last year, the ongoing base budget must be 
addressed in 2024/25 adding additional pressure over and above any pay 
award agreed for that year.     Assumptions for future years were budgeted at a 
2% increase per annum from 2024/25 but with inflation remaining at current 
levels annual increases are now budgeted to be higher at 5% then dropping 1% 
per annum before falling back to 2% in the latter years of our plan.  Pay award 
assumptions are a critical factor to keep under review. As pay is such a 
significant budget, small changes can have a big impact on cost, a 1% change 
is equivalent to £1.7 million.  

 
4.7 Pension Costs – Powys Pension Fund’s actuarial review was completed  in 

March 2023 resulting in a reduction in the Councils contribution rate, this 
change is now reflected in the Councils Budget Plan with a stepped saving of 
£1.7 million over 3 years to March 2026.  The Teacher’s Pension Scheme 
(TPS) is subject to its actuarial review which will take effect from 1st April 2024 
and implemented in September 2024.  Our planning assumes that any increase 
in contribution rates for Teaching staff will be fully funded by Welsh 
Government, as was the case at the last review.  However, due to the 
significant impact any change would have on Powys Schools budgets we will 
note this pressure in our plan, currently estimated at a full year cost of £3 
million.  
 

Tudalen 78



 

4.8 Pay and cost pressures have been equally challenging for providers of the 
service that the Council commission and it is inevitable that they will seek to 
pass these on in their pricing.  Pressure may emerge as we retender our 
services and negotiate annual reviews.   

 
4.9 The Council is a Real Living Wage (RLW) Employer and an advocate of RLW, 

with its own staff and apprentices are all paid at this level or above.  Welsh 
Government have funded RLW to Social Care staff employed with external 
providers, and this is forms part of our WG settlement. In the current year the 
RLW element of provider contracts will cost the Council around £2.8 million 
funded by WG. 

 
4.10 The Council purchases its energy via Crown Commercial Services (CCS).  

Regular briefings keep the council informed on market conditions and provides 
data to assist us in budget preparation.   Our current assumptions across 
schools, street lighting and the Council’s other estate are for a reduction of 15% 
for electricity and 29% for gas in 2024-25 and a further reduction of 20% and 
26% in 2025-26. The situation will require careful monitoring as prices are 
susceptible to further change, and there will be a need to proactively plan for 
mitigating actions, including a review and reduction in energy usage. 

 
4.11 Construction and material costs continue to be impacted by inflation and have a 

severe impact on the cost of schemes for both Revenue and more significantly 
for Capital Projects.  It is unclear at this stage how this will impact the 
programme over the coming years.  

 
4.12 The cost of living challenge continues to impact on our local businesses and 

residents, demand for our services has grown and is expected to  create further 
additional pressure on the Council and its services through 2024/25 and 
beyond.  Key areas include:-   

 
•   Increasing homelessness 
•   Referrals to Social Services 
•   Increasing levels of debt owed to the Council 
•   Council Tax collections rates 
•   Money Advice, Benefits support, Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
 

4.13 Demand for these and other services are already a key feature in our budget 
plans and these will continue to be monitored and updated through the autumn 
ahead of finalising the budget for 2024/25.    

 
4.14 All of the above impacts on our indicative budget plan for 2024/25 which is now 

estimated at  £16.3 million, an increase of £6.0 million from the £10.3 million 
gap projected in February 2023.  The worst case gap is £18.0 million if the 
Teachers pension increase from September 2024 is included. 

 
4.15 The table below shows the impact of the change for the most significant 

elements of our budget.   
 

Tudalen 79



 

 
 
 

5 Capital Financing  
 
5.1 The Capital strategy sets out the Council’s capital priorities for the next 5 years 

with the provisional Capital Programme totalling £369 million (including the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)).  This is a significant commitment.    

   
5.2 Construction and material price increases affect the capital programme and 

revenue budget in terms of managing and maintaining Council assets. 
Inflationary pressures are having multiple effects, including cost increases 
where commitments are yet to be approved/delivered, capacity constraints, 
willingness to tender for works, and the pricing of risk into contracts.  External 
grant funding may not keep up with such increases, and so the risk of 
affordability should the Council continue with some projects, is significant, 
unless costs are reduced elsewhere.  

 
5.3 Existing borrowing is at fixed rates. However, given current commitments and a 

significant future borrowing requirement to fund the programme there remains a 
significant risk of increased costs well into the long term. Whilst there is a 
market view that rates may fall back as soon as inflation is deemed to be under 
control, it is unclear whether this will be to levels previously experienced.   

 
5.4 The most recent forecasts for interest rates are shown below. The revised 

Medium Term Financial Strategy has been updated to take account of these 
changes.  

 

FRM Figures
2024/25                      

(as at Mar 23)                              
£k

2024/25                
(Aug 23 )         

£k

2024/25  
Variance                                   

£k
Pay Inflation for previous year (2023/24) 0 2,387 2,387
Pay Inflation 4,152 8,712 4,561
Non-pay Inflation 1,104 2,613 1,509
Grant Changes 214 214 0
Capital Financing 1,001 1,001 0
Corporate Pressures 897 897 0
Demographic Pressures 722 503 -219
Contract and Other Pressures 14,900 15,471 571
Savings (690) (3,522) (2,832)
Total Requirement 22,300 28,276 5,976
Council Tax increase - 5% (4,898) (4,898) 0
Welsh Government Increase - 2% then 0% (7,089) (7,089) 0
Additional Funding (11,986) (11,986) 0
Gap 10,313 16,290 5,976
Teachers Pension Funding Uncertainty 0 1,750 1,750
Worst Case Gap 10,313 18,040 7,726

Tudalen 80



 

 
 
5.5 It is essential we utilise our capital appropriately and all bids follow the approval 

gateway.  The Council has strengthened its scrutiny and challenge of the 
Capital Programme through the Schools Capital Oversight Board and more 
recently the Capital Oversight Board.  These Boards seek assurance that 
projects are prudent, affordable and will deliver tangible benefits over the long 
term.  

 
5.6 The Capital Programme will be reviewed and reconsidered during the Autumn 

to ensure that the revenue implications of capital expenditure is accurately 
reflected in the FRM and that the capital expenditure plans of the council remain 
affordable, prudent and sustainable.  To support this there are a number of key 
considerations: 
 

• Managing Capital Financing costs 
• Maximising grant funding and other income sources 
• Sustainable and well maintained asset base 
• Prioritising investment to support key Council priorities and delivery of 

corporate objectives 
• undertaken only where there is a statutory requirement on the Council to 

undertake such works to address identified corporate risks. 
• Delivery of approved transformation projects which contribute to cost 

reductions or improvement   
• Where appropriate release assets to deliver Capital receipts  
• Decarbonisation and climate risk 
• Demonstrate Value for Money    

 
5.7 Schemes already included in the indicative programme will be reviewed in 

respect of timing and risk to service delivery objectives. Schemes that are not 
time critical may be deferred to later in the programme to focus internal capacity 
on delivery of priority schemes, allowing the impact of economic uncertainty to 
be clearer, and to spread the timing of any borrowing requirement and treasury 
management risk.  
 

5.8 An extensive review of the Councils assets is being undertaken, this will 
establish the current condition of all assets, the ongoing maintenance costs and 
any investment requirements, how the assets contribute to the delivery of 
services and supports the Corporate Plan.   An enhanced focus is needed on 
disposal, relinquishment and alternative use, and working with partners to 
maximise opportunities for co-location of services. Once this is complete, any 

Tudalen 81



 

future capital investment together with the proceeds from the sale of surplus 
assets will be included in the capital programme. 

 
5.9 Capital receipts are an important means of increasing the affordability of the 

Capital Programme. The generation of capital receipts is also consistent with 
the need to accelerate a reduction in the Council’s asset base where this can 
support savings requirements or reduce maintenance liabilities and the carbon 
output of the Council.  

 
6 Other Pressures 

 
6.1 Service specific pressures are being reviewed by the Senior Leadership Team, 

these will consider demographic changes, specific contractual arrangements 
and legislative changes and will undoubtedly create additional pressure in our 
plans.  Managing and mitigating these will be a key focus as the budget 
develops over the next few months. 
 

7 Future Funding  
 
7.1 The net revenue budget requirement is the amount of budget the Council 

requires to fulfil its functions.  It is calculated taking the output of each of the 
service integrated business plans; these identify the resource requirements for 
each service to deliver their statutory functions, the Corporate Plan and service 
improvement objectives offset by budget reduction and additional income 
proposals. 
 

7.2 The financing of the net budget comes from the Welsh Government settlement 
and Council Tax income. Assumptions for these elements are key in developing 
our plans.   

 

 
 

 
7.3 Alongside this year’s final settlement announcement Welsh Government (WG) 

issued an indicative allocation for the Revenue Support Grant for 2024/25 at 
3.1%. This figure is indicative and dependent on current estimates of NDR 
income and the funding provided to WG by the UK Government.  The 
announcement of the Provisional Local Government Settlement is again 
expected to be delayed to December rather than October.   
 

7.4 For planning purposes our budget plan models 3 scenarios based on 2%, 0% 
and -2% from 2025/26.  A 0% reduction for 2025/26 would equate to £4.7 
million less. 
 

7.5 Council Tax increase is currently modelled at 5% year on year increase.  
Cabinet have not yet discussed the level at which Council Tax will be set, the 
percentage used is for illustrative purposes only at this stage and is based on 
the figure originally included in the MTFS approved by Council March.   In 

Funding £'000 2024/25 2025/26
AEF (RSG & NNDR) 3.1% & 2% 235,753-                240,468-                
Council Tax 5% 102,854-                107,996-                
Total 338,607-                348,465-                

Tudalen 82



 

proposing the final level of increase for the 2024/25 budget, consideration will 
be given to the affordability for Powys residents, together with the ongoing need 
to meet increasing demand and inescapable cost pressures on vital local 
services.  In addition there will be small adjustments to the current tax base. 
  

7.6 Income from fees and charges makes a significant contribution (£78 million per 
annum) to the Council’s budget and the Council’s approach to income 
generation is set out the Councils Income Policy, fees and charges will be 
reviewed in line with this policy will be presented in the updated Fees and 
Charges Register, which will be presented with the budget papers annually for 
approval.  The council’s policy is based on the principle of full cost recovery and 
inflationary uplifts will be considered to ensure that the Council can continue to 
recover its costs for the services it provides. A blanket uplift is not assumed, 
however an increase in line with inflation is expected unless there is a clear 
rational to do otherwise.  Increases in income will be reflected at a service level 
in the FRM. 
 

7.7 In addition to the AEF, Councils also receive specific grants which are 
accompanied by specific terms and conditions as to how they can be used.  For 
2023/24 specific grants account for £79 million of the Council funding. Whilst 
welcomed these are generally a temporary source of funding allocated on an 
annual basis, and this creates a recruitment challenge and financial risk 
particularly when inflationary pressures erode the real term value of this 
funding.  WG have committed to reduce the administrative burden on local 
authorities and will review specific grants.  The impact of this review, including 
any potential grant transfers into the RSG will need to be factored into plans as 
further information becomes available.  It is important to note that any such 
transfers can distort the percentage change in funding when headline 
announcements are made.     

 
7.8 Grant Funding is a significant financing element for our Capital schemes.  In 

2023/24 £43 million will support Schools, Highways and Housing projects.  This 
funding is a key element to support the affordability of the Capital Programme 
and will remain fundamental in our forward capital plans.    

  
8. Revised Financial Resource Model and Budget Gap  
 
8.1 The assumptions included in the original MTFS have all been reviewed in light 

of the circumstances described in the earlier sections of the report.  The table at 
Appendix A updates the position from that reported in March 2023.   

 
8.2 Our modelling assumes that our optimistic assumption for the WG Settlement 

creates an £15.3 million budget gap next year and a cumulative gap of £43.4 
million.  The worst case scenario sees the cumulative figure increase to £82.3 
million at the end of year 5.  

 
8.3 The Financial Resource Model (FRM) continues to be updated and will not be 

finalised until the budget work has been completed.  The assumptions will 
continue to be reviewed as the budget process progresses, and these will 
inevitably lead to further changes in our financial modelling. The indicative draft 
budget from WG will not be released until December 2023, with final budgets in 

Tudalen 83



 

March 2024. Council tax levels included are purely for modelling purposes at 
this stage and have been maintained at levels modelled previously 
notwithstanding that the gap has increased.    

 
9. Strategy to bridge the gap : Sustainable Powys  
 
9.1 It is becoming clear that the Council in its current form is not sustainable for the 

longer term, in response to this challenge the Council has embarked on a 
programme of change to reimagine what the Council should look like in the 
future to ensure that it can remain financially stable and provide sustainable 
services in the long-term.   

 
9.2 Delivering valued local government services is at the heart of all we do. With 

changing times and economic conditions, we need to be pro-active, innovative 
and forward-thinking to deliver effective public services for the future.  

 
9.3 We recognise the challenges and we want to work in partnership to explore the 

opportunities to make the changes needed to build the stronger, fairer and 
greener future for Powys. 
 

9.4 “Sustainable Powys” will review what services we provide and how they are 
provided to meet current needs whilst ensuring we have innovative solutions to 
provide the best services adapted for our future generations.  It is about working 
together to design a future for our local authority that delivers stronger, fairer 
and greener services whilst reducing our costs. 
 

9.5 In line with Stronger Fairer Greener, Sustainable Powys key principles are:- 
 

• Outcomes and transformation, not just modifying services 
• Engagement: engaging early with people in agreeing, designing and 

delivering outcomes 
• Addressing the fundamental question: why do we do what we do? 
• Having a strategic whole county view, not just the Council 
• Innovation: being open minded and seeking innovative solutions, using all the 

expertise available 
• Using evidence - if we aren’t getting results, we should change 
• It's a continual process to meet existing and long-term needs sustainably 
• Delivering outcomes at lower or no costs 

 
9.6 When considering how we transform our services the following principles will 

apply: - 
 

• Moving from an organisational focus (supporting our own internal 
requirements and functional silo’s) to a focus that looks to meet our 
residents and communities’ needs. 

• Management ethos focuses on improving the outcomes for residents and 
communities by removing barriers. 

• Moving from functional silos to services that effectively meets our 
residents and communities’ demand. 

Tudalen 84



 

• Decision making is based on a clear set of principles, experience, 
knowledge, robust evidence and is taken as close to the frontline as 
possible. 

• Continuous improvement informed by timely data which will measure 
how well we are delivering outcomes for residents and communities.  

• Accountable for activities and accepting responsibility, resulting in 
transparent delivery of effective outcomes. 

• We challenge everything we do and will realise the right outcomes using 
our transformation methodology.  

• Partnerships are outcome focused, based on collaboration and strong 
relationships (working together, stronger together). 

 
9.7 Our work has gained momentum over the summer months. As this work 

progresses throughout the Autumn proposals will be developed for 
consideration before inclusion in our budget plan.  Where proposals can deliver 
earlier savings and where no policy decision is required and there is no impact 
on our residents, they will be implemented as soon as possible.     

 
10.  Financial Resilience 
 
10.1 The Council must put financial resilience at the forefront of its financial activities 

and draws upon the support from Audit Wales who undertake regular pan 
Wales assessments on councils’ financial sustainability.   
 

10.2 The Council draws upon CIPFA’s pillars of financial resilience and indicators of 
financial stress as a framework for improvement within its Finance 
Transformation plan.  The snapshot included at Appendix B builds on CIPFA 
financial resilience  pillars, which focus on reserves levels, managing the in year 
budget and delivering savings, a long term robust MTFS and benchmarking 
against others shown through trend analysis and forecasts.  

 
10.3 The snapshot provides a high-level overview of the financial health of the 

Council. Whilst the snapshot presents no immediate cause for concern the 
ongoing challenges linked to the medium term are clear. Other points of note 
within the snapshot are summarised below: 

 
• Revenue Outturn shows a year on year underspend that increased 

through the Covid period, it was supported by significant savings 
achieved each year. In recent years we have achieved less than 80% of 
our savings target each year, with some being written off and others 
rolled forward, our aspiration is to improve delivery to over 90% of our 
savings target in this and future years. 

• A consequence of the underspends has been the ability to shore up 
useable reserves in readiness for specific pressures likely to materialise 
in the coming years, which may be needed to help support the MTFS 
and delivering balanced budgets. Over the medium term, it will be key 
that we understand the one-off nature of these resources and carefully 
prioritise them to ensure that, in line with their intended purpose, they are 
either spent on areas of most impact, or retained as a buffer against 
areas of highest risk. 

Tudalen 85



 

• The snapshot highlights the importance of external income from grants to 
customer and client income through fees and charges. These income 
streams increased through the Covid period and have now dropped to 
pre Covid levels, the volatility of these income streams pose a risk to the 
council and its financial planning.  Fees and charges are susceptible to 
external factors, whilst for grants, there is a risk of real term reductions of 
cost against funding uplifts, grants ceasing and planning challenges. It is 
critical that these income streams and the risks associated with them are 
managed as proactively as possible - at best to help address the budget 
gap, at worst to avoid adding to it. 

• Capital spend remains consistent year on year, and this years forecast is 
likely to reduce as services review their plans and reprofile budgets. This 
highlights the need to undertake robust and realistic assessment of 
delivery capabilities as part of rolling the programme forward and 
profiling expenditure.  The outturn forecast is likely to mean lower than 
planned borrowing costs with a knock on effect in future years.  

• The benchmarking comparisons show how Powys compares against 
other Welsh authorities, whilst our useable reserves have increased, the 
comparators show that we are in the bottom quartile of the level of 
reserve against net budget. 

 
 

10.4 The findings of the Powys Financial Sustainability review by Audit Wales (AW) 
published in July 2021 set out three proposals for improvements, these remain 
valid: 

  
• addressing the medium term budget gap,  
• ensuring that the ambitious capital strategy is affordable, and  
• continues to ensure that it monitors whether its budget planning 

processes are   having the desired effect and helping to prevent 
significant overspends in key service areas.  

 
10.5 The later AW Assurance and Risk Assessment Review – Powys County Council 

in February 2023 stresses “that the Council needs to develop a sustainable plan 
to address substantial emerging cost pressures”. 

 
10.6 Significant progress has been made to improve financial resilience and is 

evidenced in the Audit Wales review and documented as part of our Financial 
Management (FM) Code Assessment.   

11. Financial Risks  

 
11.1 At a time when the Council is facing unprecedented challenges, the effective 

management of risk is needed more than ever.  The Risk management framework 
that we have in place ensures that we identify, consider and manage risks 
appropriately There are a number of risks identified in terms of our financial 
planning and these are summarised as follows:- 

Budget Delivery Risks 

Tudalen 86



 

• Change Delivery Capacity  
• Delivery of Cost Reductions  
• Political Approval of Budget  
• Economic Factors 
• COVID  

 
Funding Risks 
• Variations to Settlement Assumptions  
• Grants 
• Income 
• Debt management & recovery  
• Treasury Management  
 
Demand and Service pressure  
 

11.2 The effective monitoring and managing of these risks supports our financial 
resilience and as our plans are finalised the risks will be assessed and provision 
to mitigate them will be considered through the continued use of the revenue risk 
budget and the level of reserves that we will maintain.     

12 Reserves 
 
12.1 The Councils position on reserves remains in line with our Reserve Policy.  The 

need to hold an appropriate level of Reserves has been brought to the fore over 
the last year and with continued economic uncertainty our reserves remain 
crucial to our financial stability.   

 
12.2 The position going forward will require reserves to be maintained at a prudent 

level.  It is evident that, given the continued level of inflation, future cost 
pressures and lower funding settlements indicated, the challenge to deliver 
balanced budgets carries a significant risk, reserves are fundamental to 
managing this risk.  

 
12.3 In the interests of financial resilience, reserves should not be relied upon as 

general budget funding. This is because: 
 

• It creates a gap in the finances of the following year as reserves are cash 
sums.  

• Earmarked reserves are set aside for a particular purpose.  
• Reserves are an important part of financial resilience, providing a cash 

buffer.  
• Cash in reserves is not idle; it generates investment income in line with 

the Treasury Management Strategy and avoids the need for short-term 
borrowing.  

 
12.4 The use of reserves and the levels at which they are maintained is determined 

on an annual basis as part of the Council’s budget setting process following a risk 
based assessment. In the main reserves are held corporately rather than service 
based, except where specific reserves and their use have been agreed.   

 

Tudalen 87



 

 
13 Budget timetable 
 
13.1 The draft Budget Timetable was published in July in line with the Council’s 

constitution and is set out at Appendix C. The timetable allows for SLT / EMT and 
Cabinet to shape the draft budget, alongside engagement with Council and 
Scrutiny committees through the process. It is again anticipated that the draft and 
final settlements from Welsh Government will be delayed.   

 
14 Resource Implications 
 

The Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) has provided the following comment: 
 
14.1 This report identifies the factors and the implications that they have on the 

Council financial plans.  It refreshes the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
updating the assumptions upon which it was originally based and sets the policy 
framework and direction in which the budget proposals will continue to be 
developed.   

 
14.2 The current volatility dictates that we will keep the position under constant 

review and we will continue to update our assumptions and their impact on the 
FRM as required.   

 
14.3 Discussions at a national level will be very important as we move through the 

Autumn and we will work closely with other Authorities and the WLGA to ensure 
that the impact the current economic position is having on the Council is fully 
understood, together with the implications this will have on our ability to deliver 
appropriate Council services to our residents.  

 
15 Legal implications 
 

The Head of Legal Services (and the Monitoring Officer) has commented as 
follows: “ The recommendations are supported from a legal point of view”.    
 

16 Data Protection 
 

There are no data protection issues within this report. 
 

17 Comment from local member(s) 
 

This report relates to all service areas across the whole County. 
 
18 Impact Assessment 
 

No impact assessment is required at this stage but as proposals are developed 
they will be supported by an Integrated Impact Assessment to inform the 
decision.  
 

19 Recommendations 
 

Tudalen 88



 

19.1 Cabinet acknowledge the changing environment in which our plans are being 
developed and agree with the revised assumptions that are being used to 
support the development of the MTFS; and that work will continue to update 
and refresh the MTFP as appropriate.  

19.2 Agree that the Senior Leadership Team continues to work with the relevant 
Portfolio Cabinet Member(s) to identify potential savings to assist in addressing 
the indicative budget gap across the period of the Medium Term Financial Plan. 

19.3 Delegate to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Finance, the authority to implement any saving proposal in advance 
of 2024/25 where no policy recommendation is required. 

19.4 This report is presented to Finance Panel for their scrutiny and feedback. 
 
 
 
Contact Officer:  Jane Thomas 
Tel: 01597 827789   
Email: jane.thomas@powys.gov.uk 
 
Head of Service: Jane Thomas, Head of Finance  
 
Corporate Director:    

 
 
 
Documents referenced to support this report: 
 
Office for Budget Responsibility :  “Economic and fiscal outlook” in November 2022 
and “Fiscal risks and sustainability – July 2023”  
WLGA Briefing July 2023 - Market Intelligence Expert Group 
Written Statement by the Welsh Government First Minister, Mark Drakeford MS - 
Update about Budget 2023-24, 9th August 2023. 
  
 

Tudalen 89



 

Appendix A 
 
FINANCE RESOURCE MODEL 2024-2029
REVENUE EXPENDITURE 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29

£ £ £ £ £
Base Budget (Prior Year) 326,620,380 354,896,620 375,561,134 393,419,958 408,763,603

Pay Award inflation 2023-24 Impact 2,387,336 0 0 0 0

Pay Award inflation 2024 onwards 8,712,370 7,657,485 5,958,506 4,220,731 3,954,369

Non pay Inflation 2,612,635 2,318,400 1,793,803 1,226,435 1,247,415

Grant Changes & Transfers into RSG (+) 214,000 0 0 0 0

Total Covid Pressures to be Addressed (206,652) (206,652) (107,652) (107,652) (107,652)

Total Demography 502,833 734,270 734,270 734,270 734,271

Total Corporate Pressures 897,465 922,140 948,049 975,253 1,003,817

Total Service Pressures 15,393,336 9,668,131 8,360,038 8,206,407 7,967,258

Schools Reserves and Movements

Total Cost Reductions (3,522,342) (1,062,060) (205,420) (125,930) (128,450)

Undelivered Savings 284,340 0 0 0 0

Total Capital Financing 1,000,920 632,800 377,230 214,130 214,130

Total FRM Revenue Net Exp 354,896,620 375,561,134 393,419,958 408,763,603 423,648,761

FRM Net Exp 354,896,620 375,561,134 393,419,958 408,763,603 423,648,761
Current Year Budget 326,620,380 354,896,620 375,561,134 393,419,958 408,763,603

 GAP - each year 28,276,240 20,664,514 17,858,824 15,343,645 14,885,159

Additional Funding 
Council Tax increase - 5% and tax base increase -4,897,801 -5,142,692 -5,399,826 -5,669,817 -5,953,308
Settlement  (8.7%, 3.1%, 2% then on) -7,088,603 -4,715,064 -4,809,365 -4,905,553 -5,003,664

Funding Shortfall each Year 16,289,836 10,806,759 7,649,632 4,768,274 3,928,186

Funding Shortfall Cumulative 16,289,836 27,096,594 34,746,227 39,514,501 43,442,687

Tudalen 90



 

Appendix C -    Budget Timetable 2024-25 
Date Meeting/Responsibility EMT, SLT and Cabinet Activities 

April - August Senior Leadership Team 
(SLT) 

 Work on Sustainability Proposals 

August Executive Management 
Team (EMT)  

Develop budget planning, Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
approach 

August EMT MTFS modelling in the Finance Resource Model (FRM) 

10th Sept Cabinet / EMT / SLT Decide on public engagement re budgets and work up approach as part of 
budget workshop 

13th Sept Political Groups Section 151 (Head of Finance) and political groups - updates on budgets 

18th Sept  Council Budget Seminar Overarching update 

Sept Schools Budget Forum Opportunity to meet the requirements of the School Forums regulations in 
relation to consultation on schools budget and any Service Level 
Agreements (SLAs) / charging for goods / services to schools' budget shares 
(NB minimum 3 months before agreement finalised) 

Sept Welsh Government (WG) Autumn spending review 

Sept Finance Collate all savings and growth proposals in IBPs 

Sept Finance Collate the capital proposals identified through the IBP - if any as we know 
bids can be submitted through the year 

30th Sept SLT Integrated Business Plan (IBP) 1st draft - link to Corporate Plan 

28th Sept Finance panel Scrutiny of updated MTFS and feedback  

October IBP Service Panels Various dates - Each Head has a panel challenge event Oct                                                                                      
03rd October – IBP Education 
11th October IBP – Adult Social Care 
19th October – IBP Workforce Organisational Development 
03th October – IBP Planning, Property, Public Protection                                                                                                    
04th October – IBP Housing, 

25th October – IBP  Community Development 
17th October – IBP Highways, Transport, Recycling 
31stth October – IBP Children’s Services 
19th November – IBP Finance 
12th November – IBP T&C and Economy and Digital 

October Group Leaders Alternative budgets  timetable agreed 

18th Oct Political groups Section 151 and political groups - updates on budgets and consultation 

24th October Cabinet / EMT / SLT Budget workshop 

17th 
November 

Schools Budget Forum Consultation required on any proposed new charges / SLAs or changes to 
existing charges / Service level Agreements (SLAs) to schools' budgets at 
least three months before agreement is finalised. 

Tudalen 91



 

6th November Council Budget seminar  

13th 
November 

Cabinet/SLT/EMT/Comms Planning the budget consultation as part of budget workshop 

15th 
November 

Group Leaders Budget Update 

21st Nov Cabinet Set council tax base 

30th 
November 

Joint Council Update unions  

4 and 5th Dec Cabinet / EMT / SLT Budget workshop 

Nov / Dec Comms Budget consultation with public goes live 

Dec Schools Budget Forum Opportunity to meet the requirements of the School Forums regulations in 
relation to consultation on schools budget and any SLAs / charging for 
goods / services to schools' budget shares (NB minimum 3 months before 
agreement finalised) 

13th Dec Group Leaders Budget Update 

Dec SLT Update on budget Finance Resource Model  (FRM)  

Dec Welsh Government Draft settlement  

Dec/Jan Comms Consultation closure 

Dec/jan Comms Finalise consultation responses and feedback findings 

19th Dec Cabinet / EMT / SLT Budget workshop 

2024 
 

  

Jan Head of Finance Business rates consultation  

Jan Finance Community council precepts finalised 

Jan Cabinet/EMT Finalise draft budget - informal meetings 

Jan Group Leaders Budget Update 

Jan Clerks Publish cabinet agenda 

16th  Jan Formal Cabinet Approve draft budget (MTFS & FRM), reserve policy, capital strategy and 
Fees & Charges Register (income and charging schedule) and recommend 
to full council for approval  

31st Jan Finance Panel Budget scrutiny 

2nd Feb Political Groups Preparation of Alternative Budget & discussions  with Heads re Impact  
assessments 

29th  – 31st 
Jan  

Scrutiny Scrutiny of draft budget - 

Feb Group Leaders Budget Update 

Tudalen 92



 

Feb Head of Finance Discussion of alternative Budget with Section 151 officer 

5th Feb Finance / Groups Last date for submission of alternative budget with Final Impact 
assessments 

6th Feb Clerks Issue Scrutiny Agenda for Alternative Budget (papers to follow) 

6th Feb Cabinet Informal Cabinet to consider Scrutiny Comments on Cabinet Budget 

8th Feb Head of Finance Last date for Alternative budgets  to be approved by Section 151 officer  

9th Feb Clerks Send Alternative Budget papers to Scrutiny if approved by  Section 151 
officer 

12th Feb Schools Budget Forum Discussion of final agreement for proposed charges / SLAs  

9th - 12thth 
Feb 

Scrutiny Scrutiny Of Alternative Budgets 

14th Feb Finance Deadline for informing Welsh Government of Schools Budget  for 2024-25 
(section 45 return) 

15th Feb Finance Prepare Scrutiny Report for alternative budget 

13th Feb Cabinet Cabinet consider Alternative Budget 

Feb Clerks Publish Cabinet and any alternative Budgets 

22nd  Feb Council Approve final budget (MTFS & FRM) and capital strategy, reserve policy and 
Fees & Charging Register (income & charging schedule).  

07-Mar Council Council approve council tax 

March WG Final settlement 

Mid March Finance Full budget included in the finance system  

Mid May Finance Full budget set out in the budget book available on the website 

 
 
 

Tudalen 93



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



Services 2019/20                                      

£k

2020/21                                      

£k

2021/22                        

£k

2022/23                        

£k

2023/24  

Forecast £k

Funding Source 2024/25                                      

£k

2025/26                                     

£k

2026/27                     

£k

2027/28                      

£k

2028/29                                

£k

Adult Services (18) (968) (81) (786) (45) Pay Inflation for previous year 2,387 0 0 0 0

Children's Services 4,653 (944) (118) 2,007 173 Pay Inflation 8,712 7,657 5,959 4,221 3,954

Commissioning (385) (369) (574) (737) (18) Non-pay Inflation 2,613 2,318 1,794 1,226 1,247

Education 172 111 (118) (1,291) (82) Grant Changes 214 0 0 0 0

Highways Transport & Recycling 1,674 (1,085) (645) 214 14 Capital Financing 1,001 633 377 214 214

Property, Planning,  Public Protection 116 (803) (370) (755) 201 Corporate Pressures 897 922 948 975 1,004

Housing & Community Development (213) (182) (94) 71 155 Demographic Pressures 503 734 734 734 734

Economy and Digital Services (422) (345) 370 (303) (282) Contract and Other Pressures 15,471 9,461 8,252 8,099 7,860

Transformation, Democratic Services (189) (157) (199) (175) (27) Savings (3,522) (1,062) (205) (126) (128)

Workforce & Org Development (91) (69) (232) (458) (174) Total Requirement 28,276 20,665 17,859 15,344 14,885

Legal (179) (99) (82) (138) (33) Council Tax increase - 5% (4,898) (5,143) (5,400) (5,670) (5,953)

Finance & Insurance 227 (118) (343) (117) (23) Welsh Government Increase - 3.1%,2% (7,089) (4,715) (4,809) (4,906) (5,004)

Corporate Activities (6,803) (3,320) (4,922) (4,250) (3,593) Additional Funding (11,986) (9,858) (10,209) (10,575) (10,957)

Total Underspend (1,458) (8,348) (7,408) (6,718) (3,734) Budget Gap 16,290 10,807 7,650 4,768 3,928

 

2019/20                                      

£k

2020/21                                      

£k

2021/22                        

£k

2022/23                        

£k

2023/24  

Forecast £k

Total                      

£k

Total (15,827) (9,468) (9,358) (8,445) (15,577) (58,675)

Savings Delivered as a % of Net Budget 8.54% 5.04% 4.62% 3.80% 6.42%

Reserve Balances
Balance 

2019/20                   

£k

Balance 

2020/21       

£k

Balance 

2021/22                    

£k

Balance 

2022/23               

£k

Balance 

2023/24 

Forecast                   

£k

General Fund 9,472 13,713 9,333 9,333 9,333

Budget Management Reserve 3,584 3,584 3,584 3,584 3,584

Specific Reserves 7,523 16,319 29,167 35,329 28,682

Transport & Equipment Funding Reserve 9,265 11,282 8,844 9,461 7,938

Council Usable Reserves 29,844 44,898 50,928 57,707 49,537

Schools Delegated Reserves (911) 3,222 8,946 6,630 1,038

School Loans & Other Items (349) (342) (335) (335) (328) HRA and Non HRA 2023/24    £k 2024/25  £k 2025/26  £k 2026/27  £k 2027/28  £k

Housing Revenue Account 3,918 4,480 4,243 3,966 3,966 Non HRA

Total Reserves 32,502 52,258 63,782 67,968 54,213 Financing Costs 12,920          14,750          14,510          14,750          15,200          

Useable Reserves as % of Net Revenue Budget

16.1% 23.9% 25.1% 26.0% 20.4%

Net Revenue Stream

326,620        338,606        348,464        358,673        369,249        

% 4.0% 4.4% 4.2% 4.1% 4.1%

HRA

Financing Costs 4,890            5,720            6,280            7,210            7,640            

Net Revenue Stream 27,550          28,101          28,663          29,236          29,821          

% 17.7% 20.4% 21.9% 24.7% 25.6%

Services 2019/20                                      

£k

2020/21                                      

£k

2021/22                        

£k

2022/23                        

£k

2023/24  

Forecast £k

Adult Services (27,226) (39,006) (38,600) (33,328) (27,900)

Children's Services (3,870) (5,904) (8,958) (5,581) (4,175)

Commissioning (7,384) (9,032) (14,673) (9,349) (3,035)

Education (7,764) (8,646) (13,240) (16,666) (11,157)

Highways Transport & Recycling (40,983) (49,362) (48,575) (48,453) (48,716)

Property, Planning,  Public Protection (6,417) (7,616) (7,460) (10,361) (10,158)

Housing & Community Development (9,113) (10,388) (9,638) (14,281) (11,292)

Economy and Digital Services (3,464) (3,664) (4,756) (5,280) (3,211)

Transformation, Democratic Services (469) (654) (737) (371) (260)

Workforce & Org Development (1,773) (1,638) (2,094) (2,521) (2,724)

Legal (1,457) (728) (1,051) (852) (711)

Finance & Insurance (2,104) (3,818) (4,709) (4,322) (2,716)

Corporate Activities (Housing Benefit, HRA Debt)
(35,135) (36,539) (36,124) (30,175) (27,481)

Total (147,160) (176,994) (190,615) (181,541) (153,536)

Schools Delegated (19,743) (20,973) (29,588) (26,296) (19,002)

HRA (25,533) (26,673) (32,011) (32,524) (29,497)

Total (192,436) (224,641) (252,215) (240,361) (202,035)

Capital programme - Improving assets

Capital Programme
2019/20         

£k

2020/21

     £k

2021/22

  £k

2022/23

   £k

2023/24

Estimate     

£k

Total                      

£k

Schools 13,269          10,623          12,929          19,135          28,143          84,099          

HTR 15,453          18,124          21,314          20,137          19,082          94,110          

Other 13,243          12,148          18,569          10,951          26,879          81,790          

HRA 20,399          20,932          19,783          15,320          28,647          105,081        

Total 62,364          61,827          72,595          65,543          102,751        365,080        

Ratio Analysis 2019/20                                      2020/21                                      2021/22                        2022/23                        2023/24  

Forecast 

Increase/(Decrease) in Useable Reserve 10.3% 50.4% 13.4% 13.3% -14.2%

Useable Reserve as a % of Net Revenue Budget (ex 

schools)
16.1%

23.9% 25.1% 26.0% 20.4%

Council Tax Collected as % of Budget 97.2% 98.5% 99.0% 98.7% 98.5%

Current Ratio 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.6 0.7

Working Capital as a % of Gross Expenditure -4.5% -13.3% -8.8% -13.1% -5.5%

Capital Funding Requirement as % of Net Revenue 

Budget
16.4% 15.2% 18.9% 16.6% 22.7%

Borrowing Cost (ex. HRA) as %  against Net 

Revenue Budget
99.5% 97.9% 95.8% 80.3% 90.5%

Interest Payments / Net Revenue Budget 3.5% 3.2% 2.9% 2.5% 2.5%

Savings Delivery Trend - ability to deliver savings to support a balanced budget

Appendix B Financial Resilience Snapshot

Financial Outturn Trend - ability to breakeven and address overspending budgets MTFS Position - ability to fully fund the budget requirement in future years

Net Revenue Variance (surplus)/loss Across Services at Year End MTFS Budget Gap - Next 5 Years

Data for this chart provided by Audit Wales Financial Sustainability Data Tool

Savings Delivered Across Services at Year End

Reserve Balances - ability to shore up reserves to support medium term pressures

Future Capital Financing Requirements - Funded from Borrowing (impact on revenue)

Funding the Gaps - ability to fund the budget gap without reserve use

Future Capital Financing Requirements - measures underlining need to borrow for capital

Income Outturn by Service - amount collected each year

 Income by Service

Benchmarking Comparison - reserves available to cover the core business costs

Data for this chart provided by Audit Wales Financial Sustainability Data Tool

Benchmarking Comparison - capital receipts that can be used to support capital

Capital Outturn - Expenditure incurred each year

0

20000000

40000000

60000000

80000000

100000000

120000000

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29

Fu
n

d
in

g 
an

d
 R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

£
'0

0
0

Year

Modelling of the Funding Gap - (Cumulative)

Funding  Required Funding Expected (Best Case WG +2%) Funding (Worst Case WG -2%)

£43.4m gap

£82.3m gap

-45000000

-40000000

-35000000

-30000000

-25000000

-20000000

-15000000

-10000000

-5000000

0
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Forecast

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 F

u
n

d
in

g 
to

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 B
u

d
ge

t 
£

'0
0

0 Financial Years
Funding Used to Support the Revenue Budget Increases Each Year

Service Savings Council Tax Increase  (ex.tax base changes) Increase from Welsh Government
0

100000

200000

300000

400000

500000

600000

2019/20
Actual

2020/21
Actual

2021/22
Actual

2022/23
Actual

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

2025/26
Estimate

2026/27
Estimate

2027/28
Estimate

£
'0

0
0

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) and Borrowing

Existing Borrowing Additional borrowing required CFR

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Caerphilly

Gwynedd
Newport

Carmarthenshire

Vale of Glamorgan
Rhondda Cynon Taf

Swansea
Ceredigion

Bridgend

Merthyr Tydfil

Neath Port Talbot
Pembrokeshire

Denbighshire
Blaenau Gwent
Isle of Anglesey

Wrexham
Torfaen

Cardiff
Powys

Flintshire

Monmouthshire
Conwy
Median

Percentage %

W
el

sh
 L

o
ca

l A
u

th
o

ri
ti

es

Useable Reserves as a % of Net Cost of Service

2021-22 2020-21 2019-20

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24  Forecast

To
ta

l i
n

co
m

e
 £

'0
0

0

Financial Years
Income by Type

Customer and Client Internal Trading and Capital

Covid Related Service Support from Welsh Gov Other Grants

Government Grants

0 5 10 15 20 25

Caerphilly

Gwynedd

Newport

Carmarthenshire

Vale of Glamorgan

Rhondda Cynon Taf

Swansea

Ceredigion

Bridgend

Merthyr Tydfil

Neath Port Talbot

Pembrokeshire

Denbighshire

Blaenau Gwent

Isle of Anglesey

Wrexham

Torfaen

Cardiff

Powys

Flintshire

Monmouthshire

Conwy

Median

Percentage %

W
e

ls
h

 L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s

Useable Capital Receipts 2021-22

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Forecast

Fu
n

d
in

g 
Ty

p
e 

£'
00

0

Financial Years
Funding of Capital

Tudalen 95



Tudalen 96



Dear James Gibson-Watt,

I hope this letter finds you well. With families across Wales currently enjoying the summer
holidays, I am writing to you on behalf of RSPCA Cymru to encourage your council to
prohibit the giving of pets as prizes on your land. We have long called on Wales’ 22 local
authorities to introduce their own bans on this outdated practice on council-owned land - with
twelve having taken such action already.

With the RSPCA still receiving numerous reports relating to animals - predominantly, goldfish
- being given away as prizes every year, we are concerned this activity remains common
practice across Wales and England.

As I am sure you will agree, animal ownership is a big responsibility and should always be
pre-planned as part of a well thought out process. However, the acquisition of a pet as a
prize is usually the result of a spontaneous event, meaning that animals often do not have
their welfare needs met prior to, during, and after being given away. Sadly, many goldfish die
before they even reach their new homes as a result of shock or changes in water
temperature, with some illegally discarded in local waterways or by other means.

Goldfish are sentient animals that can make excellent pets - however, meeting their complex
biological, environmental and behavioural needs requires a great deal of preparation,
investment and care. As a result, prospective owners should thoroughly research their needs
and what is required to care for them using expert sources, before they acquire any fish.

Under the provisions of the Animal Welfare Act 2006, it is illegal to give any animal as a
prize to anyone under the age of sixteen, unless they are accompanied by an adult.
However, RSPCA Cymru has received reports of fish being illegally given away to children
younger than 16 in some cases in recent years.

With many fairgrounds continuing to give away pets as prizes in Wales, despite ongoing
concerns, we are keen to work with Powys County Council to protect the welfare of these
often forgotten animals. I have attached our ready-to-go motion to the email which
accompanies this letter which would enable Powys County Council to become the latest
local authority to prohibit the cruel and outdated of giving away pets as prizes on council
land if passed.

If you have any questions about the contents of this letter or if any further information would
be helpful, please do not hesitate to get in touch.

Yours sincerely,

Sioned Nikolic
Public Affairs Adviser - RSPCA Cymru

Tudalen 97

10



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



RSPCA Cymru
Local Action for Animals
Together for Animal Welfare

Ending pets as prizes

Proposed Notice of Motions (NOMs)
______________________________________________________________________

Many councillors in Wales have proposed RSPCA-backed Notices of Motion to ensure a
local authority acts on a particular subject - and makes a very public statement about its
intentions. The RSPCA is eager to work with councillors on bringing such NOMs forward,
and can provide bespoke and localised briefing material and provide support for
Committees, Full Council and other parts of council business to progress positive policy
change for animals.

Pets as Prizes

This Council:

● is concerned about the number of cases reported to the RSPCA each year, regarding pets

given as prizes via fairgrounds, social media and other channels in Wales

● is concerned for the welfare of those animals that are being given as prizes

● recognises that many cases of pets being as prizes may go unreported each year in

Wales

● supports a move to ban the giving of live animals as prizes, in any form, on Council land

This Council agrees to:

● ban outright the giving of live animals as prizes, in any form, on council land

● write to the Welsh Government, urging an outright ban on the giving of live animals as

prizes on both public and private land in Wales

Tudalen 99



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



3 August Deputy Leader & 
Cabinet Member for a 
Fairer Powys  

Approved the purchase of a property at 
Maesydial, Newtown to add to the social 
housing stock. 
 

3 August Deputy Leader & 
Cabinet Member for a 
Fairer Powys  

Approved the purchase of a property at 
Garth Owen to add to the social housing 
stock. 
 

3 August Deputy Leader & 
Cabinet Member for a 
Fairer Powys  

Approved the purchase of a property at 
Ystradgynlais to add to the social 
housing stock. 
 

15 August Cabinet Member for a 
Learning Powys 

Approved the appointment of school 
governors. 
 

7 September Cabinet Member for a 
Greener Powys 

Considered Objections to the Proposed 
Exceptions to 20mph Restricted Roads 
and Other Associated Speed Limit 
Orders. 
1. Pwllgloyw – to overrule the 

objections and implement the 
proposed revocation of restricted 
road status as proposed. 
 

2. Aberbran – to sustain the objection 
and abandon the proposed 
exception at this location. 
 

3. Churchstoke – to overrule the 
objections and implement the 30mph 
speed limit as proposed. 
 

4. Craig-y-nos –  to overrule the 
objection and implement the 30mph 
speed limit as proposed. 
 

5. Llangedwyn -  to overrule the 
objection and implement the 30mph 
speed limit as proposed. 
 

6. Llangorse -  to overrule the objection 
and implement the 30mph speed 
limit as proposed. 
 

7. Llangorse and Llanfiangel Tal-y-Llyn 
- to overrule the objection and 
implement the 30mph speed limits 
as proposed. 
 

Tudalen 101

11



8. Llangynidr East side – to partially 
sustain the objections relating to the 
eastern side of the B4558 and 
shorten the exception to cover the 
first 148m of the current 30mph limit 
only. 
 

9. Llangynidr west side -   to sustain the 
objection and abandon the proposed 
exception at this location. 
 

10. Llansilin – to sustain the objection 
and abandon the proposed 
exception. 
 

11. Penybont Llanerch Emrys -  to 
overrule the objections and 
implement the 30mph speed limit as 
proposed. 
 

12. Penybontfawr - to sustain the 
objection  and abandon the 
proposed exception. 

 
Authorised the making of the traffic 
regulation orders and implemented in 
accordance with the Local Authorities’ 
Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 1996 in connection 
with the changes in restricted road speed 
limit as per the proposals and taking into 
account the decisions numbered 1 to 12 
above. 
 

12 
September 

Cabinet Member for a 
Connected Powys  
Cabinet Member for a 
Greener Powys   

Approved the sale of land at Brecon 
Promenade to Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water.  

 

Tudalen 102



  

Meeting Report Title Report 
Author(s) 

Presenting 
Member(s) 

Llanfyllin Review - Area Review 
Options Paper  

Emma Palmer Councillor Pete 
Roberts 

Cabinet –  
2023-09-26 

Ysgol Bro Caereinion - Proposal 
Paper 

Emma Palmer Councillor Pete 
Roberts     

Q1 Strategic Risk Register  Jane Thomas Councillor David 
Arnold Thomas 

Customer Services Review Helen Dolman Councillor Jake 
Berriman 

LDP Annual Monitoring Report  Peter Morris Councillor Jake 
Berriman 

Powys Tourism Visitor Marketing 
Approach 

Diane Reynolds Councillor David 
Selby 

Business Case - Early Help Sharon Powell Councillor Sandra 
Davies 

Business Case - Fostering Sharon Powell Councillor Sandra 
Davies 

Business Case - 16+ Sharon Powell Councillor Sandra 
Davies 

Business Case - Staffing 
Children’s Services  

Sharon Powell Councillor Sandra 
Davies 

Business Case - Front Door Sharon Powell Councillor Sandra 
Davies 

Llanfyllin Catchment Review - 
Phase 2  

Emma Palmer Councillor Pete 
Roberts 

Cabinet –  
2023-10-10 

Ysgol Calon y Dderwen/Newtown 
Transformation Review - 
Engagement Report and 
Proposal Paper 

Emma Palmer Councillor Pete 
Roberts 

    
RIPA Annual Report Helen Dolman 

 

Quarter 2 Finance Report Jane Thomas Councillor David 
Arnold Thomas 

Quarter 2 Capital Report  Jane Thomas Councillor David 
Arnold Thomas 

Council Tax Base for 2024-25 Jane Thomas Councillor David 
Arnold Thomas 

Corporate Safeguarding Board 
Activity Report  

Nina Davies 
 

Sennybridge Outline Business 
Case 

Emma Palmer Councillor Pete 
Roberts 

Cabinet –  
2023-11-21 

Welsh language promotion 
strategy 

Sion Rowley Councillor Sandra 
Davies     

Cabinet –  
2023-10-24 

Quarter 2 Treasury Management 
report 

Jane Thomas Councillor Arnold 
Thomas     

Supporting the development of 
Council Housing 

Andy Thompson Councillor Matthew 
Dorrance 

Cabinet –  
2023-12-12 

Quarter 2 Strategic Risk Register 
 

Jane Thamas Councillor David 
Thomas      

 
 

Budget and MTFS Jane Thomas Councillor David 
Thomas 

Tudalen 103

12



Winter Maintenance  Matt Perry Councillor Jackie 
Charlton 

Cabinet –  
2024-01-16 

Supplementary Planning 
Guidance: New Horticultural 
Enterprises and Dwellings 
 

Peter Morris Councillor Jake 
Berriman  

    
Cabinet –  
2024-03-20  

Quarter 3 Performance Report  Emma Palmer Councillor James 
Gibson-Watt 

 

Tudalen 104



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 105

14
Trwy rinwedd paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 1 Atodlen 12A
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion
	4 Cerdyn Sgorio Cynllun Strategol Corfforaethol a'r Cynllun Cydraddoldeb: Perfformiad Chwarter 1
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.
	CABINET EXECUTIVE
	19 September 2023
	1.	Purpose
	1.1.	This report presents the Council’s 2023 to 2024 Quarter 1 (April to June) Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan Scorecard.  Cabinet are asked to review the performance, and confirm that they are assured by the performance or that they are satisfied that remedial actions will effectively improve performance where this is not on track.
	1.2.	The full content of the Scorecard is available on the Council’s website by visiting: https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/14124/Corporate-Plan-Updates.
	2.	Background
	2.1.	Objective 1: We will improve people’s awareness of services, and how to access them, so that they can make informed choices.
	Overall, progress against this objective has been broadly positive as we have sought to improve how we work with our people and communities.  Three measures were allocated as ‘off track’, which were:
		‘Percentage (children) using Intervention and Prevention remain with families safely (89% against a target of 91%)
		‘Percentage accessing Intervention and Prevention that demonstrate positive progression (80% against a target of 88%)
		‘Percentage of people report achieving their family goal through Early Help’ (82% against a target of 90%)
	Importantly, the percentage of customers satisfied with their responses when contacting the Council exceeded the target (84% against a target of 82%).
	It was announced that the Digital Transformation Programme approved work to investigate the potential of AI (artificial intelligence) Chat across our customer channels.  The aim is to support a 24/7 conversational self-serve chat experience that will enable our customers to access information and answers faster.
	A range of updates were made to the Council’s website to provide more information, including:
	The Dewis Cymru self-help well-being website was also promoted, which provides access to around 6,000 local and national services, will help the people of Powys to choose services that best meet their needs.
	Finance and Education Services both reflected on their use of social media and the benefits of promoting information using different communications channels to maximise the opportunities for all.  The Education Service identified that there is an opportunity to provide enhanced information to schools and families about admissions and admissions processes and will be exploring how they develop this.
	Colleagues from the Workforce and Organisational Development Team attended a range of recruitment events to promote career opportunities with the Council, and to provide support to those applying for roles. This includes targeted, difficult to recruit roles, such as Reablement.
	The number of people accessing leisure facilities and the satisfaction levels with those services were notably higher than the targets.  The Leisure Review was ongoing during the quarter, and data and insight were being used to better understand leisure centre usage, costs, distance to facilities, the facilities available, and so on, as part of the evidence-based decision-making process.  The review will close on 28 August 2023.
	Although a significant percentage of children using Intervention and Prevention remain with their families safely, currently the percentage accessing Intervention and Prevention that demonstrate a positive progression is slightly lower than the target.  However, a number of children and their families were ‘stepped down’ to the Early Help service or to more specialist services like the Youth Justice Service before they reached their goals.  Similarly, the percentage of people that report achieving their family goal through Early Help is slightly lower than hoped for.  Children’s Service will be reviewing the distance travelled tool, as well as the model of crisis intervention that is used.
	2.2.	Objective 2: We will support good quality, sustainable, employment opportunities and pursue real living wage accreditation.
	Progress against this objective has been extremely positive as the Council seeks to address the workforce challenges that face the County. However, there still remains a significant amount to do due to the challenging workforce situation which is being experienced nationally.
	Only one measure was allocated as ‘off track’, which was the ‘Percentage of staff who feel proud / very proud to work for the Council’.  However, the achievement of 80% equalled last year’s result, and was only marginally lower than the target of 81%. This evidence helps support the work surrounding the retention of staff currently being undertaken to ensure than existing staff are supported and retained within the Council.
	The Council supported a variety of degree schemes:
	An apprentice was successfully employed within the Property Design Service.  The Highways, Transport and Recycling Service considered that the apprenticeship scheme had been ‘a huge success’ within the Service and would become a rolling programme.
	Reflection during the quarter identified that project roles being advertised within the Economy and Digital Service were not attracting applicants, and as a result work was ongoing with Workforce and Organisational Development to improve the advertising of such roles and to approach internal staff with relevant matching skills.
	We have also looked at how we recruit differently. A three-week course was developed as a pilot to support members of the public to gain the Level 1 Food Hygiene Certificate.  It is hoped that this will assist them in gaining the skills needed to apply for catering vacancies within the Council, which are roles that are hard to recruit to.
	Additionally, Housing have undertaken recruitment for tradespeople differently by visiting a series of locations across Powys, which resulted in a better than expected number of applicants, and the number of tradespeople being recruited being significantly beyond what was originally planned for.
	There was an increase in attendance at the recruitment roadshows for Children’s Services following a successful recruitment (leaflet) campaign for our in-house therapeutic home.
	Powys County Council has signed up to become an Endometriosis Friendly Employer, the first local authority in the UK to do so. y becoming an Endometriosis Friendly Employer, Powys County Council is showing a commitment to support staff who have the condition and tackling stigma and changing culture surrounding endometriosis in the workplace.
	Data about disability employment (paid / voluntary) was reviewed to establish a baseline and start work on the Live Well Forum, which is co-produced with the people of Powys to develop meaningful employment opportunities for adults with disabilities.  There is now a better understanding of the financial sustainability of different organisations.  However, it was acknowledged that further work is needed to determine who delivers accessible employment opportunities in Powys, how these are coordinated, and how these data are collected and used.
	Recipients of Direct Payments (in relation to Adult Services) received an uplift on their rate to facilitate the real living wage, and the Finance Service identified the need to encourage more contractors to pay a real living wage.  [All employees of the Council receive a real living wage.]  The real living wage activity is an important ambition for the Council to strengthen the county for the people of Powys by increasing fairness and supporting personal and economic resilience.
	Please note that:
	2.3.	Objective 3: We will work to tackle poverty and inequality to support the well-being of the people of Powys.
	Progress against this objective has been extremely positive despite the Council operating against a challenging socioeconomic backdrop.
	Of the 13 measures, only one measure was allocated as ‘off track’, which was ‘The number of households who are homeless’ (408 against a target of 304). During the quarter, 79homeless households were accommodated permanently by the Council, in our own stock, through housing associations and in the private sector.  It is important to note that this is an indicator of homelessness in Powys and is impacted by wider external factors beyond the control of the Council.
	The number of households registered with ‘Homes in Powys’ for affordable and secure homes was higher than expected.  Similarly, the number of homeless households was significantly higher than hoped.  Nevertheless, it is pleasing to report that the number of rough sleepers was lower than expected, as was the number of households living in temporary accommodation. The Housing Service identified the opportunity to maintain close contact with residents and tenants as a way of helping them to feel confident in contacting the Council for advice and help.
	Positively, at the time of reporting, the percentage of rental income lost through Council unoccupied housing was also slightly lower than expected.
	An accommodation tracking form was developed by Adult Services to provide intelligence on future accommodation needs of individuals with a disability.  This has resulted in the identification of a potential need in a specific area of the county, which can now be investigated.
	Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) registration was gained for an in-house residential provision in South Powys, offering 2 additional (child) residential placements.  A further 3 additional places became operational for those (children) aged 16+ in Mid Powys.
	A new partnership was formed between the Council’s Preventative and Restorative Justice Team and Freedom Leisure to support families in accessing facilities in the Llandrindod Wells area as part of the ‘Turn Around Project’.  This contributes to creating a ‘stronger’ Powys, where communities succeed together and are personally resilient.
	The rollout of Universal Primary Free School Meals (UPFSM) continues and will include Year 3 learners from September 2023.  190,490 meals have been provided since 01 September 2022.
	The Money Advice Service has been strengthened, using Shared Prosperity Funding to support additional staff to offer free and confidential advice to residents.
	The decision-making process (the Impact Assessment) has been developed with specialist support to strengthen guidance about the climate and nature emergency.
	3.	Advice
	3.1.	That Cabinet receive the Quarter 1 (2023-2024) Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan Scorecard that is published on the Council’s website: https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/14124/Corporate-Plan-Updates and review the Council’s progress against the Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan.
	3.2.	That Cabinet recognise that this report is the first time that the Council is reporting against it’s new Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan (CSEP) and, as such, the Council is keen to evolve and embed the process over the coming months.
	3.3.	It should be acknowledged that the measures within the CSEP are under continuous review and improvement.  The measures do not yet all include reporting from all services, as mechanisms are still under development to support this aspiration.  For example, CSEP measure 1 reports the ‘Number of contacts to Powys County Council (Number of times people have contacted the Council)’, but at present includes data from Economy and Digital and Housing Services only.
	3.4.	It is requested that Cabinet’s attention is drawn to the objective 2 action that states ‘By March 2026, we will establish a fair pay commission that will set out how the Council will become a fully accredited living wage employer. We will do this in consultation with trade unions and our partners’.  The Council already pays a Real Living Wage to all the staff it directly employs.  The aspiration to seek accreditation is contingent on the Council’s contractors paying their staff a Real Living Wage, and work will be undertaken to gain insight into the current wage arrangements that exist within contractor organisations.  This information will enable the Council to plan progress towards achieving this aim.
	3.5.	The Council continues to seek to engage with the people of Powys to help achieve our ambition of being a stronger, fairer, greener Powys.  In particular, our engagement activities contribute to our aim to be an open, well-run, Council where people’s voices are heard and help us to shape our work and priorities.  An update on progress is provided here as supporting information.  During quarter 1, 3,190 external people visited our Engagement Hub, of which 589 people participated in our engagement and consultation activities.  Of those that responded to our ongoing engagement project, 28% felt they had opportunities to have their say and participate in decision-making, and 25% said they speak positively about the Council.  Seven external engagement projects were started during the period, which were:
		Do you have a minute? (Ongoing engagement project)
		Powys Winter Roads Service Review
		Powys Arts Strategy
		Customer Service Review (public)
		Local Housing Market Assessment (open until 10th July)
		Housing Need in Llanfair Ym Mochnant
		Ystradgynlais Replacement of Outdoor Synthetic Pitch (open until 15th July)
	A further 348 people joined the Powys People’s Panel by opting in through their My Powys Account, which brings the total to 4,837 members.
	4.	Resource Implications
	4.1.	Services set out their objectives that contribute to the delivery of the Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan in their individual Integrated Business Plans.  The activity undertaken and reported in this quarter has been delivered from within service budgets. Any subsequent remedial action to improve performance will be considered by the relevant service, it is anticipated that this can be delivered from existing resources.
	4.2.	The Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) notes the report.
	5.	Legal implications
	5.1.	Professional Lead – Legal and Deputy Monitoring Officer notes the content of the report. There are no other legal matters arising from the report.
	6.	Data Protection
	6.1.	Not applicable.  No identifiable information is contained within the reporting.
	7.	Comment from local member(s)
	7.1.	Comments were not sought from individual members, as the performance report is equally applicable to the whole county.
	8.	Impact Assessment
	8.1.	An impact assessment has not been undertaken for the quarterly performance updates as it does not include any proposals or service changes.  However, the impact assessment of the CSEP is available here.
	9.	Recommendations
	That Cabinet:
	9.1.	Confirm they are assured that performance is progressing well, or that mitigating actions have been identified and reflected in updates to service Integrated Business Plans.
	9.2.	Confirm they are satisfied that any remedial actions will effectively improve performance in line with outcomes set out in the Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan.
	9.3.	Consider for approval the introduction of a new measure to support Objective 1 (We will improve people’s awareness of services, and how to access them, so that they can make informed choices.):
		Number of ‘keeping in touch’ visits; this is in relation to Housing Services and would enable the team to regularly demonstrate some key work that is being undertaken to support the Council’s tenants.
	9.4.	Note the following clarifications to measure wording:
		Measure 4:  ‘Number of people accessing leisure facilities’ has been amended to ‘Number of people participating in leisure activities’; this clarifies that it will measure participations rather than people.
		Measure 9: ‘Percentage increase in user (active) participations’ has been amended to ‘The number of (active) user participations’; this reflects the number of participations rather than measuring a percentage increase.
		Measure 15: ‘Number of apprentices within the Council’ has been updated to clarify that it reports the number of new apprentices; it now reads: ‘Number of new apprentices within the Council’.
		Measure 19: ‘Staff turnover rate’ has been updated to clarify that it is the: ‘Staff turnover rate during the quarter’.
		Measure 20: ‘Sickness absence rate’ has been updated to clarify that it is the: ‘Average days sickness per full time equivalent employee’.
		Measure 35: ‘A reduction in the child poverty rate’ has been amended to ‘A reduction in the child absolute poverty rate’; this clarifies that absolute poverty is the basis of measurement.
		Measure 36: ‘Number of families with children who are living in absolute poverty in Powys’ has been amended to ‘Number of children living in absolute poverty’; this is because the relevant data is not available for families.
	Appendix A: Technical Notes and Background
	A.	This is the first presentation of the Council’s progress against the new Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan.  The Quarter 1 Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan Scorecard shows the Council’s performance against its expectations between April and June 2023.
	B.	The new performance year commenced on 01 April 2023 to coincide with the publication of the Council’s new Corporate and Strategic Equality Plan: Stronger, Fairer, Greener.  (We abbreviate references to this plan as ‘CSEP’.)
	C.	The purpose of the CSEP is to present the well-being priorities for the Council for the years 2023 to 2027, which support the seven national well-being goals of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. The Council’s priorities are its three corporate well-being objectives, which are:
	1.	We will improve people’s awareness of services, and how to access them, so that they can make informed choices.
	2.	We will support good quality, sustainable, employment, providing training opportunities, and pursuing real living wage employer accreditation.
	3.	We will work to tackle poverty and inequality to support the well-being of the people of Powys.
	D.	The CSEP contains all the priority work for the Council, driven by the Cabinet’s work programme and ambitions.  The objectives and measures integrate the equality objectives and measures to ensure that we work towards a fairer Powys in all aspects of our work, and that equality is at the heart of our approach.
	E.	The well-being objectives are organisation-wide areas of focus that we actively pursue so that we can make positive improvements to our services.  The performance process helps the Council to reflect on the year so far, to evaluate its approaches and contributions, to consider what has been learned, and to plan what actions can or should be taken to support ongoing progress.
	F.	The new reporting system only provides the following options for identifying progress against a measure target:
		On track
		Off track
		No data (data not due to be reported)
		Not reported (data unexpectedly unavailable or not yet provided)
	Importantly, measure statuses are automatically calculated by the system as an indicator to identify whether the progress towards the activity met planned expectations (the targets).  These statuses are used as conversation starts to enable activities to be considered in a more detailed context to determine what went well, where more or different support or resource may be necessary, and what lessons may be learned.

	5 Adroddiad Rheoli'r Trysorlys Chwarter 1
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.
	AUDIT COMMITTEE
	CABINET EXECUTIVE
	1	Purpose
	2	Background
	3	Advice
	3.1	Investments
	3.24 £5.00 million borrowing from another local authority has been repaid during the last quarter together, this has been refinanced by the PWLB borrowing that was taken out in late March 2023. With the uncertain economic position and as outlined by Link later in this report, it is anticipated that borrowing rates will fall over the next few years, so we need to ensure that the council isn’t locked into higher rate borrowing for long periods, to allow flexibility to take advantage should rates drop.
	3.25 A further £1.50 million PWLB is due to be repaid in the next quarter together with £5.00 million borrowed from another local authority. The council is still holding £17.40 million for the Global Centre of Rail Excellence (GCRE) and had until 31 March 2023 to progress to the full business case position. Correspondence with Welsh Government have since highlighted that the Council would like to return this as it feels the circumstances of the original agreement have changed significantly. Depending on the amounts being repaid during the next quarter it may need to be replaced with some short term borrowing to absorb this repayment alongside the commitments in the capital programme.
	3.26	With the changes to the MRP policy and the delayed requirement to borrow, the revenue budget set aside to cover these costs is projected to be underutilised in this financial year, however as demonstrated in the tables later in the report, these costs are likely to increase year on year.
	3.27	PWLB Loans Rescheduling
	3.28	Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic climate and following the various increases in the margins added to gilt yields which have impacted PWLB new borrowing rates since October 2010. Existing borrowing rates remain lower than current rates, therefore no debt rescheduling has been undertaken to date in the current financial year.
	3.29	Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream
	3.31	The table above shows the capital financing costs and the change between those disclosed in the 2023/24 Treasury Management and Capital Strategy. Interest rates are expected to continue to rise in the short term before reducing. There is significant risk that these costs may increase if rates increase faster or do no fall in line with the current forecast. The latest estimates assume that significant further borrowing will be required before the end of the financial year. The amount will depend on the cash position of the council and the interest rates available so this figure may change before the end of the financial year. There is sufficient budget to cover these costs in this financial year, future years increases will need to be factored into the proposed 2024/25 budget.
	3.32	The change has been caused by the reduced borrowing requirement to support the capital programme in 2022/23 and future years. This has been the result of reprofiling of budgets into future years. This has allowed the council to defer the date that it expected to take out additional borrowing, reducing the current interest costs, however this borrowing will still be required in the future.
	3.33	Prudential Indicators
	3.34	All Treasury Management Prudential Indicators were complied with in the quarter ending 30th June 2023.
	3.35	Economic Background and Forecasts
	3.36	The forecast of interest rates by the Authority’s advisor at the 26th June 2023 are shown below. The rates have fluctuated over the last few months but are expected to reduce slightly over the next few years. The current higher rates will increase the cost of borrowing over the next few years.  The revised Medium Term Financial Strategy has been updated to take account of these changes.
	3.37	The economic background provided by our treasury advisers; Link Group at the 30th June 2023 is attached at Appendix A. It should be noted that this was provided at the end of the quarter and certain factors may have changed since then.
	3.38	Sundry Debt
	3.39	The prompt collection of debt and encouraging payment as soon as possible helps the Councils cashflow position, reducing the need for short term borrowing.
	3.40	The following table outlines the Council’s outstanding sundry debt at the 10th July 2023 of £17.29 million, up from £11.64 million last quarter. This does not include Council Tax arrears.
	2	There is a further £0.03 million outstanding debt with the local health board that sits outside this figure.
	3.41	The £3.05 million shown in the current debt column relates to invoices that are less than 30 days old, overdue debt is classed as overdue when it is above 30 days after the invoice date.
	3.42	The total debt represents 27% of the annual generated income (excluding Council Tax and NNDR), if you exclude the current debt (less than 30 days old) this falls to 23% up from 16% last quarter.
	3.43	There is a significant level of aged debt (over 30 days old) which has increased by £5.65 million since the last quarter. The majority of that increase relates to Powys Teaching Health Board (PtHB) debt mainly within adult social care.
	3.44	The table in 3.40 shows that around two thirds of the over three month debt is adult social care debt. This is more difficult to collect as Welsh Government will not allow bailiff action on residential care fees and court action only as a last resort.  This debt relates to a high proportion of elderly and vulnerable customers, and often deferred charges are placed on their properties, which requires waiting for houses to be sold and estates to be realised which is often a lengthy process.
	3.45	The table below shows the key performance indicators since the start of the financial year.
	3 Debt is written off in line with the council’s debt policy.
	3.46	Council Tax and NNDR Collection
	3.47	The in-year collection rates at the end of June 2023 (Quarter 1) for Council tax and NNDR are shown below.
	Council Tax	27.28% (0.02% down compared to same point during 2022/23)
	3.48	£5.28 million of Council Tax and £0.95 million NNDR remains uncollected from previous financial years. Collection of monies during the ongoing cost of living crisis is challenging, however robust procedures are in place to pursue all monies owed to the Council, both for the current year and previous final years.
	3.49	VAT
	3.50	The Technical Section of Finance act as the authority’s VAT section.  VAT can pose a risk to the authority hence this report includes VAT information.
	3.51	The monthly VAT returns were submitted within the required deadlines during this quarter.
	3.52	Key Performance Indicators - The VAT KPI’s for 2023/24 are attached at Appendix B.
	1.	Economics update
	2. Interest rate forecasts

	6 Gorolwg Ariannol ar gyfer y flwyddyn sy'n dod i ben 31 Mawrth 2024 (ar 30 Mehefin 2023)
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.
	CABINET EXECUTIVE
	1.	Purpose
	2.	Background
	3.	Cost Reductions
	3.1	Cost reductions of £16.5 million were approved as part of the Councils budget for this year and the delivery of these is required to achieve a balanced budget this year.  In addition, undelivered savings from 2022-23 have been rolled forward totalling £0.9 million, these also need to be delivered.
	3.2	The summary at Table 2 shows that 54% or £9.4 million have been delivered and a further 40% £7.0 million are assured of delivery by Services.  £968,000, 6% are unachieved and are at risk of delivery in year.  Services are being challenged as to why the position for some proposals has changed and will be required to consider mitigating action to ensure that they can deliver within the budget allocated.
	Table 2 – Cost Reductions
	4.	Reserves
	4.1	The Reserves position at Table 3 sets out the reserve forecast as at 30th June 2023.  The opening reserves stand at £68 million, with the General Fund Reserve at £9.3 million representing 3.8% of total net revenue budget (excluding Schools and the HRA).
	4.2	The Councils Reserves policy requires the General Fund Reserve to be maintained at a minimum of 4% of net revenue budget.  Due to the increased level of Net Revenue budget the level of the reserve is not now sufficient to maintain this minimum level.  When closing the accounts for last year some specific reserves were closed and £0.8 million was transferred into the payroll reserve.
	4.3	There are a limited number of specific reserves and their intended purpose is clear, but a review of the reserves has identified that the Powys Recovery Fund reserve, that was set up to support covid and economic recovery, can now been closed, the balance on the reserve is £0.7m.  It is proposed to transfer this balance to the general fund reserve to increase the balance and ensure that the 4% minimum level of net revenue budget can be maintained.
	Table 3 – Reserves Table
	4.4	The budgeted use of specific reserves in the main relates to the use of grants that were rolled forward last year for use this year and these total £5.6 million.  Other specific reserve use includes £1.0 million for levelling up match funding.
	4.5	A specific Pay Reserve was established from underspends at 2022-23 year end to support this years’ pay award, which is likely to increase beyond the 5% funded through budget setting.  The current pay offer equates to around 7% and this means 2%, circa £3.3 million would need to be funded from this reserve to manage the in-year budget gap.  A recurrent shortfall must be addressed as part budget setting for next year.
	4.6	Schools set their budgets with an expected call on reserve of £5.7 million.  This figure has improved by £0.1 million based on updated forecasts.
	5.	Transformation
	5.1	Transformation Board agreed the Transformation projects for 2023-24 totalling £3.0 million.  Funding for these schemes is just under £2.5 million base budget and just under £0.5 million underspend brought forward. Table 4 below provides a detail of what schemes are funded.
	5.2	In addition there will be costs associated with any redundancies that arise from transformational activity, last year’s costs amounted to £0.3 million.  Any severance costs incurred during this financial year will be supported from slippage in the use of the transformation budget, if costs exceed the funding available the Spend to Save reserve will be used.  Any redundancies approved must be supported by an appropriate Business Case.
	5.3	The transformation budget was approved within the Revenue budget setting process but this will need to be reallocated to the individual service budgets as set out in Table 4.  A virement is required to accommodate this, and reporting the reallocation of an already Council approved budget is set out in this report, together with the proposal to utilise the Spend to Save reserve for severance costs.
	5.4	Monitoring of the delivery of the projects and expenditure against the budget will be undertaken at the Transformation Delivery Board.
	Table 4 – Transformation projects funded 23-24
	6.	Virements and Grants
	6.1	There have been additional grants received this quarter and are included to comply with financial regulations:
	6.3	A virement request is made to transfer the transformation budget across all services as set out in section 5.  In addition the use of the spend to save reserve is agreed for any transformation redundancies where needed at year end.
	6.4	It is proposed that the balance from the Powys Recovery Fund reserve of £0.7 million is transferred to the general fund reserve to ensure the reserve remains in excess of 4% of the net budget (excluding HRA and schools) to comply with the current policy.  As set out at paragraph 4.3.  This is not a budget virement as the overall level of reserves is to be maintained and no expenditure is taking place.
	7.	Financial Risks
	7.1	The Council holds a £3.0m revenue risk budget centrally to manage the cost of potential additional pressures identified through budget setting but not funded at a service level, especially inflation and demographic pressures. Although CPI levels are now starting to fall, they remain higher than our budgeted allocations.  Risk remains as the year progresses.
	7.2	The greatest financial risk remains in our ability to deliver a balanced budget over the medium and longer term.  Our MTFS reported a projected £10.3 million budget gap next year rising to £24.8 million cumulative in 2028.   But this gap is already expected to be significantly higher as we review and update our assumptions.  Pay negotiations continue at a national level and are expected to exceed the budgeted 5% increase for 2023-24 and are likely to be closer to 7%.   The Medium Term Financial Strategy and the assumptions on which the Financial Resource Model is based is being reviewed and will be considered by Cabinet in September.  We continue to plan in a challenging and uncertain time and will update our projections as more information becomes available.
	7.3	The Council remains under borrowed as we continue to utilise our cash reserves to underpin our cashflow. We can borrow both in the short to medium or long term, but the cost of borrowing has risen due to the changes in bank rate, our approach is regularly updated and explained as part of the Treasury Management update to Audit Committee.
	Appendix A – Forecast to year end as at 30th June 2023

	7 Rhagolygon Cyfalaf 2023-24, ar 30 Mehefin 2023
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.
	CABINET EXECUTIVE
	1.	Purpose
	2.	Background
	3.	Grants Received
	3.1	The following grants have been received since the start of the financial year. These are for additional schemes and have been included in the Capital Programme.
	3.2	Schools
	3.3	£0.47 million has been received from Welsh Government for Childcare and Early Years Small Grants Funding.
	3.4	Housing & Community Development
	3.5	Welsh Government have awarded £0.26 million from their ENABLE Grant to provide works to support for independent living.
	3.6	Welsh Government have awarded £0.27 million to support the remodelling of Ystradgynlais Library.
	3.7	Highways, Transport and Recycling
	3.8	Welsh Government have awarded £1.60 million to support the implementation of the 20mph default speed limit on restricted roads across Wales coming into force on 17th September 2023.
	3.9	As part of the Local Places for Nature grant programme, Wales Council for Voluntary Action awarded £0.38 million for financial year 2023/24 and £0.45 million for financial year 2024/25. The funding will support the creation, restoration or enhancement of natural assets and increase biodiversity and nature recovery.
	3.10	Welsh Government have awarded Allotment Support Grant funding of £0.03 million in 2023/24 and £0.03 million in 2024/25 to increase the availability of good quality allotment plots in the county.
	3.11	Welsh Government have awarded £1.91 million funding from the Active Travel Fund. The purpose of the funding is to increase levels of active travel and will fund the Newtown 3rd crossing and central Welshpool active travel schemes.
	4.	Reprofiling Budgets Across Financial Years
	4.1	A review of the capital budgets held for the Sustainable Communities for Learning (formally 21st Century Schools) has been carried out and based on the latest estimated spend profiles, £17.55 million and £23.81 million has been reprofiled from 2023/24 and 2024/25 respectively into 2025/26, 2026/27 and 2027/28 as shown in the table below. The table also shows the funding that has been reprofiled.
	4.2	The latest spend profile for the Levelling Up Projects has necessitated £10.96 million to be reprofiled from 2023/24 into 2024/25 (£8.45m on the Montgomery scheme and £2.51 for the Brecon and Radnor scheme). The schemes are still on track to complete by the end of the 2024/25 financial year in line with the grant terms.
	5.	Capital Receipts
	5.1	A total of £0.77 million has been received to date. There are currently sales agreed to the value of £0.95 million (including £0.28 million for the HRA), these are at the legal stage of the process and will generate future capital receipts. At this stage it is expected that sales totalling £7.80 million could be achieved this financial year.
	6.	Virements
	6.1	Approval is requested for a virement of £0.02 million from the Lesure capital budget to the Schools Major Improvements budget as a contribution towards the works to Llanidloes HS/Sports Centre Gymnasium ceiling and lighting works.
	6.2	Welsh Government funding has been awarded to continue to expand the community Electric Vehicle (EV) hubs. As part of this, the Council is required to meet a percentage of the total cost. Approval is requested for a virement to allocate £0.02 million to the Highways budget from the unallocated capital budget which sits under Finance. This will allow the council to accept the grant funding of £0.13 million for this scheme.
	7.1	The Head of Finance (Section 151 Officer) notes the content of the report. Expenditure for the first quarter at 7.4% is extremely low, the re-profiling of schemes is essential to enable us to more accurately project expenditure, the consequential need to borrow and the impact on the revenue budget. Expenditure on the Capital Programme continues to be monitored carefully through the year, although inflation has stabilised, costs are high, alongside supply chain issues and additional borrowing costs which will have to be carefully considered.  Prioritisation of resources at a corporate level ensures that the council can effectively meet its objectives whilst maintaining an affordable level of investment.

	8 Diweddariad am Gynllunio Ariannol
	CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.
	CABINET EXECUTIVE
	1.	Purpose
	2.	Background
	3	Economic Context
	3.1   Our current MTFS was informed by the forecasts published in the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) report “Economic and fiscal outlook” in November 2022.  Updated OBR figures were published alongside the UK Spring Budget in March 2023 and more recently the “Fiscal risks and sustainability – July 2023” report updates these forecasts.  These reports have enabled the Council to update the assumptions that support our financial planning.
	3.2	The 2020s are turning out to be a very risky and challenging period for the public finances. In just three years, they have been hit by the Covid pandemic, the energy and cost-of-living crisis, and the sudden interest rate rises in 2022.  The consequences of which continue to unfold. This rapid succession of shocks has delivered the deepest recession in three centuries, the sharpest rise in energy prices since the 1970s, and the steepest sustained rise in borrowing costs since the 1990s.
	3.3	On the 9th August 2023, the First Minister, Mark Drakeford MS issued a statement outlining the significant financial pressure Welsh Government (WG) are facing in the current 2023/24 financial year and as they prepare for the 2024/25 budget round.  He stated that “this is the toughest financial situation we have faced since devolution”.  As Ministers review their departmental budgets it is yet to be established how their action will impact directly or indirectly Local Government.  NHS funding will no doubt also be subject to review and reductions here could also impact on the Council where joint funding arrangements exist such as Continuing Health Care, Additional Learning Needs and Childrens services.
	3.4	The UK Government has set itself a target to halve the inflation levels seen in the early months of 2023, before the year is out. Forecasters are generally expecting Consumer Prices Index (CPI) to fall sharply over the remainder of the year, linked to a fall in wholesale gas prices, an anticipated reduction in the cost of imported goods, and Bank of England monetary policy regarding interest rates. However, it is notable that the Bank of England’s latest forecasts suggest that decreases may not be as steep as previously predicted. With inflation still very high in core elements of the CPI basket of goods, price increases will remain a critical factor to keep under review in terms of budget planning.
	3.5	Inflation continues to impose pressure on our costs, but headline figures don’t tell the whole story. Food inflation is lower than it was but the rate of increase is still very high at 18.4% and some old pressures are proving persistent. The transport category looks much more stable at 1.3% inflation overall, however beneath this the cost of transport insurance for example is showing a massive increase of 40.7%.
	3.6	Overall CPI has slowed from 10.1% in March 2023 to 6.8% in July.  Slowing inflation does not mean that prices are reducing, just that they are rising more slowly.
	3.7	In May 2023, the Bank of England revised its inflation forecasts to 5.1% by the end of 2023, (compared with 3.9% in its February forecast). The Bank also indicated that it does not now expect inflation to reach its 2% target until the end of 2024. Whilst the picture is changeable, there is a consistent message that inflation is likely to fall, although perhaps not as quickly as originally forecast, and with ongoing challenges for some goods and services.
	3.8	Bank of England base rate is currently set at 5.25% and will again be subject to review on the 21st September 2023.
	3.9	Market intelligence reports that energy commodity markets have experienced unprecedented price increases for both electricity and gas. Having risen thirteen-fold in the wake of the Russian invasion of Ukraine in 2022, gas prices have fallen back more recently but are expected to remain at over twice their historical average into the mid-2020s.    However, following a period of prices on a downwards trajectory, the start of June saw prices creeping higher due to maintenance issues at Norwegian’s Nyhamna gas processing plant and the recent weather in Europe increasing electricity demand through higher use of air conditioning. More generally market demand is down on the previous year and capacity is good.
	3.10	A mix of rising labour costs and workforce related legacies such as a shortage of replacement skills coming through the industries, are also affecting some services more than others, including transport, construction and social care.
	3.11	More generally as a result of the rising costs and expected funding pressures that will be imposed on Local Government over the next few years, press coverage and Local Government Associations are already reporting that some Councils may have to consider ceasing the provision of non-essential services, reducing statutory service provision and cutting capital investment plans, whilst increasing Council Tax and other fees and charges by more than planned aligned to inflation or even higher.
	3.12	The economic context outlined above has significant implications for the Council’s financial planning. These are summarised below and are key factors in framing the assumptions and cost drivers in 2024/25 and over the medium term.
	4	Understanding the impact
	4.1	The Medium Term Financial Strategy approved in principle by Council for the next five years and the assumptions contained within the strategy were based on the latest information available at that time.  It does not include fixed funding, expenditure or activity projections, but sets out a five-year budget forecast for the resources that are likely to be available.
	4.2	As set out in section 3 it is appropriate to again update our strategy to reflect the changes and how this impacts on the councils budget.  This will increase the budget gap over the life of the plan which will need to be resolved by either generating additional income or reducing costs.
	4.3	Work with other Authorities and through the Society of Welsh Treasures has supported the review, testing and challenging the assumptions we make as we develop and update our plans.
	4.4	Our MTFS previously assumed 2% inflation non pay uplifts with some external contract uplifts identified as pressures and funded to CPI or other contract terms.  The highest of which were utility increases – (355% gas and 173% electric).  These assumptions have been reviewed and reconsidered in our plans.  Each of the factors below will be regularly reviewed as we continue to see volatility.
		Energy Costs will see a reduction on the increase applied in the current, expected at over 20%
		Fuel 5%
		Food 5%
		Capital Scheme costs
		Cost of Borrowing – see section 5
		Inflationary impact on contractual obligations for commissioned services (5%)
	4.5	As a service-driven organisation, workforce costs are a key cost driver across our services.  Sustained levels of high inflation have resulted in protracted pay negotiation processes and upward pressure on pay awards for both NJC Council staff and Teachers Pay.
	4.6	Pay negotiations continue at a national level and are expected to exceed the budgeted 5% increase for 2023-24, now likely to be closer to 7%.  Whilst this pressure can be managed during 2023/24, due to using the opportunity to set aside reserves at the end of last year, the ongoing base budget must be addressed in 2024/25 adding additional pressure over and above any pay award agreed for that year.     Assumptions for future years were budgeted at a 2% increase per annum from 2024/25 but with inflation remaining at current levels annual increases are now budgeted to be higher at 5% then dropping 1% per annum before falling back to 2% in the latter years of our plan.  Pay award assumptions are a critical factor to keep under review. As pay is such a significant budget, small changes can have a big impact on cost, a 1% change is equivalent to £1.7 million.
	4.7	Pension Costs – Powys Pension Fund’s actuarial review was completed  in March 2023 resulting in a reduction in the Councils contribution rate, this change is now reflected in the Councils Budget Plan with a stepped saving of £1.7 million over 3 years to March 2026.  The Teacher’s Pension Scheme (TPS) is subject to its actuarial review which will take effect from 1st April 2024 and implemented in September 2024.  Our planning assumes that any increase in contribution rates for Teaching staff will be fully funded by Welsh Government, as was the case at the last review.  However, due to the significant impact any change would have on Powys Schools budgets we will note this pressure in our plan, currently estimated at a full year cost of £3 million.
	4.8	Pay and cost pressures have been equally challenging for providers of the service that the Council commission and it is inevitable that they will seek to pass these on in their pricing.  Pressure may emerge as we retender our services and negotiate annual reviews.
	4.10	The Council purchases its energy via Crown Commercial Services (CCS).  Regular briefings keep the council informed on market conditions and provides data to assist us in budget preparation.   Our current assumptions across schools, street lighting and the Council’s other estate are for a reduction of 15% for electricity and 29% for gas in 2024-25 and a further reduction of 20% and 26% in 2025-26. The situation will require careful monitoring as prices are susceptible to further change, and there will be a need to proactively plan for mitigating actions, including a review and reduction in energy usage.
	4.11	Construction and material costs continue to be impacted by inflation and have a severe impact on the cost of schemes for both Revenue and more significantly for Capital Projects.  It is unclear at this stage how this will impact the programme over the coming years.
	4.12	The cost of living challenge continues to impact on our local businesses and residents, demand for our services has grown and is expected to  create further additional pressure on the Council and its services through 2024/25 and beyond.  Key areas include:-
		Increasing homelessness
		Referrals to Social Services
		Increasing levels of debt owed to the Council
		Council Tax collections rates
		Money Advice, Benefits support, Council Tax Reduction Scheme
	5.4	The most recent forecasts for interest rates are shown below. The revised Medium Term Financial Strategy has been updated to take account of these changes.
	6	Other Pressures
	6.1	Service specific pressures are being reviewed by the Senior Leadership Team, these will consider demographic changes, specific contractual arrangements and legislative changes and will undoubtedly create additional pressure in our plans.  Managing and mitigating these will be a key focus as the budget develops over the next few months.
	7.1	The net revenue budget requirement is the amount of budget the Council requires to fulfil its functions.  It is calculated taking the output of each of the service integrated business plans; these identify the resource requirements for each service to deliver their statutory functions, the Corporate Plan and service improvement objectives offset by budget reduction and additional income proposals.
	7.2	The financing of the net budget comes from the Welsh Government settlement and Council Tax income. Assumptions for these elements are key in developing our plans.
	7.3	Alongside this year’s final settlement announcement Welsh Government (WG) issued an indicative allocation for the Revenue Support Grant for 2024/25 at 3.1%. This figure is indicative and dependent on current estimates of NDR income and the funding provided to WG by the UK Government.  The announcement of the Provisional Local Government Settlement is again expected to be delayed to December rather than October.
	7.4	For planning purposes our budget plan models 3 scenarios based on 2%, 0% and -2% from 2025/26.  A 0% reduction for 2025/26 would equate to £4.7 million less.
	7.5	Council Tax increase is currently modelled at 5% year on year increase.  Cabinet have not yet discussed the level at which Council Tax will be set, the percentage used is for illustrative purposes only at this stage and is based on the figure originally included in the MTFS approved by Council March.   In proposing the final level of increase for the 2024/25 budget, consideration will be given to the affordability for Powys residents, together with the ongoing need to meet increasing demand and inescapable cost pressures on vital local services.  In addition there will be small adjustments to the current tax base.
	7.6	Income from fees and charges makes a significant contribution (£78 million per annum) to the Council’s budget and the Council’s approach to income generation is set out the Councils Income Policy, fees and charges will be reviewed in line with this policy will be presented in the updated Fees and Charges Register, which will be presented with the budget papers annually for approval.  The council’s policy is based on the principle of full cost recovery and inflationary uplifts will be considered to ensure that the Council can continue to recover its costs for the services it provides. A blanket uplift is not assumed, however an increase in line with inflation is expected unless there is a clear rational to do otherwise.  Increases in income will be reflected at a service level in the FRM.
	7.7	In addition to the AEF, Councils also receive specific grants which are accompanied by specific terms and conditions as to how they can be used.  For 2023/24 specific grants account for £79 million of the Council funding. Whilst welcomed these are generally a temporary source of funding allocated on an annual basis, and this creates a recruitment challenge and financial risk particularly when inflationary pressures erode the real term value of this funding.  WG have committed to reduce the administrative burden on local authorities and will review specific grants.  The impact of this review, including any potential grant transfers into the RSG will need to be factored into plans as further information becomes available.  It is important to note that any such transfers can distort the percentage change in funding when headline announcements are made.
	7.8	Grant Funding is a significant financing element for our Capital schemes.  In 2023/24 £43 million will support Schools, Highways and Housing projects.  This funding is a key element to support the affordability of the Capital Programme and will remain fundamental in our forward capital plans.
	8.	Revised Financial Resource Model and Budget Gap
	8.1	The assumptions included in the original MTFS have all been reviewed in light of the circumstances described in the earlier sections of the report.  The table at Appendix A updates the position from that reported in March 2023.
	8.2	Our modelling assumes that our optimistic assumption for the WG Settlement creates an £15.3 million budget gap next year and a cumulative gap of £43.4 million.  The worst case scenario sees the cumulative figure increase to £82.3 million at the end of year 5.
	8.3	The Financial Resource Model (FRM) continues to be updated and will not be finalised until the budget work has been completed.  The assumptions will continue to be reviewed as the budget process progresses, and these will inevitably lead to further changes in our financial modelling. The indicative draft budget from WG will not be released until December 2023, with final budgets in March 2024. Council tax levels included are purely for modelling purposes at this stage and have been maintained at levels modelled previously notwithstanding that the gap has increased.
	9.	Strategy to bridge the gap : Sustainable Powys
	9.1	It is becoming clear that the Council in its current form is not sustainable for the longer term, in response to this challenge the Council has embarked on a programme of change to reimagine what the Council should look like in the future to ensure that it can remain financially stable and provide sustainable services in the long-term.
	9.2	Delivering valued local government services is at the heart of all we do. With changing times and economic conditions, we need to be pro-active, innovative and forward-thinking to deliver effective public services for the future.
	9.3	We recognise the challenges and we want to work in partnership to explore the opportunities to make the changes needed to build the stronger, fairer and greener future for Powys.
	9.5	In line with Stronger Fairer Greener, Sustainable Powys key principles are:-
		Outcomes and transformation, not just modifying services
		Engagement: engaging early with people in agreeing, designing and delivering outcomes
		Addressing the fundamental question: why do we do what we do?
		Having a strategic whole county view, not just the Council
		Innovation: being open minded and seeking innovative solutions, using all the expertise available
		Using evidence - if we aren’t getting results, we should change
		It's a continual process to meet existing and long-term needs sustainably
		Delivering outcomes at lower or no costs
	Documents referenced to support this report:
	Office for Budget Responsibility :  “Economic and fiscal outlook” in November 2022 and “Fiscal risks and sustainability – July 2023”
	WLGA Briefing July 2023 - Market Intelligence Expert Group
	Written Statement by the Welsh Government First Minister, Mark Drakeford MS - Update about Budget 2023-24, 9th August 2023.
	Appendix A
	Appendix C -    Budget Timetable 2024-25
	MTFS appendix B

	10 GOHEBIAETH
	RSPCA Cymru - Pets as Prizes motion

	11 Penderfyniadau Dirprwyedig a wnaed ers y cyfarfod diwethaf
	12 Blaenraglen Waith
	14 Gwerthu Eiddo

